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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

I am pleased to present the 2023 annual results of Xingfa Aluminium
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”, “the Company”, or “Xingfa Aluminium”).

In the past year, the real estate industry in the PRC was rapidly
evolving, bringing great uncertainty to upstream enterprises. As a
leading supplier of aluminium profiles in terms of market share, the
Group encountered certain challenges in winning new orders,
maintaining profit margins and collecting receivables. In addition, as
the global situation continued to change with surging trade frictions,
the export of raw materials and products in China faced greater
pressure. As a result, the Group had to adopt a more prudent
attitude when developing overseas business, thus slowing down the
pace of business expansion.

As the saying goes, chances come from challenges. Although the
industry was full of challenges, the adjustment of the real estate
industry has greatly strengthened the Group’s sense of hardship and
formed a driving force for change. We actively explored new business
directions, strengthened cooperation with real estate enterprises with
controllable debt levels, and strived for more public construction
projects to keep the business resilient in the volatile market. Coupled
with the investment in the field of industrial aluminium profiles in the
past few years, we have received orders from other industries,
including photovoltaic and electric vehicles industries, encouraging us
in the difficulties.
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As a leading supplier of aluminium profiles in China, the Group, with
its high-quality reputation and services, participated in the
construction of landmark projects. It provided high-quality products
for Xiamen New Airport, Hefei iFlytek Global Headquarters,
Hangzhou New World Guili Centre, Xi'an International Cultural
Communication Centre and Shenzhen Tencent Global Headquarters.
We demonstrated our commitment to craftmanship and quality in
every cooperation for the landmark construction projects, which
requires materials with superior quality. With these opportunities, we
connected our own brands with well-known buildings, so that Xingfa
Aluminium could achieve higher popularity and reputation in the
market, laying the foundation for long-term business development,
especially overseas.

During the year, the Group continued to achieved steady growth
despite difficulties. Revenue increased by 2.5% year-on-year to
approximately RMB17,352.6 million (2022: RMB16,933.1 million),
and sales volume increased by 6.6% year-on-year to 757,480 tonnes
(2022: 710,534 tonnes), both of which recorded new highs. Among
them, construction aluminium profiles and industrial aluminium
profiles accounted for 81.4% and 15.2% of the revenue respectively.
Gross profit was approximately RMB1,990.2 million (2022:
RMB1,774.7 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 12.1%.
Profit attributable to shareholders increased by 75.7% year-on-year
to RMB804.2 million (2022: RMB457.8 million). To acknowledge our
shareholders’ support, the Board recommended a final dividend of
HK$0.64 per share, with a distribution ratio of 30.3%.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

Being able to maintain business growth in a challenging environment
was inseparable from our team’s investment in research and
development, production process and internal reform. Over the years,
we have participated in the formulation of more than 100
international, national and industry standards, and our strength has
been highly recognised. Our Xingfa Research Institute has
continuously promoted the research of aluminium profile products
and strengthened the adaptability of these products in different
environments, so as to improve product quality and maintain market
competitiveness. We also learned from the experience at home and
abroad, developed new applications to solve the pain points in key
areas, and expanded more market segments. During the year, the
Group won a number of industry honours, including Innovation
Award of Invention and Entrepreneurship Award in 2023, 24th China
Patent Excellence Award and Second Prize of China Nonferrous
Metals Industry Science and Technology Award in 2023, which
proved Xingfa Aluminium’s contribution to China’s aluminium
processing industry.

In terms of business development, we continued to promote digital
intelligence and green production this year, pursuing quality and
production capacity improvement while striving for China‘s dual-
carbon target. Our second generation digital factory project in
Zhejiang has entered the trial production stage. As a flagship
production facility, the new base incorporated cloud computing, big
data, smart logistics, process reengineering and others, which can
support the Group to realise the dual-engine development model of
“construction profiles + industrial profiles”. Furthermore, it is
expected that plants in Vietnam and Australia will be put into
operation in these two years. Our strategic business presence in Asia
will gradually take shape, likely achieving greater synergy and taking
the Group’s development to a new level.
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In the long run, we are still optimistic about China’s aluminium
processing industry. First of all, China’s real estate industry will
ultimately recover to its normalcy, and the existing market will
generate stable demand for aluminium profile products to support
the development of upstream processing industry. The urban village
renewal projects in China has started this year and the supporting
policies for “Three Major Projects” has been formulated, both of
which will play a role in boosting the construction aluminium profile
market. Secondly, due to the characteristics of lightweight and low
energy consumption, the application of aluminium profile products
has been continuously expanded in recent years, and has been widely
used in photovoltaic, new energy vehicles and communication fields,
creating more opportunities for the development of industrial
aluminium profiles for the Group.

Finally, on behalf of the board of directors, | would like to express my
heartfelt thanks to all shareholders and customers for their support.
In the future, Xingfa Aluminium aims to promote high-quality
development, aspires to become a world-class aluminium profile
enterprise, and is committed to delivering richer and sustainable
returns to shareholders. Thank you.

Wang Li
Chairman

Foshan, China, 21 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEIwmR DT

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Industry Review

In 2023, driven by policies supporting steady growth, China’s Gross
Domestic Product (“GDP") recorded a higher-than-expected growth
rate of 5.2%. However, the domestic and international environment
are increasingly complex and the conflict between the insufficient
domestic demand and supply still exists. For the real estate industry,
factors such as the Three Red Line policies and the decline in
purchasers’ confidence as a result of the debt default by real estate
developers leaving the market under continued pressure and at a
stage of low level adjustment. According to the National Bureau of
Statistics, the sales area of commercial housing in 2023 was 112,000
square meters, representing a year-on-year decrease of 8.5%; the
amount of sales of commercial housing was RMB11.7 trillion,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.5%; the investment in real
estate development nationwide was about RMB11.1 trillion,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 9.6%. As a major
manufacturer and supplier of construction aluminium profiles in
China, despite severe challenges in the industry, Xingfa Aluminium
continued to strengthen its cooperation with high quality real estate
developers with healthy cash flow, and actively expanded its product
portfolio to lay a solid foundation for the development of a diversified
aluminium profiles business.

Business Review

In the past year, it was a period of difficulties and opportunities for
Xingfa Aluminium. Against the background of the liquidity crisis
faced by real estate developers, the continued downturn in the real
estate market has weakened the demand for aluminium profile
products, which has brought severe challenges to the Group’s
operations and sales. However, thanks to the tireless efforts of all the
members of the Group, during the year ended 31 December 2023
("Year"), the Group actively expanded its business scale, maintained
product quality and brand reputation, and pushed Xingfa Aluminium
to overcome difficulties and maintain double growth in sales and
output under a difficult business environment. As a major
manufacturer and supplier of construction aluminium profiles, the
Group was inevitably affected by industry conditions. During the
Year, the Group made a special provision of impairment loss on trade
receivables from certain property sub- contractors, amounting to
approximately RMB243.9 million. However, excluding the relevant
provision, the profitability of the Group was further improved during
the Year, fully demonstrating the resilience of its business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In terms of business development, in order to cope with the unstable
business environment and market uncertainties, the Group adopted
a more flexible operation mode. In this regard, the Group actively
promoted cooperative relations with state-owned enterprises and
real estate developers with healthy cash flow by virtue of its own
product quality and technology. Also, it strengthened the
development of public construction projects through cooperation
with the government, reducing dependence on customers in a single
sector, mitigating operational risks and ensuring a sound financial
position. In addition, the Group continued to expand the retail
market, improve home door and window products, increase brand
influence at the retail level, so as to create new business growth
points for the Group.

Apart from making adjustments to the construction aluminium
profiles business, the Group continued to develop its industrial
aluminium profiles business. Against the backdrop of strong national
policy promoting green energy, Xingfa Aluminium actively adapted
to the market trend by expanding related products in the
photovoltaic field, in order to enhance its brand awareness and
influence in the photovoltaic segment. Further, the Group continued
to explore opportunities related to new energy vehicles, acquired
new customers and optimised product design to meet market
demand and enhance competitiveness. Through continuous
investment on research and development and innovation, Xingfa
Aluminium gradually consolidated its market position in the field of
industrial aluminium profiles during the Year and ushered in
diversified business opportunities.

To further capture market opportunities, the Group actively increased
production capacity and expanded its overseas presence. The digital
and automated production base in Zhejiang Province has entered
into the trial production stage, and it is expected to commence
production in 2024, empowering Xingfa to embark on the road of
“Smart Manufacturing 2.0” to produce high-quality aluminium
profile products with higher efficiency. Additionally, the plant of the
Australian joint venture project has been completed and trial
production is expected to start in 2024; the ASEAN project is also in
the preparatory stage. In coordination with the gradual increase in
production capacity, the Group adopted a more proactive sales
strategy during the Year by setting up a dedicated team focusing on
overseas markets and successfully expanded into overseas markets
such as Mexico and the United States, enabling Xingfa Aluminium to
expand its international market presence.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEIwmR DT

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue and sales volume
of the Group increased by 2.5% and 6.6% to approximately
RMB17,352.6 million and 757,480 tonnes respectively (2022:
RMB16,933.1 million and 710,534 tonnes, respectively), of which the
sales of construction aluminium profiles and industrial aluminium
profiles accounted for 81.4% and 15.2% of the revenue respectively.

The gross profit of the Group for the Year increased by 12.1% year-
on-year to approximately RMB1,990.2 million. The gross profit
margin of the Group increased to 11.5% (2022: 10.5%), and such
increase was mainly due to the tightened procurement and
production cost control during the Year. During the Year, the profit
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately RMB804.2
million (2022: RMB457.8 million), representing an increase of 75.7%
year-on-year.

Construction aluminium profiles

Construction aluminium profiles are surface treated aluminium
profiles mainly used for the construction and installation of doors and
windows, curtain walls, ceilings and blinds and other decorative
products.

In 2023, the revenue of construction aluminium profiles increased by
2.9% year-on-year to approximately RMB14,121.8 million (2022:
RMB13,727.4 million), and sales volume increased by 9.2% year-on-
year to approximately 622,678 tonnes (2022: 570,071 tonnes).

Industrial aluminium profiles

Industrial aluminium profiles are mainly plain aluminium profiles,
which can be used as container frames and other products such as
new conductive profiles of urban railway locomotives and ship
components. Moreover, the industrial aluminium profiles can also be
produced into different forms and shapes, such as heat sinks of
central processing units (CPUs) and display and frames of consumer
electronic products.

In 2023, the revenue of industrial aluminium profiles decreased by
2.9% year-on-year to approximately RMB2,642.8 million (2022:
RMB2,723 million), and sales volume dropped by 5.1% year-on-year
to approximately 126,171 tonnes (2022: 132,977 tonnes).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECT

Looking ahead to 2024, the Group is cautiously optimistic about the
aluminium profile industry and its own development. Although the
real estate industry is facing certain challenges in the short term, the
aluminium profile industry, as a huge existing market, is still full of
development opportunities. With the Chinese government
accelerating the implementation of supporting policies for the “Three
Major Projects,” initiating urban village renewal projects in
megacities, and the central bank reinstating mortgage supplementary
loans, the long-adjusted real estate industry is expected to gradually
emerge from its predicament.

In terms of construction aluminium profiles, the Group will continue
to strengthen cooperation with state-owned enterprises and real
estate developers with healthy cash flow, and actively explore co-
operation opportunities with the government for public construction
projects and continue to expand the retail market, so as to
consolidate market share and explore new business breakthroughs.
In terms of industrial aluminium profiles, the Group will increase its
presence in photovoltaic and new energy vehicles sectors,
continuously develop high-strength and lightweight aluminium
products, seize the opportunities in this new blue ocean market, and
establish a growth engine in addition to the construction segment.

In order to seize market opportunities, the Group will strive to
improve research and development, production, sales and
management, so as to reduce costs and increase efficiency. The
Group will actively expand its production network. The second
generation smart manufacturing plant in Zhejiang Province will be
put into production in 2024. Together with the plant of the
Australian joint venture project and the ASEAN production base
under construction, the total production capacity of Xingfa
Aluminium will be fully improved. This enable us to fulfil customer
requirements more flexibly and realise efficient production and
delivery. We will actively expand the sales team, expand the customer
base and market share, so that Xingfa Aluminium can better seize
the growth opportunities and achieve more stable business growth.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The revenue and sales volume of the Group for the Year increased by
2.5% and 6.6% year-on-year to approximately RMB17,352.6 million
and 757,480 tonnes respectively (2022: RMB16,933.1 million and
710,534 tonnes respectively). The growth of revenue was attributable
to the increase in sales orders during the Year.

The sales volume of construction aluminium profiles for the Year
increased by 9.2% to approximately 622,678 tonnes (2022: 570,071
tonnes). Meanwhile, the sales volume of industrial aluminium profiles
for the Year decreased by 5.1% to approximately 126,171 tonnes
(2022: 132,977 tonnes).

The following table sets forth the details of our revenue by reportable
segments for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

Manufacturing and sale of aluminium profiles 4 N $5 65 SR80 4
— Construction aluminium profiles — BEREREM

— Industrial aluminium profiles — T EsaTM

All other segments P78 B fth 53 BP
Total HBEt

Note: Our Group's revenue from all other segments represented revenue generated
from processing service contracts related to aluminium products, sale of
aluminium panels, aluminium alloy, moulds and spare parts, and sale of office
premises and residential properties.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group for the Year increased by 12.1% year-
on-year to approximately RMB1,990.2 million (2022: RMB1,774.7
million).

The overall gross profit margin for the Year of the Group increased
by one percentage point to 11.5% (2022: 10.5%), and the sales to
production ratio increased to 99.5% (2022: 99%).

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin of our
aluminium profiles in 2023 and 2022:

Construction aluminium profiles SRS
Industrial aluminium profiles T EERAM

The gross profit margin of construction aluminium profiles increased
to 11.5% while the gross profit margin of industrial aluminium
profiles deceased to 5.7% for the Year respectively as compared to
that of 2022. The increase in gross profit margin of construction
aluminium was mainly due to the tightened procurement and
production cost control while the decrease in gross profit margin of
industrial aluminium was mainly due to intensified competitive
market.

Other income

Other income of the Group for the Year increased to approximately
RMB172.6 million (2022: RMB132.1 million), which was mainly
attributable to the combined effect of the increase in income from
value-added tax super deduction, offset by loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment and other assets and decrease in
government grants for the Year.

Distribution costs

The distribution costs of the Group for the Year increased by 29.7%
to approximately RMB374.1 million (2022: RMB288.4 million), which
accounted for 2.2% of the revenue (2022: 1.7%). The increase was
mainly due to the general increase in transportation costs and agent
fee.
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Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the Year increased by
7.0% to approximately RMB439.3 million (2022: RMB410.5 million),
which accounted for 2.5% of the revenue (2022: 2.4%). The
increase was mainly due to the general increase in staff costs.

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The impairment loss on trade and other receivables of the Group for
the Year decreased by RMB258.9 million to RMB293.2 million (2022:
RMB552.1 million), which was mainly attributable to the decrease of
RMB308.9 million in loss allowances provided for the credit-impaired
trade receivables. Such loss allowances were provided for after
considering the recoverability of trade receivables due from certain
property sub-contractors as a result of adverse circumstance in
construction aluminium profile industry.

Finance costs

Despite of the increase in the level of bank borrowings, finance costs
remained stable at approximately RMB138.1 million for the Year
(2022: RMB138.9 million) which is due to the decrease in the average
interest rate of bank borrowings.

Profit for the Year and net profit margin

The profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) for the Year increased by 75.7% year-on-year to
approximately RMB804.2 million (2022: RMB457.8 million). The
increase was mainly attributable to decrease in provision of
impairment loss on trade and other receivables in the Year and
increase in sales orders of the Group in the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Current and quick ratios

The following table sets out our Group's current and quick ratios as
at 31 December 2023 and 2022:

Current ratio (Note i) BN (e i)
Quick ratio (Note i) RENEL (B aEiT)
Notes:

(i) Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by the total

current liabilities at the end of the year.

(i) Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the total current assets
and the inventories divided by the total current liabilities at the end of the year.

Both ratios as at 31 December 2023 increased as compared to those
as at 31 December 2022. Such increases were mainly due to the
decrease in current liabilities as a result of a drop in trade and other
payables as at 31 December 2023.

Gearing ratio

The following table sets out our Group’s gearing ratio as at 31
December 2023 and 2022:

Gearing ratio (Note) BB E (M)

Note: Gearing ratio is calculated based on the loans and borrowings divided by total
assets and multiplied by 100%.

The gearing ratio increased for the Year as compared to that of 2022
which was mainly due to the increase in the balances of loans and
borrowings as at 31 December 2023.
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Inventory turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s inventory turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

FEREEH K E)

Inventory turnover days (Note)

Note: Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning and
ending inventory balance before provision for the periods divided by the total
cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

Inventory turnover days for the Year remained stable as compared to
that for 2022 due to enhanced arrangement on production plans,
leading to a stable inventory backlog and inventory turnover days for
the Year.

Debtors’ turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s debtors’ turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

Debtors’ turnover days (Note)

Note: Debtors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning and
ending balance of trade and bills receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts)
for the periods divided by revenue during the years multiplied by 365 days.

The debtors’ turnover days decreased for the Year as compared to

that of 2022. This was mainly because the Group tightened credit
period to its debtors generally during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Creditors’ turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s creditors’ turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

Creditors’ turnover days (Note)

Note: Creditors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning and
ending balance of trade and bills payables for the periods divided by the total
cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

The creditors’ turnover days for the Year decreased as compared to
that of 2022. The decrease in creditors’ turnover days was a result of
the Group’s bargaining strategy with its suppliers to shorten the
payment period in order to maintain a competitive purchase costs.

Loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s loans and borrowings
dominated in RMB amounted to approximately RMB3,147.5 million
(31 December 2022: RMB2,499.0 million), of which approximately
RMB1,146.6 million were fixed rate borrowings (31 December 2022:
RMB550.5 million).

Save for typically lower borrowing requirements in the first quarter of
the Year due to holidays during the Chinese Lunar New Year, there
was no seasonality in the Group's bank borrowing requirements.

Banking facilities and guarantee

As at 31 December 2023, the banking facilities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB14,176.2 million (31 December
2022: RMB12,004.0 million), of which approximately RMB4,509.0
million were utilised (31 December 2022: RMB5,039.0 million).

No banking facilities were guaranteed by related parties of the
Group.
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Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure was used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights. During the Year, our Group's capital
expenditure amounted to approximately RMB980.9 million (2022:
RMB975.1 million). The increase in capital expenditure during the
Year was mainly due to the acquisition of equipment and land use
rights for our production plants.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had 420,649,134 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in issue. During the Year, no share of the
Company was issued.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserve of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in both short term and long term.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are
denominated in the United States (“US") dollars and Hong Kong
("HK") dollars. Furthermore, certain trade receivables, trade payables,
bank balances and bank loans are denominated in US dollars and HK
dollars, therefore exposing the Group to the currency risk of US
dollars and HK dollars.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CASH FLOW HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets out our Group’s cash flow highlights during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

Net cash generated from operating activities
Interest received
Payment for purchase of property, plant and

EUHE

equipment and land use rights EAEEE ANE N
Interest paid X AFLE

Net increase in bank borrowings RITEEIGINFEE
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the

Company

We generally finance our operations through internally generated
cash flows and bank borrowings. Our Directors believe that on a
long-term basis, our liquidity will be funded from operations and, if
necessary, additional equity financing or bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of RMB2,840.4 million (31 December 2022: RMB1,849.8 million),
among which 2.4% was held in US dollars, 4.7% was held in HK
dollars and the remaining balance was held in RMB.

SALE OF COMPLETED PROPERTIES
(i) Xingfa Plaza

“Xingfa Plaza” (£ % X J&), a property project wholly-owned
by the Group, is located at the northern side of Jihua Road and
western side of Changang Road, Chancheng District, Foshan
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. The land use rights of the
property were granted for a term of 40 years expiring on 19
May 2050 for commercial service, office, culture and
entertainment uses. The property comprises a parcel of land
with a site area of approximately 16,961.36 sq.m. and a gross
floor area of approximately 123,527.29 sq.m..
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During the Year, no unit of “Xingfa Plaza” (% 2 X &) had
been sold and delivered. There was no revenue recognized
from the sale of completed properties for the Year (2022:
RMB8.1 million). As at 31 December 2023, approximately
39.6% of the saleable floor area have been delivered to the
customers.

(ii) Other properties

During the Year, the Group received properties of RMB29.9
million (2022: RMB176.4 million) under the sale and purchase
agreements with certain property developers, pursuant to
which the Group agreed to purchase certain properties. As at
31 December 2023, the Group has completed the purchase of
properties of RMB130.8 million with ownership certificates
obtained and such properties were recorded at costs as
inventories of the Group, net of the provision for write down
of such acquired properties held for sale to net realisable value
amounted to RMB38.1 million. In addition, the Group received
the remaining properties of RMB75.5 million without obtaining
the related ownership certificates and such properties were
recorded under prepayments of the Group, less impairment
loss of RMB23.2 million as at 31 December 2023. The Group
intended to hold all such properties for sale in subsequent
period.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, our Group employed a total of
approximately 9,185 full time employees in the PRC and Hong Kong
which included management staff, technicians, salespersons and
workers. In 2023, our Group's total expenses on the remuneration of
employees were approximately RMB1,097.2 million, represented
approximately 6.3% of the revenue of our Group. Our Group's
emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employees (including the Directors), which will be reviewed regularly
every year. Apart from the provident fund scheme (according to the
provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
Hong Kong employees), housing fund, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance and other relevant insurance (according to
the PRC rules and regulations for PRC employees), discretionary
bonuses and employee share options are also awarded to employees
(including the Directors) according to the assessment of individual
performance. In-house and external training programmes are
provided as and when required.
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Directors and Senior Management

Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Li (“Mr. Wang”), aged 45, has been an executive
Director and the chairman of the Company (“Chairman”) since 14
April 2022. Mr. Wang has over 19 years of working experience in
investment banking, mergers and acquisitions, and operation
management. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Investment
Economics Management from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics in 2001 and a Master’s degree in Finance from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in 2004. Mr.
Wang held different positions in various banks and financial
institutions during the period from June 2004 to June 2018. Mr.
Wang was the general manager of the investment banking
department of Guangzhou branch of China Everbright Bank (B3¢
KERITEIMN 5 77) from May 2014 to November 2016. From
November 2016 to June 2018, Mr. Wang was the general manager
of Guangdong Finance Fund Management Co., Ltd.* (BR B8 E 4§
EIEAPRAF]). From June 2018 to February 2021, Mr. Wang was
the assistant to general manager and head of the capital operation
department of Guangdong Province Guangging Holding Group Co.,
Ltd.* (BHREEETREBEABR A R). Since February 2021, he has
been serving as the operation management director of Guangdong
Guangxin Holdings Group Co., Ltd.* (BER & EFiEKREEBRAT)
("Guangxin Holdings”). During his employment with Guangxin
Holdings, Mr. Wang also took up the position of director in various
companies invested by Guangxin Holdings, namely FSPG Hi-Tech Co.,
Ltd. (BB ILHZE R EE D B R A A, the shares of which are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000973) (from August
2021 to March 2022), Star Lake Bioscience Co. Inc. Zhaoging
Guangdong* (ERZE 2 HEMRHERMBIRAR]), the shares of
which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600866) (from August 2021 to April 2022), Guangdong Foodstuffs
Import & Export Group Co., Ltd.* (ERARBEHOEBERAR)
and Guangdong Guangxin Emerging Industries Investment Private
Equity Management Co., Ltd.* (BEREFMEBEEERELZEESE
IEAHPR A F]). Guangxin Holdings is the holding company of Guangxin
Aluminium (HK) Limited, which holds approximately 31.47% of the
issued shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report,
and is the controlling shareholder of the Company.

*  For identification purpose only
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEAR

Mr. Liao Yuqing (“Mr. Liao"), aged 55, is an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Company. He is in charge of the
sales and marketing activities of the Group and is responsible for the
planning, development, implementation and evaluation of the
marketing strategies of the Group. Mr. Liao joined the Group in
January 1993. Prior to that, Mr. Liao was in the military between
1986 to 1991. Mr. Liao worked at the Agricultural Bank of
China Jiujiang Branch from 1991 to 1992. Mr. Liao is the
director of Guangdong Xingfa and an executive director of
Foshan Xingfa Trading Co., Ltd., Guangdong Xingfa Precision
Manufacturing Co., Ltd., Guangdong Xingfa Aoke Architecture
Technology Co., Ltd., Alxin Investment Co., Ltd. (325 EBR A F])
and Alxin Development Co., Ltd. ($a{5 2 & B R 2 7). Mr. Liao is
the son-in-law of Mr. Luo Su, the Honourable Adviser of the Group.

Mr. Law Yung Koon (“Mr. Law"), aged 66, has been appointed as
an executive Director since 28 April 2009. He is responsible for the
sales and marketing of our products in overseas market. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Law was the general manager of Hang Fat
Aluminium Profiles Company Limited, which was the sole distributor
of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau and one of the suppliers of
aluminium ingots.

24 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 R%ZRER AT

BEBRE(BERLE]D 555 ARAZHIT
EERTBAE - REEAKEHEE LTS
FEE  YHEBEMRE  FAR - TR
SEZTIGHEERRE - BEER - NAN=F—
AMAXREHE - MAXEER > BRER
“NN\AREFEE-AN—FREE R—AN—
FE-NN_FEBRTBERERITNLIIS
T -BREREREZEZRMILMEER
BERAR  EREZETHEARAR &
REZRAMEEMTARLT - tazREAR
REANBEERBERARZHWITES - BEL
RSB RBEMERTE 2 ZIE -

BERABEE(RELE]D 665 B-_TTNF
MA-T+N\BEEETHTES AEAKEE
MmN EINTIH Z HE RTIGHE - RIMAKRE
Ep BARAEREBEHMAUMERDAZHAL
2 AR AAREREL MR ZE— D
B RS — -



Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wang Lei, aged 54, is a senior engineer and has been appointed
as an executive Director since 4 August 2021. Mr. Wang obtained his
bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from University of
Science and Technology Beijing (1t &% A &) and master’s degree
in business administration from Central South University (ARG AE2)
in 1991 and 2004 respectively. He has extensive business
management experience. Mr. Wang was the executive president of
Guangzhou Zhongyong Group Co., Ltd.* (BNt EEBER Q)
from 2005 to 2006 and the general manager of Guangdong Venture
Capital Group Co., Ltd.* (ERERRIEESLEBRAF]) stationed
in Guangdong Hongli Machinery Co., Ltd.* (A2 H R A A))
from 2006 to 2009. Since 2009, Mr. Wang has served various group
companies of Guangdong Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd.* (& ¥ &
¥4 K % B A R A Al) ("Guangxin Holdings”). He was the vice
president of FSPG Hi-Tech Co., Ltd. (L #BRIBEBRD ER QD
A]), the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 000973), from 2009 to 2016 and was a member of the
party committee of FSPG Hi-Tech Co., Ltd.. From 2016 to 2017, Mr.
Wang served as the deputy director of the operation department of
Guangxin Holdings and the deputy general manager of Guangxin
Maritime Heavy Industry Co., Ltd.* (BB EETRHERAF).
He was also the chairman and secretary of the party committee of
Guangdong Guangqing Metal Technology Co., Ltd.* (EREE & B
B & B B 2 7)) as well as the executive director of Guangdong
Guangqing Metal Rolling Company* (ERE & ¢ BEL A 7)) from
2017 to 2020. From 2020 to present, he is a director of Guangxin
Shengte Investment Co., Ltd.* (BREFNEXEFREBR A A).

Mr. Wang Zhihua (“Mr. Wang"), aged 53, has been appointed as
an executive Director since 1 March 2008. Prior to joining the Group
in January 2003, from 1992 to 1997, Mr. Wang worked at Guanglian
Industrial Co., Ltd. and the Guangzhou Branch of Huaxia Securities
Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in statistics from
the Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics in 1992. Mr. Wang is
also an executive director of Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd..

*  For identification purpose only
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEAR

Mr. Luo Jianfeng (“Mr. Luo”), aged 52, has been appointed as an
executive Director since 16 April 2018. Mr. Luo has approximately 31
years of experience in accounting and finance. He worked in (i)
Shunde City Accounting Firm from July 1993 to March 1996; (ii)
Guangdong Dezheng Accounting Firm with Limited Liability from
April 1996 to December 2001; (iii) Guangdong Gongcheng
Accounting Firm from January 2002 to December 2007. He then
worked in Foshan City Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co.,
Limited as a certified public accountant from January 2008 to April
2016. In addition, Mr. Luo was the independent non-executive
director of Bestsun Energy Co. Ltd. (B JIIEERH AR A R])
(stock code: 600681), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, from June 2009 to June 2015. Mr. Luo obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in economics from Guangdong University of
Business Studies in the PRC in June 1993 and is a non-practising
member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Luo is an executive director of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(Fh BB 28 £ B IR B TR A B)) (stock code: 2128) (“China Lesso”), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. He is also a director/general manager/
supervisor of various companies in China Lesso and its subsidiaries
("China Lesso Group”).
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Directors and Senior Management

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zuo Manlun (“Mr. Zuo”), aged 51, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director since 16 April 2018. Mr. Zuo has
approximately 24 years of experience in the industry of plastic pipe.
Mr. Zuo has extensive business management experience. He is the
chief executive officer of China Lesso Group and was appointed as
an executive director of China Lesso in February 2010. He is also a
director/general manager/supervisor of various companies in China
Lesso Group. Mr. Zuo's expertise was recognised by several awards
including “Outstanding Worker of the Plastic Industry in the PRC”
accredited by China Plastics Processing Industry Association in 2009
and “Senior Plastic Product Engineer (Technical Entrepreneur)”
accredited by Guangdong Human Resources and Social Security
Department in 2019.

Ms. Xie Jingyun (“Ms. Xie"), aged 43, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director since 6 December 2018. Ms. Xie is
experienced in strategic investment and capital operation and is
currently the senior director and general manager of the capital
investment centre of Guangxin Holdings. Ms. Xie first joined the
Guangxin Holdings group in 2003. She became the deputy
department head of the investment development department of
Guangxin Holdings in 2008 and was subsequently promoted as the
department head. She then joined the capital operation department
of Guangxin Holdings as an assistant to department head in 2015
and was promoted as the deputy department head and department
head in 2016 and 2018 respectively. She served as the general
manager of the operating management centre of the Guangxin
Holdings group from 2021 to 2023. Since August 2023, she served
as the senior director of capital investment of the capital investment
centre of and the general manager of Guangxin Holdings. Ms. Xie
obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies in 2003. Ms. Xie is also a
director of (i) Guangdong Advertising Group Co., Limited* (B R &
ESEERMDAERAR), a company established in the PRC whose
shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
002400); (i) Guangdong Shengyi Technology Co., Ltd.* (ER £zt
R B R A R]), a company established in the PRC whose shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600183); and
(i) SHENGY! ELECTRONICS CO., LTD.* (A= EFRMH AR A A), a
company established in the PRC whose shares are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 688183).

*  For identification purpose only

EEREREERAS

FHTES

EmmAE(EEXRE]D 5155 BZS—\F
MA+NBRETHPTES - LEERBR
ETEBRAN2UFER ChEBEYE ¥
BERESH HATEHRBEBRTRAH LR
TE-TE-ARZAATERMBHITES -
BIRAPRBBEENLZE AR ZES BIK
B BRI e HELES EEER
BRERZETNFEPRBRIN T I E RS
AIPEBETELEIREI RN _E—NF
EEREANERMASREERELS SR
EBREE fn TREAM (AT %K) | »

SEx+(#Lt]) 435 8- /\F
T AANHRBEEENTES -HLTAERE
ENEBBEENERNELLS  BRIRNENE
BREAEARRER DN RAERBIEE - R
—EE=F HLTERNMARTNIERER -
TR -ZEZENFREEFIER 2FEERIE
BFEE  BERESAAIMAEE - FEERN
ZE-—RFEMARENIER 2 B AE & S EEED
EPE UHRR_BE—A"FR-_ZT—\FHE
ERAEBBEHFERBE RZE-_—FE=2_F
—=F HEFEREEELEEPLAL
B EXENERHZL IR TS =FEER
INEBINEREREIHERE LB - ikt
MENEREAESESEERMABR AT (RFAE
iz AR EROBFINFEHFZ S LT
(B2 8% © 002400)) (i) B R Az BHEZ 5
BRAR(RHPEIK 2 AR EERHRLEH
BHER A Em (ORI : 600183)) + K (i)
EmETRHOBER A (RFERKZZAF
ERMR EBFEHFR S LW (RGO R :
688183)) ZE=E -

o EHEE

Annual Report 2023 F i 27



Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEAR

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Mo (“Mr. Chen”), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 29 February 2008. He
obtained the lawyer qualification certificate issued by the Guangdong
Provincial Department of Justice in June 1989. Mr. Chen has been a
practicing lawyer in the PRC since 1993 and has been a partner of (i)
Goldsun Law Firm (Bl{ZE# & @2RIZESFT) from 1998 to 2011; and (ii)
Guangdong King & Land Law Firm (& 3R & £ & ff = 7 ) from
2011 to March 2019. Mr. Chen was admitted as a lawyer by the
Department of Justice of Guangdong Province in June 1989 and
obtained = A ZANE #% (Third Grade Lawyer) from the Department
of Personnel of Guangdong Province in 1999. Mr. Chen graduated
from the Political Education Department of South China Normal
University (Z£@ATE5A22) in 1986. He has been granted the (#2ff
NEFHFEEEBERFZS) (Certificate of Engaging in Securities
Law Business) jointly by the Ministry of Justice and China Securities
Regulatory Commission in 1996, the (ATt FEREERIH R EERA
TEREETSEKEE) (Certificate of Engaging in Delimitation of
Property Rights of Collective Science and Technology Enterprises)
jointly by the Ministry of Justice, the Ministry of Science and
Technology of the PRC and the State-owned Asset supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council in 1998, and the
(EMRRIBIEFEI & EF) (Certificate of Completion of
Training on Independent Directors of Listed Companies) by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission and the School of Management of
Fudan University jointly in 2001. Mr. Chen joined Guangdong
Lianyue Law Firm (S :EBERNEHFT) in April 2019.
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Directors and Senior Management

Dr Hon Junius K. Y. Ho, JP ({AJ& %) (“Junius”), is a Senior Partner
of Messrs K.C. Ho & Fong, Solicitors & Notaries where he is the head
of the Litigation and Commercial Department.

Having studied at Anglia Ruskin University in the United Kingdom
(formerly known as the Chelmer Institute of Higher Education), Junius
obtained his Bachelor of Laws in 1984. He then enrolled at the
University of Hong Kong to complete his Post-graduate Certificate in
Laws study. In 2019, Junius was awarded an Honorary Doctorate in
Law by the China University of Political Science and Law in
recognition of his “outstanding contribution and achievements in the
legal sector.”

Junius was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1988. He was
subsequently admitted in Singapore, and England and Wales in 1995
and 1997, respectively. In 2003, he was appointed as a China-
Appointed Attesting Officer. In 2022, he was also admitted as a
lawyer of the People’s Republic of China (Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area).

Over the 30 years of his career, Junius’ commitment to serving the
community and contributing to the economic co-operation between
Hong Kong and Mainland China has never wavered. Furthermore,
other than serving as a legal practitioner, Junius also serves on
various government and public boards as follows:

1. Member of the 14th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (since 2023);

2. Member of Legislative Council of HKSAR (since 2016);

3. Representative of the non-governmental organization (IPLSA)
granted Special Consultative Status by the Unit-ed Nations
Economic and Social Council (since 2022);

4. Bronze Bauhinia Star from the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (since 2023);

5. Justice of the Peace of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (since 2016);

6.  New Territories Justice of the Peace of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (since 2016);

7.  Accredited Speaker on National Security Education, Supervisor
and Co-Ordinator for the Curriculum of the National Security
Education, Chairman of the Examination Board of the National
Security Education (since 2022);
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EEREREERAS
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22.

23.

30

Ex-officio Executive Councilor of Heung Yee Kuk (since 2016);

Indigenous Village Representative of Leung Tin Village (2011-
2023);

Director and Chairman of Yan Oi Tong (1993-1997) and
Advisory Board Member of Yan Oi Tong (since 1997),

Founder of Butterflyers Association Limited (a charitable
organization) (since 2010);

Founder and Chairman of International Probono Legal Services
Association Limited (“IPLSA") (since 2018);

Spokesman of New Territories Concern Group (since 2013);

Member of the 14th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (since 2023);

Arbitrator of China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission Hong Kong Arbitration Centre (2021
to 2026);

Arbitrator of Guangzhou Arbitration Commission (since 2021);
Arbitrator of Zhaoging Arbitration Committee (since 2021);
Arbitrator of South China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission (Shenzhen Court of International

Arbitration) (since 2012);

Special Adviser of “One Belt One Road” Legal Services Research
Centre of the Guangdong Lawyers Association (since 2017);

Expert of Compliance Expert Think Tank of Guangzhou
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Federation for

Enterprise Compliance and Anti-corruption (since 2022);

Trainer of National Security Education (Train the Trainers)
Course (since 2022);

President of the Foreign Legal Services Branch of Guangzhou
Lawyers Association (2024);

Advisor of the Dongguan Foreign-related Rule of Law Research
Association of the Dongguan Law Society (2024);
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Directors and Senior Management

24. Member of the Office of Rule of Law of the Guangdong
Provincial Party Committee (2023-2028);

25. Part-time Tutor of Master of Public Administration, China
University of Labor Relations (2018-2021);

26. Independent Director of Hong Kong Football Association
(2011-2019);

27. Member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Huangpu District, Guangzhou (2013-2021);

28. Elected Member of Lok Tsui District of Tuen Mun District
Council (2016-2019);

29. Member of the Council of Lingnan University of Hong Kong
(2015-2021);

30. Past President (2011-2012) and Council Member (1995-2017)
of the Law Society of Hong Kong;

31. Member of the Panel of Adjudicators of the Obscene Articles
Tribunal (2013-2022); and

32. Member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Guangzhou Committee (2022-2023).

Mr. Lam, Ying Hung Andy (“Mr. Lam"), aged 59, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 29 February 2008. He is
an associate member of various professional organisations, namely
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, The Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and The Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He obtained his master’s degree in
professional accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Lam has over 30 years of experience in the accounting, banking
and finance sectors and currently is the managing consultant of
Lontreprise Consulting Limited. Mr. Lam was also the president of
Dragon Junior Chamber, a local chamber affiliated with Junior
Chamber International Hong Kong in 2004 and was elected as the
national vice president of the Junior Chamber International Hong
Kong in 2005. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of each of Litu Holdings Limited (formerly known as Brilliant Circle
Holdings International Limited) (stock code: 1008), Synertone
Communication Corporation (stock code: 1613) and Weiye Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1570), the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

EEREREERAS

24, EREBEEZ FRdAEZEZ BE(2023-
2028) ;

25. HELHERERALEBEELI XS
LA FTEERSNAT 28RN (2018-2021)

26. BARBEESEAIEE(2011-2019)

27. REARBGAEBEHEEMNTERERE
E@RZLE(201322021) :

28. ¥MAEMERTERERAIEHEES (2016-
2019) ;

29. BHABEMAERIE (2015-2021) :

30. BAEMERER(2011-2012) REES
(1995-2017) :

31, BHEBRTEYRERNEMNZE
(2013-2022) : LAK

S

32. FEARBUAHEGZEMTZ B A

ZE(2022%&2023) °

8

MEBEE(MEE]D 59 R-ZFTTNF
“AZTNBEZERBIUIFRITES - Mk

ERERBERECLEE  BRERERBINE
FITBRABERG BRERRWELAGREBR

T8g TRABFHFARGITMAERER
EEMAEERER -MELEBBETAE
MBEXEHMALTEN - HEA0FET R
THEMITEER - BRIRELHABRAR
ZERFER - MEER _TEMFEERES
FHgeR mHesBREFReR LS
T XEE TR _ETRFRERER
FEHERBRERER - MBS NEEK
BERAR (AR EBRERERERAR) (K
A5k : 1008) ~ HRBEEEBR AR (A
5% 1 1613) RIERZERBR 2B (BDAR
1570) 2B FFAITES - RERARKROHHRN
BERZPrEMR LT -

Annual Report 2023 F i 31



Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEAR

Mr. Wen Xianjun (“Mr. Wen"), aged 61, graduated from Central
South University (FR F§ K22 ) with a bachelor of engineering majoring
in metallic materials in July 1984 and Beijing Non-Ferrous Research
Institute* (1t XA & & & i 28 42 b7 ) with a master of engineering
majoring in metallic materials in June 1990. Mr. Wen has
approximately over 37 years of experience in the industry of non-
ferrous metals. He successively served as an associate engineer of
Beijing Non-Ferrous Research Institute* (1t ;= & & & & i 5 42 b))
from 1984 to 1987, an engineer of the technology department of
China National Non-ferrous Metals Industry Corporation* (FFEA &
© BT E# /7)) from 1990 to 1992, a deputy director and a senior
engineer of Development and Exchange Centre of China Nonferrous
Metals Industry Technology* (R Bl B & & & $ fil7 F 3% 22 78 0)
from 1992 to 1996, a deputy director of the investment and
operations department and a senior engineer of China National Non-
ferrous Metals Industry Corporation* (FE A ¢ B T XA Q7))
from 1996 to 1998, the deputy head, a director level consultant and
a senior engineer of Industry Administration Department of the State
Non-ferrous Metals Industry Administration of the People’s Republic
of China* (“PRC") (BRXEEELEIERITEEEA]) from 1998 to
2000, as well as the director of CPC Central Enterprise Working
Committee (AR R 2 T Z&) from January 2001 to March 2001. He
also served as the chairman of China Non-ferrous Metals Processing
Industry Association* (F BB &< BT L% E) from 2010 to
2017, and has successively served as the deputy head of industry
coordination department, head of the aluminium department, and
the vice chairman of China Non-ferrous Metals Industry Association*
(FERBEESEIERBE) from April 2001 to April 2021. Mr. Wen is
currently an independent non-executive director of China Honggiao
Group Limited (stock code: 1378). From October 2008 to July 2021,
Mr. Wen served as an independent non-executive director of China
Zhongwong Holdings Limited (stock code: 1333). The shares of each
of China Honggiao Group Limited and China Zhongwong Holdings
Limited are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management

Ms. Zheng Jianhua (“Ms. Zheng"”), aged 50, has been the chief
financial officer of the Company since 30 September 2022. Ms.
Zheng is also a director of Guangdong Xingfa. Ms. Zheng has
extensive experience in accounting, finance and business
management. Ms. Zheng obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics
(majoring in accounting) from Sun Yat-Sen University in July 1999.
Prior to joining the Group, she worked in various departments and
subsidiaries of the group companies of Guangxin Holdings. From
May 1995 to January 2002, she was a deputy manager of the finance
department of EREEREEERIEBR A, a subsidiary of
Guangdong Foreign Trade Imp. & Exp. Co., Ltd.* (EEREINBFER
B]). In January 2002, she served as a deputy manager of the finance
department of Guangdong Foreign Trade Imp. & Exp. Co., Ltd.* (&
BRAINERIZEAR]), and has been promoted to the manager of the
finance department of Guangdong Foreign Trade Imp. & Exp. Co.,
Ltd.* (BEERAINEFIZ Q7)) since December 2005. She then served
as the deputy head of the clearings department and the deputy head
of the capital management department of Guangxin Holdings from
March 2010 to June 2014. Later, she served as the deputy head of
the operating management department in June 2014 and was then
promoted to the head of the operating management department in
September 2018. Subsequently, she was appointed as the head of
the innovation and strategic management department in February
2019. She has been promoted to the general manager of the
information management department since February 2020. From
January 2021 to August 2022, she was promoted to the deputy
general manager of the strategic management department (Group
Director). Since August 2022, she has been the chief financial officer
of Guangdong Xingfa.

During her employment with Guangxin Holdings, Ms. Zheng also
took up the position of director in various companies invested by
Guangxin Holdings, namely Guangdong Foreign Trade Imp. & Exp.
Co., Ltd.* (IR & SME F % 22 &) (from June 2020 to June 2022),
GMG International Tendering Co., Ltd.* (EIZ& R1ZA ) and 41 54%
32 7] (from June 2020 to August 2022).

*  For identification purpose only
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERAS

Mr. Lin Yan (“Mr. Lin"), aged 55, is the deputy general manager of
Guangdong Xingfa Group. Prior to joining Xingfa Aluminium, Mr. Lin
worked in a state-owned enterprise, Guangdong Metals & Minerals
Import & Export Group Corporation (ERE A eEEE L OEEA
A]), with more than 20 years of experience in international trade. He
was awarded a certificate of Economist by Ministry of Human
Resources of the PRC in 1996. Mr. Lin held a Bachelor Degree in
Economics from Jinan University, the Degree of Executive Master of
Business Administration (EMBA) at South China University of
Technology.

Mr. Liu Yuntang, aged 55, is the deputy general manager of
Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Liu Yuntang joined Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium Profiles Factory in 1993. Prior to joining the Group
in October 1993, Mr. Liu Yuntang worked at Nanhai Guangdong
Cable Factory Co., Ltd. from 1991 to 1993. Mr. Liu Yuntang was
granted a bachelor’s degree in engineering by the Guangdong
Mechanics Institute in 1991. He was certified as assistant engineer in
1993 by the Nanhai City Science Technology Committee and certified
as engineer in 2001 by the Foshan City Human Resources Bureau. He
was awarded as senior engineer by Guangdong Human Resources
and Social Security Department on 4 May 2015, and was granted a
senior Executive Master in Business Administration Degree by Sun
Yat-sen University on 29 December 2015. On 15 December 2020, he
was awarded as Intermediate Certified Safety Engineer by Human
Resources and Social Security Department of the PRC.

*  For identification purpose only
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chen Wensi ("Mr. Chen"”), aged 53, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Chen joined Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium Profiles Factory in 1997. Prior to joining the Group
in January 1997, Mr. Chen worked for Guangdong Chang’e Thermal
Insulation Container Factory (5 8 1% # 4R )& 28 M &) from 1995 to
1996. Mr. Chen graduated from Guangzhou Zhongkai Institute of
Agricultural Technology (E/M 15 B 2T ZFT) in 1995. He was
qualified as a senior engineer in mechanical engineering in 2018. He
is also a member of the Measurement Technology Committee of
China Non-ferrous Metals Industry Association and an expert of the
Expert Committee of China Non-ferrous Metals Processing Industry
Association. Mr. Chen has participated in the development,
management and standardization of scientific research projects from
various national, provincial, municipal and district governments. He
has won 5 excellence awards in patents in China, 3 first prizes of the
excellence awards in technical standards by the National Non-ferrous
Metals Standardization Technical Committee, and 2 progress awards
in science and technology by Guangdong Province. On 4 November
2020, he was awarded as senior engineer in metal pressure
processing by Foshan Science and Technology Association ({311 1 %}
BRI E).

Mr. Guan Dubiao (“Mr. Guan”), aged 53, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Guan is a senior
Economist and is currently the council member of Foshan City CPA
Institute and Foshan City Association of Chief Financial Officers. His
education background is undergraduate, studying business
management (accounting) and economic management. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Guan started his accounting career in the
business department of Foshan Nanzhuang Economic Development
Company. Subsequently, Mr. Guan served as different important
financial positions, such as chief accountant, chief of finance, etc.,
within several group companies of Foshan Nanzhuang Economic
Development Company. Mr. Guan joined the Group in 1999 as
deputy head of finance department and chief accountant and
subsequently promoted as head of finance department. He was
further promoted as deputy general manager of Guangdong Xingfa
Group since September 2011.
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EEREREERAS

Mr. Wu Xi Kun (“Mr. Wu"), aged 52, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group since 12 May 2020. Mr. Wu
obtained Bachelor of Material Science and Engineering from
Guangdong Industrial University in the PRC and joined Guangdong
Xingfa Group in July 1994. Currently, Mr. Wu is a postgraduate
student of Master of Philosophy (Engineering) in Central South
University in the PRC.

Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in the production
management, quality control and research of manufacturing of
aluminium ingots and aluminium profiles. Mr. Wu participated in the
academic research and seminars in the industry. He published the
“Practical Handbook in the Processing Techniques of Aluminium
Profiles” in 2006. He also participated in the set up of various
national standards regarding aluminium profiles.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Wai Ho (“Mr. Pang”), aged 35, joined our Group as the
company secretary of the Company since February 2021. Mr. Pang
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales since March 2015 and August 2022 respectively. He
obtained the Bachelor degree of Business Administration in
Accountancy from City University of Hong Kong in July 2010. He has
more than 10 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and company
secretarial matters. In addition, Mr. Pang was the independent non-
executive director of China Shenghai Group Limited (stock code:
1676) from 19 October 2019 to 1 April 2021.
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The directors (“Directors”) of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
("“Company”) present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), for the year ended 31
December 2023 (“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of other members of the Group are set out
in note 14 in notes to the consolidated financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2023.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 194 of
the annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKDO.64 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: HKDO0.37).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the right to attend the forthcoming
annual general meeting (“Annual General Meeting”) to be held on
Thursday, 30 May 2024, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 27 May 2024 to Thursday, 30 May 2024
(both days inclusive). During such period, no transfer of the shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the attendance
in the annual general meeting, all transfers, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 24 May 2024.

Report of the Directors
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For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 5 June 2024 to Friday, 7 June 2024 (both days inclusive).
During such period, no transfer of the shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 4 June 2024.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five years is set out on page 319 and page 320.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Details of the Group’s loans and borrowings at the balance sheet

date are set out in note 24 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the

Group during the year are set out in note 11 in notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s paid-in capital for the year ended 31

December 2023 are set out in note 29 in notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group made donation of RMB100,000 (2022: RMB102,000) for
charitable or any other purposes during the Year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the Year
or subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a new share option scheme
("Share Option Scheme"”) on 29 December 2017. The Share Option
Scheme became effective for 10 years commencing from 5 January
2018.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity in which the Group
holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme include directors
and employees of the Group or any Invested Entity; any suppliers,
customers, advisers or consultants of the Group or any Invested
Entity; any persons or entities that provide research and development
or other technological support to the Group or any Invested Entity;
any holders of securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and any other groups or classes of
participants whom the Board considers have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

With effect from 1 January 2023, any grant of share options shall
comply with the new requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules which took effect on 1 January 2023.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
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The total number of shares of the Company which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose,
options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group) to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
41,800,000 ordinary shares, being 10% of the ordinary shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme by the
Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on 29
December 2017. As at 1 January 2023, the total number of ordinary
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
39,150,866 shares. As at the date of this report, the total number of
ordinary shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
39,150,866 shares, which represents approximately 9.3% of the
issued shares of the Company as at the date of this report. No service
provider sublimit has been authorised under the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group to each
eligible participant (including exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the
Company from time to time.

The subscription price for shares of the Company under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the directors of the
Company, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the
shares on the offer date, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for trade in one or more board
lots of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Upon acceptance of the grant of an option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant.
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No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled, lapsed or expired
under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December
2023. No share option was outstanding as at 1 January 2023 and 31
December 2023.

Further details of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme are set out in Note 27 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

PLEDGE OF GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's pledged deposits amounting
to approximately RMB124.3 million (31 December 2022: RMB224.7
million) and bills receivable with carrying value of approximately
RMB887.3 million (31 December 2022: RMB771.3 million) were
pledged as security for issuing bills.

As at 31 December 2023, certain plants with net book value of
RMB365.6 million (31 December 2022: RMB370.3 million) and land
use rights under right-of-use assets with carrying value of RMB379.8
million (31 December 2022: RMB217.2 million) were pledged as
security for bank loans and borrowings of the Group.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out in note 29 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands amounted to RMB639,723,000 (2022: RMB585,605,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2023 (2022: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 12.4% (2022: 15.7%) of the
Group's revenue where sales to the largest customer accounted for
5.6% (2022: 6.6%) of the Group's revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 77.0% (2022: 83.4%) of the
Group's total cost of purchase whereas purchases from the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 43.0% (2022: 71.7%) of the
Group's total cost of purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group's five largest customers or five largest suppliers
during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review of this report as required by Schedule 5 to
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
The discussion on a fair review of the Group's business, financial key
performance indicators and performance indicators and performance
and indication of future development of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 can be found in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report. Those discussions form part of this
report of the Directors.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACED
BY THE GROUP

The Group is exposed to various risks and uncertainties. The effects
of such risks may vary over time. The following sets forth material
risks classified by the Group and the relevant alleviating measures for
each material risk for the management of such risks.

Business risks

Firstly, most of the Group’s revenue was generated from customers
in the PRC. Should there be any material adverse change in the
political, economic, legal or social conditions in the PRC and the
Group is unable to divert sales to other markets outside of the PRC,
the turnover, profitability and prospects may be adversely affected.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will continue to put efforts
to expand overseas market and increase the proportion of overseas
sales. During the Year, we have export sales to Australia and
Vietnam. In addition, a joint venture project of the Group in Australia
has completed equipment installation and commissioning, and trial
production is expected to commence in 2024. The Group believes
that setting up factories overseas will help it to understand customer
needs in the overseas market and accelerate the overall overseas
business development. The Group will also continue to review
competitive edges of the Group in the industry and market trend.
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Secondly, the Group's production activities of aluminium profiles rely
on, among other things, sufficient and uninterrupted supply of
aluminium ingots, being our principal raw materials. The Group
procures such principal raw materials from several major suppliers
and has not entered into any long-term purchase contracts with any
of our major suppliers of aluminium ingots for flexibility in purchasing
aluminium ingots at competitive prices at various times.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will conduct investigation
and assessment on suppliers periodically to ensure stable supply
source of raw materials.

Financial risks

Delayed payments of customers who were granted credit period by
the Group will increase the Group’s exposure to financial risks and
have an impact on financial performance and operating cash flows of
the Group.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will review accounts
receivables due from major customers on a regular basis and control
over it to an appropriate level. The Group will also manage and
maintain strict control internally and put additional efforts to collect
trade receivables overdue.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS

Employees

Human resources are the most valuable asset of the Group.
Developing and retaining talents are vital to our success. The
Group is committed to providing our employees with a safe,
pleasant and healthy working environment. The Group rewards
and recognises employees by competitive remuneration
package and implements a key performance index scheme with
appropriate incentives, and promote career development and
progression by providing opportunities for career advancement
to employees.

In addition, each department of the Group is responsible for
determining its training needs for employees in its department
and any suggested applicable training courses either arranged
internally or by external service providers shall be submitted to
the senior management of the Group for approval. Knowledge,
skills and capacities of employees are vital to continuous
business growth and success of the Group. The Group strives
to ensure that all employees can fulfill the relevant job
requirements in terms of education, training, technical and
work experience.

Suppliers

We have developed long-standing relationships with a number
of our vendors and take great care to ensure that they share
our commitment to quality and ethics. We carefully select our
suppliers and require them to satisfy certain assessment criteria
including track record, experience, financial strength,
reputation, ability to produce high-quality products and quality
control effectiveness.

Distributors and customers

We sell our products to distributors and customers. We require
our distributors and customers to comply with the relevant laws
and regulations and our sales and marketing policies, including
but not limited to selling price, promotional activities and usage
of our ERP system. We also monitor the financial condition and
repayment history of our distributors and customers, and their
sales performance.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) to
enhance the transparency of the Company and to facilitate its
shareholders and investors to make informed investment decisions
relating to the Company. The Dividend Policy allows shareholders to
share the Company’s profits while reserving sufficient reserves for the
Group’s future development. Proposed dividends, if any, will be
proposed and declared at the discretion of the Board. When
proposing any dividend payment, the Board will take into
consideration, among others things, the general financial position
and strategies, expected operating cash flows and capital
requirements, surplus, contractual restrictions of the Group, actual
and expected government financial conditions, macroeconomics and
such other factors as the Board may deem relevant from time to
time. Furthermore, any payment of dividend by the Company is
subject to the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the articles
of association of the Company.

Subject to the above factors, the final dividend to be declared and
paid by the Company shall be not less than 30% of the Group’s
audited consolidated profit attributable to the shareholders of the
Company in any financial year.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed by the Board from time to time
and there is no assurance that any dividend will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period or that the Company is
obliged to declare any dividend at any time or from time to time.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCES

As a supporter of environmental protection and taking into account
of the national green manufacturing development plan and guided
by enterprise strategy, the Group formulated the Xingfa Aluminium
Protection System. The primary mission of the Group’s environmental
production policy is to govern production emissions by relying on
technology, comprehensive utilisation of production waste residue,
reduce environmental pollution and develop clean production.

During the Year, the Group has complied with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations in both PRC and Hong Kong.

A further discussion of the environmental policies of the Group is

contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with relevant
requirements could lead to adverse impact on business operation and
financial position of the Group. The Board as a whole is responsible
to ensure the Group is in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company. During
the course of the business operations, the Group shall comply with
different laws and regulations, including i) laws regarding employee
recruitment and benefits, such as the “Labor Law of the PRC”, the
“Labor Contract Law of the PRC”, and the “Rulings of Implementing
the Labor Contract Law of the PRC”; and ii) the PRC national and
local laws and regulations with respect to environmental protection,
including the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group was in strict compliance with
the aforesaid laws and regulations.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023 and as at
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. WANG Li (Chairman)

Mr. LIAO Yuging (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. WANG Lei

Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Mr. LUO Jianfeng

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZUO Manlun
Ms. XIE Jingyun

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy
Mr. WEN Xianjun
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The names of Directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report are available on the Company's website “www.xingfa.com”.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence with
reference to the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and the Company considered all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent. Please refer to the details
disclosed in the section headed “Independent non-executive
Directors” in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 23 to 36 of the annual report.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 33 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in paragraph headed “Connected transactions” in
this report, (i) there is no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance subsisting during or at the end of the Year in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director is or was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly; (ii) no other contract of
significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries with its controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (iii) no other contract of
significance in relation to provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO™)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in Appendix C3 (formerly known as Appendix 10)
of the Listing Rules (“Model Code”), to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position

No. of
ordinary
shares of the
Name of directors Capacity Company
RKAH
R 54 ZERHAE
LIAO Yuging Founder of a discretionary 48,200,100
trust who can influence
how the trustee exercises
his discretion
BEE FREFTEINA - AIHES
SEATERERBEE TR
LAW Yung Koon Beneficial owner 19,432,000
wEAT EnlAA
Interest of spouse 1,719,000
fe B s
WANG Zhihua Beneficial owner 128,000
FEE EnlEA
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SR mAMEARR RBMRIZER - BE
ERARREBITHRABRAR B HEEHE
BEE(EERBSFLHEERMEXVE) 2k
0 AR REREZBEARIT

HR

No. of
underlying Percentage of
shares of the interest in the
Company Total Company
AT EARRF
HEROHE By EEESL
- 48,200,100 11.46%
- 19,432,000 4.62%
- 1,719,000 0.41%
- 128,000 0.03%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBT SECURITIES

Other than the share options granted under the share option scheme
disclosed in note 27 in notes to the consolidated financial statements,
at no time during the year ended 31 December 2023 were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company,or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Director to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 17 March
2008, none of the Directors hold any interests in any business apart
from the Company’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business
for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER R 15 7% 5 & & IR B 55 XV &f H %

PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED TO DISCLOSE

THEIR INTERESTS PURSUANT TO PART XV OF T

THE SFO

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons, other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
are required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position

Name of entities

EEEE

GuangXin (Hong Kong) Investment
Limited
B EBREBRAR

Guangdong Guangxin Holdings
Group Ltd*
BREEFEREEBR AR

State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of
The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*

BREARBNREEEEEEERE
ZEg

Lesso Group Holdings Limited
BREEZERERA

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
BB R EIE IR B R A A

New Fortune Star Limited

"R

Total number of
ordinary shares

Capacity of the Company
ARTFZ

g4 LZiERAH

Beneficial owner 132,382,000

EAA

Interest of controlled corporation 132,382,000

XESEEE S

Interest of controlled corporation 132,382,000

HESEEE S

Beneficial owner 109,842,900
EmEEA
Interest of controlled corporation 109,842,900

HESEEE S

Interest of controlled corporation 109,842,900
SRS AE RS

BRECEBEZTERRREMA

RZBZ=F+ZA=+—H " TIAL(E
EHARBTHRABRIN RARE Z KM
MR P EEALNARAREBEESFLAE
{GRPIZE 336 1M IFE 2 BREMA IR

Percentage of
interest in
the Company
EARRF
EZES

31.47%

31.47%

31.47%

26.11%

26.11%

26.11%
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Name of entities

EXEE

Xi Xi Development Limited
FRERGRAA

UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited
WONG Luen Hei

=HE

Sure Keen Limited
FMIBERA A

Glorious Joy Limited

TMF (Cayman) Limited

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Directors’
interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations” above, as at 31 December 2023, no
other person had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

section 336 of the SFO.

Capacity
&4

Interest of controlled corporation
REEHEEE R

Interest of controlled corporation
RiEHDEEE R

Founder of a discretionary trust
who can influence how the
trustee exercises his discretion

2REFTAIZA  ATZEXFTA

TTREEBBEZ N

Beneficial owner
EmEAA

Interest of controlled corporation
REEEE R

Trustee
ZEEA
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Total number of
ordinary shares
of the Company
AT
BBERAR
109,842,900

109,842,900

109,842,900

48,200,100

48,200,100

48,200,100

Percentage of
interest in
the Company
EARRF
EZEO
26.11%
26.11%

26.11%

11.46%

11.46%

11.46%
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A.  The following entities are connected parties of the Company  A.
and had connected transactions and/or continuing connected
transactions with the Group during the year ended 31

December 2023:

Name of the entity
BERERE

R EEE &P % A PR A A (Guangdong Xingfa
Curtain Wall, Door & Window
Co., Ltd.* ("Xingfa Curtain Wall"))

FEREZRRFIEERAR ([HHERE])

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“China Lesso Group”)

o L 22 SR B R A R R EH A
(T BB 8 )

IPE R B RRBE AR A A
(Jingxing Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*
("Jiangxi Jingxing”))
TRASEEEREEARAR(DIARE])

BREEEREEERAF
(Guangdong Guangxin Holding Group Co., Ltd.*
("Guangxin Holding”))
BREBFIEREBER A A ([ EHZER])

AR ERRIREERRA A
(Henan Province Jingxing Aluminium Panel
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (“Henan Jingxing"))
AR EREREEARAR (DIERE])

*  For identification only
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NTEBARARIZEEAT  WREE
B+ A=t+—HLFERE
REEBETHEIIR SIFHEAER
5

Relationship with the Company
BRA QR Z AR

Owned as to 21% by Mr. LIAO Yuging and as to 46% by
Mr. LUO Su as at the date of this report. Mr. LIAO Yuging
is an executive Director and Mr. LUO Su is the father-in-
law of Mr. LIAO Yuging.

MARERE ABREEREHRA 21 % ER REFHTE
BHENER BEERERWITEETREHTERE
FESEENER -

A substantial shareholder of the Company, holding,
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, approximately
26.11% of the issued shares of the Company as at the
date of this report.
ARARFERREB/BEZEWB RN ARS BRE
RRFEEITRD 24)26.11% o

A non-wholly owned subsidiary of China Lesso, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

hEEBE(ARRN—REERR) 2 F2EHBRA -

The controlling shareholder of the Company and is
indirectly interested in approximately 31.47% of the total
issued shares of the Company as at the date of this report.
RARIERBRE - RARE A EERE ARG D BT
B fn 48 ER#) 31.47 % ©

A non-wholly owned subsidiary of China Lesso, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

REBE (RARARN—RETERR) ZH2EMB AT -
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Name of the entity
BEREEE

BREHRFRE AR QA
(Guangdong Xingfa Environmental Technology
Co., Ltd.*
BREHRFRIARAR ([HEERE])

FEREINE
(Guangdong Province Foreign Trading
Development Co., Limited*

BEAQR @R

("Xingfa Environmental”))

{FHEABRIA

("Guangdong Foreign Trading”))

BERENERBEAR AR ([ERINE])

EMBA

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the following
continuing connected transactions were non-exempt
continuing connected transactions and are subject to the
reporting, announcement and annual review requirements. The
following is a brief description of the continuing connected
transactions:

1. Xingfa Curtain Wall Agreement

(i)

Nature of transactions

Reference is made to the announcements of the
Company dated 30 September 2020 and 19
October 2021, R # 2 a2k F R 2 A (Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.*) (“Guangdong
Xingfa”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Xingfa Curtain Wall entered into
a master supply agreement (“Xingfa Curtain Wall
Agreement”) on 30 September 2020 in relation to
the supply of aluminium profiles to Xingfa Curtain
Wall by Guangdong Xingfa and its subsidiaries
(“Guangdong Xingfa Group”), for a term of three
years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
(both dates inclusive). The aluminium profiles
purchased by Xingfa Curtain Wall were further
processed into windows and curtain walls and sold
to its customers.
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(ii) Annual Cap

(iii)

The annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2023 of the continuing connected transactions set
out above was RMB165.0 million, and the actual
aggregate amount of sale transactions was
approximately RMB63.7 million for the Year.

Internal control procedures

The Group has complied with the following internal
control measures to monitor the pricing and terms
of the transactions in relation to the sale of
aluminium profiles by Guangdong Xingfa Group to
Xingfa Curtain Wall and ensure that the prices and
terms offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group to
Xingfa Curtain Wall will be no more favourable
than prices and terms offered to independent
customers and that the annual cap is not exceeded:

(@  monitoring the prevailing average price of
aluminium ingots as quoted on the
Guangdong Nanhai Nonferrous Metals
Market and/or Shanghai Nonferrous Metals
Market on a daily basis;

(b)  comparing the price and terms of the supply
of aluminium profiles to Xingfa Curtain Wall
with the prices and terms of aluminium
profiles supplied by the Group in the PRC as
agreed with independent customers on a
regular basis;

(¢ adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the price and
terms of supply of aluminium profiles offered
by Guangdong Xingfa Group to Xingfa
Curtain Wall to ensure that they shall be no
more favourable than those offered by the
Group to independent customers; and
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(d) financial report containing information on all
connected transactions carried out by the
Group including the continuing connected
transactions under the Xingfa Curtain Wall
Agreement was submitted to the Board on a
monthly basis.

2023 Lesso Master Supply Agreement (as
amended and supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreement)

(i) Nature of transactions

Reference is made to the announcements of 30
December 2022 and 27 October 2023 and the
circular of the Company dated 28 November 2023.
On 30 December 2022, Guangdong Xingfa and
China Lesso entered into a master supply
agreement (“2023 Lesso Master Supply
Agreement”). The 2023 Lesso Master Supply
Agreement was then amended and supplemented
by the supplemental agreement (“Supplemental
Agreement”) dated 27 October 2023 entered into
between Guangdong Xingfa and China Lesso.
Pursuant to the 2023 Lesso Master Supply
Agreement (as amended and supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreement), Guangdong Xingfa
Group, as suppliers, would supply and China Lesso
and its subsidiaries (“China Lesso Group”), as
purchasers, would purchase aluminium profiles
and/or panels supplied by Guangdong Xingfa
Group members on an on-going basis for a term of
three years from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2025 (both dates inclusive).

(ij) Annual Cap

The annual cap in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the 2023 Lesso Master Supply
Agreement (as amended and supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreement) for the Year was
RMB300,000,000, and the actual aggregate
amount of purchase and sale transactions was
approximately RMB202,700,000 for the Year.
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(iii) Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with the
following internal control measures to monitor the
pricing and terms of the transactions under the
2023 Lesso Master Supply Agreement (as amended
and supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) and ensure that the prices and terms
offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group to China
Lesso Group were no more favourable than prices
and terms offered to independent customers and
that the annual cap was not exceeded:

(a)

monitoring the prevailing average price of
aluminium ingots as quoted on Guangdong
Nanhai Nonferrous Metals Market on a daily
basis;

comparing the prices and terms of the supply
of aluminium profiles and/or panels to China
Lesso Group with the prices and terms of
aluminium profiles and/or panels supplied by
the Group in the PRC as agreed with
independent customers on a regular basis;

adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the prices and
terms of supply of aluminium profiles and/or
panels offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group
to China Lesso Group to ensure that they
would be no more favourable than those
offered by the Group to independent
customers; and

financial report containing information on all
connected transactions carried out by the
Group including the continuing connected
transactions under the 2023 Lesso Master
Supply Agreement (as amended and
supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) was submitted to the Board on a
monthly basis.
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Further details of the 2023 Lesso Master Supply
Agreement (as amended and supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreement) were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 30
December 2022 and 27 October 2023 and the
circular of the Company dated 28 November 2023.

3. 2023 Guangdong Foreign Trading Group
Master Supply Agreement

()

(ii)

Nature of transactions

On 16 October 2023, Guangdong Xingfa and
Guangdong Foreign Trading entered into a master
supply agreement (2023 Guangdong Foreign
Trading Group Master Supply Agreement”)
pursuant to which Guangdong Xingfa Group, as
suppliers, agreed to sell to Guangdong Foreign
Trading Group, as purchasers, aluminium profiles
and/or panels for a term from 16 October 2023 to
31 December 2023 (both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the 2023 Guangdong Foreign
Trading Group Master Supply Agreement for the
period from 16 October 2023 to 31 December
2023 was RMB30,000,000, and the actual
aggregate amount of sales transactions were
approximately RMB8,700,000 for the period from
16 October 2023 to 31 December 2023.
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(iii) Internal control procedures

During the period from 16 October 2023 to 31
December 2023, the Group has complied with the
following internal control measures to monitor the
pricing and terms of the transactions under the
2023 Guangdong Foreign Trading Group Master
Supply Agreement and to ensure that the prices
and terms offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group to
Guangdong Foreign Trading Group were no more
favourable than prices and terms offered to
independent customers and that the annual cap
was not exceeded:

M

monitoring the prevailing average price of
aluminium ingots as quoted on Guangdong
Nanhai Nonferrous Metals Market on a daily
basis;

comparing the prices and terms of the supply
of aluminium profiles and/or panels to
Guangdong Foreign Trading Group with the
prices and terms of aluminium profiles and/or
panels supplied by the Group in the PRC as
agreed with independent customers on a
regular basis;

adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the prices and
terms of supply of aluminium profiles and/or
panels offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group
to Guangdong Foreign Trading Group
members to ensure that they were no more
favourable than those offered by the Group
to independent customers;

financial report containing information on all
connected transactions carried out by the
Group, including the continuing connected
transactions under the 2023 Guangdong
Foreign Trading Group Master Supply
Agreement, were submitted to the Board on
a monthly basis.
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Further details of the 2023 Guangdong Foreign
Trading Group Master Supply Agreement were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated
16 October 2023.

4. 2023 Tenancy Agreement A

(i)

(ii)

Nature of transaction

On 30 December 2022, ERFEin 2 O ) BIR
A A) (Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Henan) Co.,
Ltd.*) (“Xingfa Henan"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as landlord, and Henan
Jingxing, as tenant, entered into a tenancy
agreement (“2023 Tenancy Agreement A")
pursuant to which Xingfa Henan agreed to lease
the property located at BRI & b k5L dt T
% % 2 [& (Qinbei Industrial District, Qinyang City,
Henan Province, the PRC*) to Henan Jingxing for
the welding, assembling, recycling and
maintenance of aluminium panels which were
applied as construction materials and the sale of
such aluminium panels for a fixed term of one year
from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (both
dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions contemplated
under the 2023 Tenancy Agreement A for the
period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023
was RMB3,171,888, and the actual aggregate
amount of rent was approximately RMB3,171,888.
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(iii) Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with the
following internal control measures to monitor the
rent and terms of the transactions under the 2023
Tenancy Agreement A and to ensure that the rent
and terms offered by Xingfa Henan to Henan
Jingxing would be no more favourable than the
rent and terms offered to independent tenants and
that the annual cap was not exceeded:

(@ monitoring the prevailing market rent at
similar locations on a quarterly basis;

(b) adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the rent under the
2023 Tenancy Agreement A to ensure that
they were no more favourable than those
offered by the Group to independent tenants;
and

(¢)  financial report containing information on all
connected transactions carried out by the
Group including the continuing connected
transactions under 2023 Tenancy Agreement
A was submitted to the Board on a monthly
basis.

Further details of the 2023 Tenancy Agreement A
were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 30 December 2022.
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5.

2023 Tenancy Agreement B

(i)

(ii)

Nature of transactions

On 30 December 2022, R E a3 (I H) AR
/B (Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co.,
Ltd.*) (“Xingfa Jiangxi”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as landlord, and Jiangxi
Jingxing, as tenant, entered into a tenancy
agreement (“2023 Tenancy Agreement B")
pursuant to which Xingfa Jiangxi agreed to lease
the property located at A BT 75 & B & 485 & i
B[R AC 24 K38 21 5% (No. 21, Jingfa Road, Yichun
Economic Development Zone, Jiangxi Province, the
PRC*) to Jiangxi Jingxing for the manufacturing of
aluminum panels for a fixed term of one year from
1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (both dates
inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions contemplated
under the 2023 Tenancy Agreement B for the
period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023
was RMB4,296,528, and the actual aggregate
amount of rent was approximately RMB4,296,527.
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(iii) Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with the
following internal control measures to monitor the
rent and terms of the transactions under the 2023
Tenancy Agreement B and to ensure that the rent
and terms offered by Xingfa Jiangxi to Jiangxi
Jingxing would be no more favourable than the
rent and terms offered to independent tenants and
that the annual cap was not exceeded:

(@ monitoring the prevailing market rent at
similar locations on a quarterly basis;

(b) adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the rent under the
2023 Tenancy Agreement B to ensure that
they were no more favourable than those
offered by the Group to independent tenants;
and

(¢)  financial report containing information on all
connected transactions carried out by the
Group including the continuing connected
transactions under 2023 Tenancy Agreement
B was submitted to the Board on a monthly
basis.

Further details of the 2023 Tenancy Agreement B
were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 30 December 2022.
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6.

Xingfa Precision Tenancy Agreement

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Nature of transactions

Reference is made to the announcements of the
Company dated 31 December 2021 and 16
October 2023. On 16 October 2023, E R H 5%
2 #% A& PR 2 7l (Guangdong Xingfa Precision
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*) (“Xingfa Precision”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as landlord, and Xingfa Environmental, as tenant,
entered into a tenancy agreement (“Xingfa
Precision Tenancy Agreement”) pursuant to which
Xingfa Precision agreed to lease the property
located at B SR & 1L T = /KR EEF A O R}
B T % BEDIE&12% (No. 12 Central Science and
Technology Industrial Zone D, Leping Town, Foshan
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC*) to Xingfa
Precision for the processing and recycling of waste
resources for a fixed term of nineteen years from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2041 (both dates
inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions contemplated
under the Xingfa Precision Tenancy Agreement for
the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023 was RMB4,228,285, and the actual aggregate
amount of rent was approximately RMB3,954,707.

Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with the
following internal control measures to monitor the
rent and terms of the transactions under the Xingfa
Precision Tenancy Agreement and to ensure that
the rent and terms offered by Xingfa Precision to
Xingfa Environmental were no more favourable
than the rent and terms offered to independent
tenants and that the annual cap was not exceeded:

(@ monitoring the prevailing market rent at
similar locations on a quarterly basis;
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(b) adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the rent under
Xingfa Precision Tenancy Agreement to
ensure that they were no more favourable
than those offered by the Group to
independent tenants; and

(¢)  financial report containing information on all
connected transactions carried out by the
Group including the continuing connected
transactions under New Tenancy Agreement
was submitted to the Board on a monthly
basis.

Further details of the Xingfa Precision Tenancy
Agreement were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 31 December 2021 and 16
October 2023.

7. 2023 Engineering Service Agreement

(i)

(ii)

Nature of transactions

On 30 December 2022, Guangdong Xingfa and
Xingfa Curtain Wall entered into a service
agreement (“2023 Engineering Service
Agreement”) pursuant to which Xingfa Curtain
Wall agreed to provide the certain engineering
services, including but not limited to the installation
of windows, doors and curtain walls (“Engineering
Services”), to Guangdong Xingfa Group members
for a fixed term of one year from 1 January 2023 to
31 December 2023 (both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions contemplated
under the 2023 Engineering Service Agreement for
the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023 was RMB7,500,000 and the actual aggregate
amount of service fee was approximately
RMB2,500,000 for the period from 1 January 2023
to 31 December 2023.

Report of the Directors

EETHE

(b)) FRAXREEEHBER
2 2 AR N EB B 1% HUR
ERREBETAE RS
BETzHEE BERAETD
BRAKERBIAEP
Frieft®E &

(0 BAREFSRXEA
ARARBETZRA
%L&%C@%%ﬁf%

BE N ZFRERERS)
ZéﬂZ%Wﬁ%°

m%ﬁ THEGEE—
SHNARBEHE T ——
F+-A=+—HERZZE=_=

FHA+RBZAM -

7. ZE=HIER¥EH=E
(i) XGME

RZZBZZF+=ZA=+H"
JE R B B B G AT AL AR TS
BER(ZEZ=FTERY
WiEl) Bl BEREERE
MEREBEEERNE A AR MH
ATIRERE  BEFEEATRR
ZEREP  FIRERK (I ITER
%D FHAE—F BZF
—=F—A—HREZZT=_=
F+-ZRA=+—H1L(BEH
EmB)EE R o

(i) FELR

Wf?f F-H—HE=E
T=FF+ZA=+— Et%
ﬁ TE - =FIERBHE
HETZHERAMR I FE L
R & A R #7,500,0007C * i
E-ZE-_=F—A—HREZ
=&+ -A=t+—HIH
Mz RBEERRSELNAA
2,500,000 7T °

Annual Report 2023 F % 65



Report of the Directors

EEEHE

66

(iii) Internal control procedures

During the period from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2023, the Group has complied with the
following internal control measures to monitor the
pricing and terms of the transactions contemplated
under the 2023 Engineering Service Agreement
and to ensure that the service fees and terms
offered by Xingfa Curtain Wall to Guangdong
Xingfa Group were no less favourable than service
fees and terms offered to Guangdong Xingfa
Group by independent suppliers and that the
annual cap was not exceeded:

(@) monitoring the prevailing average market
service fee of the engineering service which is
identical to or comparable to the Engineering
Services;

(b)  comparing the service fees and terms of the
provision of Engineering Services by Xingfa
Curtain Wall with the service fees and terms
of the provision of engineering services in
the PRC as agreed with or quoted by
independent suppliers on a regular basis;

() adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the service fees
and terms of provision of Engineering Services
by Xingfa Curtain Wall to Guangdong Xingfa
Group to ensure that they shall be no less
favourable than those offered by independent
suppliers; and

(d) financial report containing information on all
connected transactions carried out by the
Group, including the continuing connected
transactions under the 2023 Engineering
Service Agreement, was submitted to the
Board on a monthly basis.

Further details of the 2023 Engineering Service
Agreement were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 30 December 2022.
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8. 2023 Hazardous Waste Processing Service
Agreement

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Nature of transactions

On 30 December 2022, Guangdong Xingfa and
Xingfa Environmental entered into a service
agreement (“2023 Hazardous Waste Processing
Service Agreement”) pursuant to which Xingfa
Environmental agreed to provide certain hazardous
waste processing and disposal services (“Hazardous
Waste Processing Services”), to Guangdong Xingfa
Group members for a fixed term of one year from
1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (both dates
inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions contemplated
under the 2023 Hazardous Waste Processing
Services Agreement for the period from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2023 was RMB5,610,000
and the actual aggregate amount of service fee
was approximately RMB3,100,000 for the period
from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

Internal control procedures

During the period from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2023, the Group has complied with the
following internal control measures to monitor the
pricing and terms of the transactions contemplated
under the 2023 Hazardous Waste Processing
Agreement Service Agreement and to ensure that
the service fees and terms offered by Xingfa
Environmental to Guangdong Xingfa Group were
no less favourable than service fees and terms
offered to Guangdong Xingfa Group by
independent suppliers and that the annual cap was
not exceeded:
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monitoring the prevailing average market
service fee of hazardous waste processing
services which is identical to or comparable to
the Hazardous Waste Processing Services;

comparing the service fees and terms of the
provision of Hazardous Waste Processing
Services by Xingfa Environmental with the
service fees and terms of the provision of
hazardous waste processing services in the
PRC as agreed with or quoted by
independent suppliers on a regular basis;

adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the service fees
and terms of provision of Hazardous Waste
Processing Services by Xingfa Environmental
to Guangdong Xingfa Group to ensure that
they were no less favourable than those
offered by independent suppliers; and

financial report containing information on all
connected transactions carried out by the
Group, including the continuing connected
transactions under the 2023 Hazardous
Waste Processing Service Agreement, was
submitted to the Board on a monthly basis.
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Further details of the 2023 Hazardous Waste Processing
Service Agreement were set out in the announcement
dated 30 December 2022.

Views of the independent non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions carried out
pursuant to Xingfa Curtain Wall Agreement, 2023 Lesso
Master Supply Agreement (as amended and
supplemented by the Supplemental Agreement), 2023
Guangdong Foreign Trading Group Master Supply
Agreement, 2023 Tenancy Agreement A, 2023 Tenancy
Agreement B, Xingfa Precision Tenancy Agreement, 2023
Engineering Service Agreement and 2023 Hazardous
Waste Processing Service Agreement, and have
considered the information on internal control procedures
referred to in sections B.1(iii), B.2(iii), B.3(iii), B4(iii), B5(iii),
B6(iii), B7(iii) and B8(iii) above, and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to
or from independent third parties (as the case may
be); and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.
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10. Review by the auditors

The auditors of the Company was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
"Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditors have issued its letter to the Board containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions as set out in this sections “B1"” to
“B8" above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. The auditors confirmed that:

(i) nothing has come to the attention of the auditors
that caused the auditors to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;

(i) for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, nothing has come to the
attention of the auditors that caused the auditors
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(i) nothing has come to the attention of the auditors
that caused the auditors to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions were
not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and

(iv)  with respect to the aggregate amount of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has
come to the attention of the auditors that caused
the auditors to believe the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual
cap as set by the Company.
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11.

The 2024-2026 Xingfa Curtain Wall Master
Supply Agreement, 2024 Guangdong Foreign
Trading Group Master Supply Agreement,
2024 Henan Tenancy Agreement, 2024 Jiangxi
Tenancy Agreement, the 2024-2026
Engineering Service Agreement and the 2024~
2026 Hazardous Waste Processing Service
Agreement (collectively as the “2024 CCT
Agreements”)

Given that the parties to each of the Xingfa Curtain Wall
Agreement, 2023 Tenancy Agreement A, 2023 Tenancy
Agreement B, the 2023 Engineering Service Agreement
and 2023 Hazardous Waste Processing Service
Agreement expected that the continuing connected
transactions contemplated thereunder would continue on
an on-going basis, on 29 December 2023:

() Guangdong Xingfa and Xingfa Curtain Wall
entered into a new master supply agreement
("2024-2026 Xingfa Curtain Wall Master Supply
Agreement”) for a term of three years from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2026 (both dates
inclusive);

(i)  Guangdong Xingfa and Guangdong Foreign
Trading Group entered into a new master supply
agreement (“2024 Guangdong Foreign Trading
Group Master Supply Agreement”) for a term of
one year from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024 (both dates inclusive);
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(i) Xingfa Henan and Henan Jingxing entered into a
new tenancy agreement (“2024 Henan Tenancy
Agreement”) for a fixed term of one year from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2024 (both dates
inclusive);

(iv)  Xingfa Jiangxi and Jiangxi Jingxing entered into a
new tenancy agreement (“2024 Jiangxi Tenancy
Agreement”) for a fixed term of one year from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2024 (both dates
inclusive);

(v  Guangdong Xingfa and Xingfa Curtain Wall
entered into a new service agreement (”2024-2026
Engineering Service Agreement”) for a term of
three years from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2026 (both dates inclusive); and

(vij  Guangdong Xingfa and Xingfa Environmental
entered into a new service agreement (“2024-2026
Hazardous Waste Processing Service Agreement”)
for a term of three years from 1 January 2024 to
31 December 2026 (both dates inclusive).

The terms and conditions (including the pricing policies)
of each of the 2024-2026 Xingfa Curtain Wall Master
Supply Agreement, 2024 Guangdong Foreign Trading
Group Master Supply Agreement, 2024 Henan Tenancy
Agreement, 2024 Jiangxi Tenancy Agreement, 2024-
2026 Engineering Service Agreement and 2024-2026
Hazardous Waste Processing Service Agreement are
substantially similar to those of the Xingfa Curtain Wall
Agreement, 2023 Guangdong Foreign Trading Group
Master Supply Agreement, 2023 Tenancy Agreement A,
2023 Tenancy Agreement B, 2023 Engineering Service
Agreement and 2023 Hazardous Waste Processing
Service Agreement respectively. Further details of the
2024 CCT Agreements were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 December
2023.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the following
connected transaction was non-exempt connected transactions
and was subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements. The following is a brief description of the
connected transaction:

Disposal of 40% eugqity interest in Xingfa
Environmental

On 29 December 2023, Xingfa Environmental and T #fok 38
R B B& 5 B B 2 7] (Jiangsu Yongbao Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd.*) (“Yongbao Environmental”) entered
into the equity transfer agreement dated 29 December 2023
(“Equity Transfer Agreement”) pursuant to which Guangdong
Xingfa, as vendor, agreed to transfer and Yongbao
Environmental, as purchaser, agreed to acquire 40% of the
equity interest of Xingfa Environmental (“Disposal”). As at the
date of Equity Transfer Agreement, (i) Xingfa Environmental
was indirectly owned as to 40% by the Group through
Guangdong Xingfa and as to 60% by Yongbao Environmental;
and (ii) Yongbao Environmental was a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of China Lesso, a substantial Shareholder. According
to the public record immediately after the change in business
registration in respect of the Disposal which took place in
February 2024, Xingfa Environmental was wholly-owned by
Yongbao Environmental and Guangdong Xingfa ceased to hold
any equity interest in Xingfa Environmental.

The Directors confirm that the material related party
transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the
case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors
confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with all
the code provisions of the prevailing Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 (formerly known as Appendix 14) to
the Listing Rules for year ended 31 December 2023.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in
Appendix C3 (formerly known as Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct (“Code of Conduct”) regarding Directors’
securities transactions. After having made specific enquiry with all
Directors, the Company has received confirmations from all Directors
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code and the Code of Conduct for the Year.

The Company has also adopted procedures on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code in respect of the securities transactions of the
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws
of Hong Kong)) for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force
and was in force throughout the Year.
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR

No significant event has occurred after the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and

within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been audited by KPMG.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

WANG Li
Chairman

Foshan China, 21 March 2024
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The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix C1 (formerly known as Appendix 14) to the Listing
Rules (“Corporate Governance Code”) during the year ended 31
December 2023. In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had
complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance
of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent procedures
are in place to protect and maximise the interests of the
Shareholders.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance
practices adopted and observed by the Company throughout the
year ended 31 December 2023.

A. DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix C3 (formerly known as Appendix 10) to the Listing
Rules (“Model Code"”) as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code and its
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Corporate Governance Report

B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

0]

(i)

Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of executive
Directors and non-executive Directors. As at the date of
this report, the Board consisted of the following
Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. WANG Li (Chairman)

Mr. LIAO Yuging (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. WANG Lei

Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Mr. LUO Jianfeng

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZUO Manlun
Ms. XIE Jingyun

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy
Mr. WEN Xianjun

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company, overseeing the Group’s businesses,
approving investment and strategic plans, maintaining
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems, and monitoring the performance
of the Group. There are currently three committees
established under the Board, being the audit committee,
nomination committee and the remuneration committee.
Each committee has its terms of reference and reports to
the Board regularly.
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(iii)

In addition, the executive Directors, with the assistance
from the senior management, form the core
management team of the Company. The executive
Directors have the overall responsibility for formulating
the business strategies and development plan of the
Group and the senior management are responsible for
supervising and executing such plans of the Group.

Board meetings

During the Year, four full board meetings were held, at
which, among other matters:

—  the Directors approved the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
reviewed the related results announcement, annual
report and the circular to the Shareholders in
relation, amongst others, to the general mandate
proposal and re-election of the Directors retiring by
rotation;

— the Directors approved the interim results of the
Group for the six months ended 30 June 2023 and
reviewed the related results announcement; and

— the Directors approved the annual caps of
continued connected transactions for the year
ending 31 December 2024.

During the Year, the Board also discussed and approved
the Group’s affairs by way of circulation of written
resolutions.

Prior notices convening the Board meetings were
despatched to the Directors setting out the matters to be
discussed. At the Board meetings, the Directors were
provided with the relevant documents to be discussed
and approved. The company secretary of the Company is
responsible for keeping minutes of the Board meetings.
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(iv) Attendance record

The following is the attendance record of the meetings
held by the Board and general meeting held during the
year ended 31 December 2023:

Executive Directors: HITEE:

Mr. WANG Li (Chairman) TURE(FE)

Mr. LIAO Yuging (Chief Executive Officer) BB 54 (7TR #E5)
Mr. WANG Lei TEEE

Mr. LAW Yung Koon FERTLE

Mr. WANG Zhihua THEELE

Mr. LUO Jianfeng BEEBRE
Non-executive Directors: HBITEE

Mr. ZUO Manlun mmE

Ms. XIE Jingyun HEERT

Independent non-executive Directors: BV HHTEE :

Mr. CHEN Mo PRERSE 4

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu MEBZEEE
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy MREB S 4
Mr. WEN Xianjun XEE L

EREREHE

UWTAEAREBEE-_ZE-_=F+=A
— Tt HUIFEmMBETzEES S
B ETN =l T aa

Attendance at meeting

BELESR
Board General
Meetings Meetings
EzgeE BRRAE
4/4 2/2
3/4 212
4/4 212
4/4 212
4/4 212
4/4 2/2
4/4 212
3/4 0/2
4/4 172
3/4 212
4/4 212
4/4 212
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Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed four independent non-executive
Directors. The Board considers that all independent non-
executive Directors have the appropriate and sufficient
industry or finance experience and qualifications to carry
out their duties so as to protect the interests of
shareholders of the Company. In compliance with Rule
3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules, one of the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy,
has over 30 years of experience in the accounting,
banking and finance sectors and is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence with reference to the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considered that
each of the independent non-executive Directors, with a
diverse business and professional background as well as
his in-depth understanding of the Company’s operations
and business, have brought his valuable experience to the
Board and contributed to ensuring that the interests of
the Company’s shareholders were taken into account. In
assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, particular consideration is paid to
those independent non-executive Directors who have
been serving on the Board for more than 9 years and
seeking re-election in the forthcoming annual general
meeting. When appropriate, reasons will be given in the
annual general meeting circular to explain why the Board
believes those independent non-executive Directors are
still independent and should be re-elected.

By virtue of the above, the Board considers that all four
independent non-executive Directors as at the date of
this report, namely, Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu,
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy and Mr. WEN Xianjun were
independent having regard to the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Relationship among members of the Board

Mr. LIAO Yuging, an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company, is the son-in-law of
Mr. LUO Su, the Honourable Adviser of the Group. Save
as aforesaid, there is no other relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material relationship)
between any of the Directors, the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. All of the Directors are
free to exercise their independent judgement.

Continuous professional development

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
has provided regular updates to Directors on material
changes to regulatory requirements applicable to the
Directors and the Company and on the latest business
development of the Company. The Directors confirmed
that they have complied with code provision C.1.4 of the
Corporate Governance Code on directors’ training.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, all Directors,
namely Mr. WANG Li, Mr. LIAO Yuging, Mr. WANG Lei,
Mr. LAW Yung Koon, Mr. WANG Zhihua, Mr. LUO
Jianfeng, Mr. ZUO Manlun, Ms. XIE Jingyun, Mr. CHEN
Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy, and
Mr. WEN Xianjun, have participated in continuous
professional development by reading materials to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills in areas related to
their roles, functions and duties of Directors such as
corporate governance, regulatory updates and topics
related to aluminium industry, and provided their
respective record of training to the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are
segregated. The Chairman, Mr. WANG Li, is chiefly responsible
for managing the Board. Mr. LIAO Yuging is the chief executive
officer of the Company who takes charge of the supervision of
the execution of the policies determined by the Board. The
Chairman also chairs the Board meetings and briefs the Board
members on the issues discussed at the Board meetings.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu and Mr. WEN Xianjun
has been appointed for a fixed term of three years commencing
from 4 August 2021 and Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy has been
appointed for a fixed term of three years commencing from 1
April 2023.

Each of Mr. ZUO Manlun and Ms. XIE Jingyun has been
appointed for a fixed term of three years commencing from 1
April 2023.

The independent non-executive Directors have attended the
Board meetings and provided independent judgement on the
issues discussed thereat.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a remuneration committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the remuneration committee comprised Mr. HO Kwan Yiu
(chairman of the remuneration committee), Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr.
LAM Ying Hung, Andy and Mr. WANG Li and Mr. LIAO Yuging.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to
review and make recommendations to the Board on the terms
of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation
payable to the Directors and senior management. The
remuneration committee shall also be responsible for review
and/or approve matters relating to share option scheme of the
Company. No share option has been granted by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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It is the Company’s policy that the remuneration package of
each Director and senior management shall be determined by
reference to the duties, responsibilities, experience and
qualifications of each candidate.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration
committee has held one meeting, at which the remuneration
committee members have reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package
of certain Directors.

The following sets out the attendance record of the meeting
held by the remuneration committee during the year ended 31
December 2023:

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu EEE=3 e
Mr. WANG Li FaeAE
Mr. LIAO Yuging BEELA
Mr. CHEN Mo PR 2R 5
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy RIS

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a nomination committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the nomination committee comprised Mr. WANG Li (chairman
of the nomination committee), Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, Mr. CHEN
Mo, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy and Mr. ZUO Manlun. The
primary duties of the nomination committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the nominees for
appointment as Directors and senior management of the
Group.

EREREHE

REARARR  BREELRSREEE
ZHMAARR2EEREAZBE &
£ ERhkERMmMEE -

BEZT--F+ZA=t—HLFE"
FHZEECRTREH FHEES
REEE EEMILRE TEENTH M
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NTHIIFMEEERBE_T _=F
ToA=1T"BLFERTERILRE
FOEE

Attendance at
meeting

BELER

11
7
7
11
11
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, no meeting was
held by the nomination committee. During the Year, members
of the nomination committee have considered matters relating
to the re-election of Directors.

According to the articles of association of the Company, one-
third of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from
the office and offer themselves for re-election. The Directors to
be retired by rotation shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last appointment. At a full Board meeting held
on 15 March 2023, the Directors have reviewed the Directors
who would retire at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 25 May 2023 and approved the
recommendation of re-electing such Directors at the aforesaid
annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain the highest standards of
corporate governance and recognizes and embraces the
benefits of diversity in the Board. The Board has adopted a
Board Diversity Policy (“Board Diversity Policy”) to comply with
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code which
was effective from 1 September 2013. The Company believes
that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved through
consideration of a number of factors including, but not limited
to, skills, regional and industry experience, cultural and
educational background, race, gender and other qualities. In
informing its perspective on diversity, the Company will also
take into account factors based on its own business model and
specific needs from time to time. The composition, experience
and balance of skills on the Board retains core members with
longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new
Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring fresh
perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The Board
considers that gender diversity is vital in order to achieve a
diverse Board composition. To achieve gender diversity within
the Board, the Company’s objective is to have at least 1 female
director in the Board composition. At present, out of the 12
Board members, 11 of them are male and 1 of them is a
female.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 R%ZRER AT

REBEE-_ZT-_=F+_A=+—HItF
B REZZEeVWERITEH NAFE
B RRLEekEEEEHERES

MEE -

RIEARR ZAMERMAA - =Dz —F
EEBERET WHELFE =2 F
o RAREBEOETN VDR =02 — 2 B#
IREW A EREE - BT RERECE
EEAARS I NEZTRATHA
ERE E-_ZT-_=F=ATHBEHETZ
BEfeziBesl  ETERFIEREARD
AT =—FRA-THEHBTZK
HBEFAG ERIEE  WHHEKEZS
EERARAFIMZBREBAFAG LE
BE(T o

ARBA T SKEAETGZRE M
FeeKF2o¥Es  BTHRERRE
et dn c EEERMNEFES
TEBRTEFEZTTICERR]) ATA
R-ZE—=FNANA-BERZEXENR
WEZ TR - RRABRRZTTLEE
AEEEEE THREMER - BRETR
RECRE - R RITERR  XERHEE
=k ERIREMER - REFNS
THLBEE - AARTREAR S T2
EBEARFHIREEEFEE -EFQ
AR~ KB MG e R ER S AKE A
BERURBZIBOKENARBEZTES
KB R T ARBR I TRERELZ
MEZ -BEF2ERR - MHIZTLRER
ZIEFEHKNRR  REREFEN
HRIZTl  ARBRNBEREESTSM
RAELE-—BLMEE - BRI £12
REZERET EFNEARBE 14
R -



Corporate Governance Report

The process for the nomination of Directors is led by the
nomination committee, which has been made on a merit basis.
A nomination policy (“Nomination Policy”) was adopted on 31
December 2018 and became effective on 1 January 2019,
which serves to improve the transparency of the process and
criteria in selecting and recommending candidates as directors
of the Company for the Board’s approval from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The Directors
and the nomination committee will consider and nominate
candidates according to the Nomination Policy based on
objective criteria with due regard to the benefits of diversity as
set out in the Board Diversity Policy, to the Board for approval.
In identifying individuals and making recommendations for
nominations, the nomination committee considers whether
such individuals have the appropriate qualifications, ability and
perspectives that would enable them to effectively fulfill their
roles and responsibilities as directors of the Company. The
Board will review the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination
Policy on a regular basis to ensure their continued effectiveness.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the nomination
committee was satisfied with the diversity of the existing Board
composition and did not, for the time being, set up any
measurable objective regarding board diversity.

The following sets out the gender distribution in the workforce
of the Group (including senior management):

Employment by gender

R & D KR

Male 21
Female g

EEBAK

Total number of employees

EREREHE

REZESTENEHAEEIFERH IR
FEEREF - ARBR-ZE—\F+_A
—t—HEMA -BERBBEER(RA K
F]) RERBER-_Z-NF—A—HBi#
£ ZECREERRESNEERHEEAR
RBEERBANEHSESTEILENAR
BREZTEMATAEENEFESS
R TREATES ATEMNEFER
ERIZE - EERRAZESHRERS
BORENBEIZE  WEH AT REES
LI BRE 2 Znb 2 851k - B
DRAFEANEEETSIE - NYEE
ARBIRZIEHERER  IREZCZE
EABEASTHEEABEER 6 MBS
FHEBMBITEEAERRRES B
EREA -E=ZCHTHRNESEET
(LB RIRARE  UHERESERW -
REBEE-_E-_=F+-_A=+—H1LF
[ REZECENRBESIRR S
T NERTEREES 2 Z LRI T
A2 2 BIZ -

NTHIANEEET (BESREERE)
BRI -

Percentage of

the total

Number of workforce
employees  of the Group
hEEER

ETHEN

EE A Bk
7,450 81.1%

1,735 18.9%

9,185 100%
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POLICY IN RELATION TO INDEPENDENT
VIEWS AVAILABLE TO THE BOARD

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board adopted
the Policy in relation to Independent Views Available to the
Board which aims to ensure independent views and input are
available to the Board.

The Policy in relation to Independent Views Available to the
Board served as a guideline on the requirements in relation to
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-
executive Directors shall satisfy the independence criteria under
the Listing Rules on Stock Exchange. In this connection, each
independent non-executive Director is required to confirm in
writing to the Company his/her independence upon his/her
appointment as a director of the Company with reference to
the independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director is also
required to inform the Company and the Stock Exchange as
soon as practicable if there is any subsequent change of
circumstances which may affect his/her independence and
must provide an annual confirmation of his/her independence
to the Company. An annual review shall be conducted by the
Company to assess the continuing independence of
independent non-executive Directors, with attention to
ensuring that they remain independent in character and
judgement, and continue to present an objective and
constructive challenge to the assumptions and viewpoints
presented by the management and the Board.

The implementation and the effectiveness of the Policy in

relation to Independent Views Available to the Board are
subject to review by the Board on an annual basis.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

During the Year, the range of remuneration payable to the
members of the senior management (other than the Directors)
of the Group is set out below:

EREREHE

REEEFMH

an

FR- BRAKESREEBRE (ES
BRON v F BN EE ST -

Number of
Remuneration range persons
FEEE AE
Nil to RMB 1,000,000 Z & AR 1,000,0007T 1

RMB1,000,001 to RMB 1,500,000
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, KPMG, the Group's
external auditors, provided annual audit services and other
non-audit services to the Company. A breakdown of the
remuneration of the Group’s external auditors is as follows:

Audit service ERRE
Annual audit services FEEZRE
Other non-audit services E A IEBAZ RS

(among others, for reviewing the interim
financial information of the Group)

AR# 1,000,001 JTE AR 1,500,000 7T -
ARH#1,500,001 7T E AR 2,000,000 7T

R

REBEEZZE-_=F+_A=+—HLF
B AEBEINIZEAE SRR ES
FrrR AR el FEEZRG R EMIE
BIZRH - NEB NI IZEEN < BN & AR AR
s

For the year ended

31 December 2023
Bz=-—®=-=

+=-A=+-—H

FEE

(RMB’000)

(AE#TFT)

2,052

(BREALKETHRPHEER)

920
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference based upon the code provisions and
recommended practices of the Corporate Governance Code.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
systems of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2023, in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
members of the audit committee comprised Mr. LAM Ying
Hung, Andy (chairman of the audit committee), Mr. CHEN Mo
and Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, being the independent non-executive
Directors, and Ms. XIE Jingyun being a non-executive Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the audit committee
has held two meetings, at which:

— the audit committee members have reviewed and
discussed with the external auditors of the Company the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022, who is of the opinion that
such statements complied with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements, and
that adequate disclosures have been made;

— the audit committee have reviewed the reasonableness
and fairness of the continuing connected transactions of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022; and

— the audit committee members have reviewed and
discussed with the external auditors of the Company the
Group's unaudited consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2023.

The following is the attendance record of the meetings held by
the audit committee during the year ended 31 December 2023:

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy SR S A4
Mr. CHEN Mo BREA T4

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu DEEEiE
Ms. XIE Jingyun AREZ T
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DIRECTORS’' ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2023.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective risk management and internal control system of
the Group. The Board has not established a risk management
committee. Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing
the risk management function, including establishing and
approving the overall risk management strategies of the Group
form time to time, overseeing senior management'’s
implementation of those strategies to align with the Company’s
risk profile, overseeing risk management framework structure,
reviewing key risks and mitigation strategies and ensuring risk
management effectiveness.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a
holistic risk management process. The bottom-up approach is
supported by key business units to identify and prioritise risks
while the top-down approach reviews and assesses if risks are
comprehensively identified, prioritised, and properly addressed
by key business units to accomplish the Group'’s objectives. The
management team is regularly monitoring emerging risks for
continuous risk assessment purpose and for building the risk-
management based internal audit plan and periodically assesses
the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and
internal controls for ongoing risk assurance purposes. This
enhances the effectiveness of the Group’s risk and control
framework.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to reduce risks, safeguard the Group's assets, prevent
and detect fraud and protect shareholders’ investment as well
as to ensure that proper accounting records are maintained
and applicable legislation and regulations are complied with.
During the year under review, through discussions with the
management, the internal audit team and external auditors and
with reference to a report submitted by the internal audit team
and a risk assessment report prepared by a professional audit
firm, the Board has conducted assessments and reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
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control system in various perspectives, including, among others,
financial control, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. The risk management and internal control
systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each review
covers a whole financial year.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated
to the Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group
based on the strategic objectives analysis, business flow
analysis, risk assessment and performance evaluation and the
self-inspection mechanism with comprehensive risk
management functions under the authority of the Board and
the guidance of the audit committee. It regularly reports its
audit findings and recommendations on internal control to the
audit committee and the Board. The system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and
in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

During the year under review, the internal audit unit of the
Company continuously optimized job responsibilities and
functions of different departments according to the annual
audit plan approved by the Board. Such audit work covered
financial, operation, statutory compliance and connected
transactions, etc., of the Group. During the year under review,
the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and material internal controls system. Based on
information furnished to it and on its own observations, the
Board is satisfied with the present risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and considers them
effective and adequate. During the year under review and up
to the date of this annual report, nothing has been found
which requires substantial improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information disclosure
and regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly
comply with relevant policies on inside information while
notifying the Directors (who are also the senior management of
the Group) and employees the latest guidance announced by
the regulatory body on such information disclosure from time
to time to keep all of them abreast of the latest information.
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M. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has taken up the corporate governance functions in
accordance with code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code and has reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and compliance; has
reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Company; has reviewed and monitored
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; reviewed and monitored the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees of
the Company and the Directors; and has reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
during the Year as well as the disclosures in this Corporate
Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Wai Ho was the company secretary of the Company
("Company Secretary”). In performing his role as Company
Secretary, Mr. Pang directly reported to the Chairman. Mr.
Pang has confirmed that for the year under review, he has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(i) Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Company’s articles of
association, any one or more shareholder(s) holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as

M.

EREREHE

AR

EFERELEEATRZ TGRS
A2V FBREMFERRE  AEFHA
RACEERAREBO T A BREER
EHMEREENARASREEEZ
B R FFEEERR B NERART
BTRESREREZBRRRER - 2+
W EEAECHR T ERD) AR ER R AR E B
BREZENERTM : UERBERHARFTRN
ARERBTEEEARTYZBERRRDE
EERMER ZWE -

REWE

CEREERARBRAMWE ([ REW
Bl REBEITERRAFMEZBER &
FEEBRMAEIFERS - ZEERIEER
CEFERX TIN5/ N ZHEEE

5ol -

B RAEF
() REBEBIRRAGZRF

REARBZHEBERAAE 64
fif ER—RBHA L 2R MR
RRXEBRBEH  FEARRBEK
AMBEBRRRAARBERAE £
ZERE#R) IRtz — RIA
EERAEEEXNARAWERR
EHER BREFSHRBRRE
BIRE - MEEZEREFHEHALZ
EAIEE  MZASENERZE
SKERMEARRET - WNERE
HMERE21BA  EEGREEE
BRZAE  ARBERZ ALA

Annual Report 2023 F i 91



Corporate Governance Report
TLEERRE

92

(i)

(iii)

a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company. The written
requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and
must be signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and
deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business, which is presently situated at
Unit 605, 6/F, Wing On Plaza, 62 Mody Road, Tsim Sha
Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Any shareholder enquiry
may be directed to the Board through the Company
Secretary by sending to the Company'’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ enquiries put to the Board

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can be
directed to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited. Shareholders may send their enquiries in respect
of other matters to the Company by post to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong or by
email to dennispang@xingfa.com.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings

There is no provision allowing shareholders to put
forward proposals at the general meeting under the
Company’s articles of association or under the
Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to
convene an extraordinary general meeting for any
business specified in such written requisition.
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Dividend Policy

The Company adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) to
enhance the transparency of the Company and to facilitate its
shareholders and investors to make informed investment
decisions relating to the Company. The Dividend Policy allows
shareholders to share the Company’s profits while reserving
sufficient reserves for the Group’s future development.
Proposed dividends, if any, will be proposed and declared at
the discretion of the Board. When proposing any dividend
payment, the Board will take into consideration, among others
things, general financial position and strategies, expected
operating cash flows and capital requirements, surplus,
contractual restrictions of the Group, actual and expected
government financial conditions, macroeconomics and such
other factors as the Board may deem relevant from time to
time. Furthermore, any payment of dividend by the Company is
subject to the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the
articles of association of the Company.

Subject to the above factors, the final dividend to be declared
and paid by the Company shall be not less than 30% of the
Group’s audited consolidated profit attributable to the
shareholders of the Company in any financial year.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed by the Board from time to
time and there is no assurance that any dividend will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period or that the
Company is obliged to declare any dividend at any time or from
time to time.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
(i) Constitutional documents

During the year under review, the Company did not
amend its constitutional documents.
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(i)

Shareholders’ communication policy

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy (“Shareholders’” Communication
Policy”) which sets out the provisions with the objective
of providing shareholders of the Company with ready,
equal and timely information on the Company for them
to make informed assessments of the Company’s
strategy, operations and financial performance, and
enabling them to engage actively with the Company and
exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed
manner. The Board reviewed and considered the
Shareholders” Communication Policy was effective during
the year under review. The Shareholders” Communication
Policy is available on the website of the Company at
"http://www.xingfa.com”.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

WANG Li
Chairman

Foshan China, 21 March 2024
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIE - HENRERERSE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

1.1

1.2

Basis of Preparation

This 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“Xingfa
Aluminium”, the “"Group” or "we") is prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”), covering the reporting period from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Year” or “Reporting
Period”). This Report is prepared in Chinese and the
English version is the translation version. If there is any
discrepancy between Chinese and English, the Chinese
version shall prevail. Unless otherwise stated, the
denominated currency in the report is in Renminbi. For
the content of corporate governance, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report in the 2023 Annual Report
of the Group.

Reporting Principle

This Report is prepared in compliance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(hereinafter referred to as the "Guide”) set out in
Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. It complies
with the reporting principles regarding “materiality”,
“quantitative”, “balance” and “consistency” and
discloses in detail the concept, practice and performance
of Xingfa Aluminium in terms of ESG. In order to enhance
the completeness and comparability of this Report, some
previous or recent related activity reports are also
included.
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1.3

1.4

Scope of the Report

The subject of this Report covers the core business of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries,
including the manufacture and sale of construction and
industrial aluminium products. This Report focuses on
reporting the environment and social policies relating to
the Group's core business during the Reporting Period.
The board of directors (the “Board”) of Xingfa Aluminium
is fully responsible for the Group’s sustainable
development strategy, reporting and risk management.
During the Reporting Period, we disclosed key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) on important
environmental and social issues and the KPIs of
environmental issues only cover four subsidiaries located
in Sanshui, Chengdu, Jiangxi and Henan of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"”) and the Precision
Manufacturing Company. During the Reporting Period,
the subsidiary in Zhejiang is still in the pre-production
stage. Additionally, the environmental and social impacts
and financial significance of the Nanhai subsidiary only
account for a small part of the Group’s overall business.
Based on the principle of materiality, they are not
included in this report.

Information and Feedback

We value your suggestions or opinions in seeking
constant improvement. If you have any comments about
this Report, please contact us in the following ways:

Postal Address: No. 5, Zone D, Central Science and
Technology Industrial Park, Sanshui
District, Foshan City, Guangdong

Province

Tel.: 0757-85332727
Email address: xingfazhb@126.com
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TAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

MANAGEMENT

2.1

Sustainable Development Strategy

The United Nations (“UN") adopted the 2030 Agenda for
Sustainable Development in 2015, announcing 17
Sustainable Development Goals (“UN SDGs”), which
cover the global challenges facing society today, including
those related to poverty, inequality, climate,
environmental degradation, prosperity and peace and
justice. With these goals, the UN hopes that companies
can achieve their own sustainable development while
promoting the sustainable development of society. As a
corporate citizen, the Group fully understands the
importance of global sustainability and endeavours to
respond to the UN SDGs. It is committed to creating
value in four major aspects, that is, “Striving for
Perfection and Pursuit of Excellence”, “Protecting the
Environment, Co-existence and Co-prosperity”, “Human-
oriented, Sincerity and Trustworthy” and “Community
Participation and Sharing”. By doing so, we fulfill
corporate social responsibilities (“CSRs”) and make
progress towards sustainable development. While
adhering to the corporate mission of “letting the
aluminium industry bring excellence for better human
life”, the Group has also formulated a sustainable
development strategy, which covers the following:
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Striving for Perfection
and Pursuit of

Excellence
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Adhering to the vision of “creating
excellence in Xingfa as a century-
old brand”, strengthening
technological innovation,
developing high-tech products
and accelerating the
industrialisation of patented
products
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Goal 3: Good Health and Wellbeing
Goal 12: Responsible Consumption and
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Sustainable
Development
Strategy
AHERRRR

Protecting the
Environment, Co-
existence and Co-
prosperity
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Human-oriented,
Sincerity and
Trustworthy

IANBA
LABER (5

Community Participation

and Sharing
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Strategic Objectives
BB &

While consolidating Xingfa products,
we are committed to protecting
the environment and leading
green production in the industry
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Adhering to the talent concept of
“Human-oriented, Sincerity and
Trustworthy”, we are constantly
optimising the talent management
model and building an excellent
management team
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We are actively ensuring the safety
of staff, giving back to the
community and working with all
parties to achieve growth and a
win-win situation
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UN SDGs
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Goal 7: Affordable and Clean Energy
Goal 13: Climate Action
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Goal 1: No Poverty

Goal 8: Decent Work and
Economic Growth

Goal 10: Reduced Inequalities
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Goal 3: Good Health and Wellbeing
Goal 11: Sustainable Cities and
Communities
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In terms of ESG governance, the Board of the Company
plays a key role in promoting sustainable development,
assuming full responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting, as well as overseeing the Group's ESG-
related policies, initiatives and performance. The Board
actively fulfils its ESG governance responsibilities and is
responsible for assessing and determining our ESG-
related issues and risks, as well as ensuring that the
Company has an appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal control system in place. At the
same time, the Board requires the management of the
Company to report regularly on the implementation of
ESG initiatives and the target progress of the subsidiaries,
and to make timely decisions on important ESG issues,
including reviewing and approving ESG reports, so as to
understand the ESG performance of the Company’s
business.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group is committed to maintaining good relationship
with stakeholders, as it regards them as the bedrock of
its business development. By actively identifying
stakeholders, we establish and constantly improve various
communication mechanisms. Through active and
effective communication, we gain an in-depth
understanding of the expectations and requirements of
stakeholders. We highly respect and safeguard the
legitimate rights and interests of stakeholders. By well
balancing the relationship with shareholders, employees
and various sectors of society, we work with them to
attain sustainable, sound and steady development. To
answer the expectations and requirements of
stakeholders, the Group incorporates their concerns and
requirements into its sustainable development issues and
actively responds with practical actions to strive for the
mutual growth with stakeholders.

During the Year, we continued to engage regularly with
key stakeholder groups in a variety of formats to ensure
we could communicate effectively on topics of
stakeholder concern.
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Stakeholder category
M= AERA S B

Staff

il
H

Governments and
regulatory institutions

BUR B E 18

Investment institutions/
shareholders

KERE R

Suppliers/contractors
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Major expectations

FEHE

Equal opportunities

Salary and benefits
Occupational health and safety
Employee development
FEKE

H oA

BE@mEzs

BI#RE

Compliance operation
Tax compliance

Job creation

Promote local economic
development

BRESE

BOENTR

BB

e 7 B R

Corporate governance
Shareholders’ interests
Information disclosure
Risk management and control

NEPRIE
I R
EREE
[\ B E 12

Integrity
Mutual benefit for win-win

HISEA
EMER
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Major communication methods

TREBEEARX

Intranet

Training and employee activities
Trade union and workers’ congress
Various seminars

NCIIAE

Bk EIES
ITeRBIRERRE
BHEEKE

Regular reporting
Supervision and inspection
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Company announcements

General meetings

Roadshow and reverse roadshow

Strategy meeting

Email, telephone, WeChat and corporate website
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BREAR
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Bidding and tendering

Review and evaluation meeting

Regular communication

Email, telephone, WeChat and corporate website
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Customers

Industry
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Media

Local community
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Major expectations

FEHE

Brand influence
Product quality
Service standard
Customer opinion
[a]s] HE ‘1_"/ El
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Comply with industry regulations
Promote industry development
Industrial innovation
BTITHERE
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Information disclosure
Social contributions
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Support public welfare

Create a harmonious community
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Major communication methods

TREBEEARX

Customer opinion survey
Customer centre and hotline
Customer visits

Exhibition fairs
EEEARASE

B AR L TR AR

BEEH
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Industry forums and exchanges
Site visits

Research

TERENMZRG

B I 28
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Result announcement conference
Media open day

Special reports

XEnme
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Community activities

HEEE
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2.3

Identification of ESG Issues
ESG i 2 i% 7)

Sequencing of ESG issues
ESGrEREHEF

Analysis and review of

materiality

BENE

102

HERERERS

Materiality Assessment

In our previous reports, we have identified and assessed
the materiality based on industry trends, practices of peer
companies, the Sustainability Accounting Standards
Board (“SASB") industry-specific topics, and the key
concerns of ESG-related rating standards. As there were
no significant changes in our organisational structure,
business scope and size during the year as compared
with the previous reporting year, upon the
recommendation of an independent third-party
professional advisors, we have conducted a review of the
material issues based on the issues identified in the
previous environmental, social and governance report.
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TEREZEER -

Reviewed the list of topics based on the latest industry trend.

RESFTNITEBLEN T ABRE -

Understanding the qualitative insights of different stakeholders on identifying
material issues through daily business engagement.

mTBARFNEH BRI EEZENTEIERRE

Based on the opinions collected above, the management verified the results of the

materiality assessment and reported to the Board for recognition. Both the Board and
the management considered that the material issues for the Year were the same as

the previous year.
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Importance to stakeholders, the environment and the society g;
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The following sets out the degree of importance of AEE AEBEZHFTHEIN
various issues identified from the Group’s materiality TR BMAARNT

assessment during the Year:

Materiality matrix

EEMEE
Supplier :
environmental & Anti-corruption Occupagon?Ithealth
social risk k&S Hgﬂg;?g;&i%’\
assessment and FAS A
management °
HRIER RS AL & Exhaust emissi - Waste Management
o S ok T2 S T xhaust emissions 2 i
and management BRMER _
R SR ° Py Wastewater discharge
. 9 and management
Use of water FERHE U E IR
Human rights and A resources 2 Product quality
labour rights - KB E(E e control
AR BB Community : EREEEE
P ontrbution GHG emissions ¢ i
HELE RS B RS PR
©
P ® Employee Response to
participation and . )
comuRicEiten climate chaﬁge Environmental
BT 28R EE FEETRIRE L Compliance
- == m g A
Land resources and RRER
impact on ° Employee
biodiversity developmgnt and
THE R R Y __training "
P T 8 TR KT
Employee
compensation and
benefits
8 TRAEN K g A Environmental issues
RIGE e
> Social issues
HEEE

Importance to Xingfa’s business and sustainable development Highest

HEREBERIHRBRNERM &&
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Environmental issues
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HERERERS

The following are the nine high-materiality issues of the

Group identified from the above materiality matrix:

High-materiality issues
EEERSRE

Wastewater Discharge and Management

RE/KBEI LR 12

Use of Energy

BEIR{E

Waste Management

EEMER

Exhaust Emissions and Management

BER PR E I
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Overview

B

The impact of water pollutants (e.g. heavy metals,
ammonia nitrogen, organic matter, etc.) discharged
during our operations on the surrounding water
bodies and ecology and the mitigation measures
taken to reduce the impact

S ERRETIYREAOsR Y (B - B¢
B 2% AHYS)HREKBRERNTE
A B2 R RUAR L 2 28 T BRER BB R HE e

Energy management measures taken to reduce
energy consumption and enhance energy efficiency
in our operations (e.g. reducing the use of dyes,
electricity, heating, steam, etc.)

IR EEBIRD BB BRBRE - 1RTTBEIRME
FA 2 i BREX Y RS R B IR F e (U« R A AR
BBH - BR - EKAF)

The methods of handling hazardous and non-
hazardous waste during our operations and the
waste reduction measures taken to minimise the
impact on the ecology and human health
WEALERRETREAENEEREEMNT L
AR R AR 3 A REER IR M AR BRE R B T AR
HR Bl & 15 e

The impact of air pollutants (e.g. nitrogen oxides,
sulphur oxides, particulates, volatile organic
compounds, etc.) emitted during our operations on
the ecological environment and human health and
the mitigation measures taken to reduce their
impact

S ERRETIERNZER SR (HI - "
Sy - ey - B - BREEEYE) Y
ARRENABRENZE  URRREERZE
M EREX R BEE 7
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High-materiality issues

EEEERE

Environmental Compliance

RIBGHR

Use of Water Resources

IKEIREF

Occupational Health and Safety

Anti-corruption

Product Quality Control

B fn

\i
il
ot

>

=
4 82

BRI - HEREREE

Overview

R

Environmental compliance in our operations and
identification of areas for improvement (e.g.
whether all environmental permits required by laws
and regulations are in place and in compliance with
the relevant legal and regulatory requirements)
HEFLERRPERRAENEGRERL LE
AR AT ABCER 2= (Fla0 : RER/B A ERE
ERFTRE NIRRT AIB A S BBEARER X
RENRE)

Water conservation measures taken to consume
water reasonably and enhance water efficiency
during our operations
ERELERETAGEEREKER IR AK
Rz M EREX H) B 7K HE e

To protect the occupational safety of our
employees, provide a suitable working environment
and promote their physical and mental health
HESGREETINBELZS  RHEAENITER
R AR ER & U2

Policies and controls in place to prevent bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering (e.g. anti-
corruption training, effective awareness and
whistle-blowing mechanisms, etc.) in our daily
operations and procurement processes
WENATEENRBEREEETNN LR
B8R MEERAERES T EBR KR (F
W BITREBRHEI - B 82 R R R
GRS

Policies and measures adopted to improve our
product quality and ensure our products could
meet related standards

BEELANEEREE BRERTSEBEEEMR
HETTEVBR K FE it
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HE

STRIVING FOR PERFECTION AND PURSUIT
OF EXCELLENCE

3.1 Smart Manufacturing with Craftsman’s Spirit

The Group takes smart manufacturing with craftsman’s
spirit as one of its missions, by fully implementing the
State Council’s “Outlines for Building China into a Strong
Nation in Quality Construction ({& £ 5% Bl 2 % 41 & )"
and the “"Work Safety Plan of China for the 14th Five-
Year Plan Period ([ + U ] IR &L 24 EHRE))" and
strictly abiding by the ISO 9001 quality management
system, the government recognised laboratory
management system, measurement and certification
management system, military certification system and
other systems. Our requirements for product quality are
higher than the industry average. We introduced world-
advanced production equipment to optimise the physical
and chemical properties of our products, a prerequisite
for realising lean production. Since the introduction, we
have not only improved productivity, but also reduced
the number of workers, staff workload and operational
costs. This is a step further toward the benefit
maximisation for the Group.

The following is the progress made by the companies in
performing lean production during the Year:

Sanshui Company

o Introduce new transport vehicles and rail transport
to reduce the reliance on manual operation and
significantly reduce the use of diesel;

o Carry out automation transformation of production
lines, such as the addition of automatic die-casting
machines and horizontal fluorocarbon packaging
scaffolds, to reduce the demand for manpower,
lower the labour intensity of workers and improve
production efficiency.
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Jiangxi Company PN T |

Carry out different modifications and optimisation
of the equipment involved in the production
process, such as the treatment of surface
differences in the hot shear cutting end, the
energy-saving transformation of the time-saving
furnace, and the modification of the jaw of the
drawing-in machine, etc., to improve production
efficiency and reduce energy consumption;

Adjust the work shifts of employees, including the
consolidation of extrusion and logistics
maintenance teams to improve manpower
utilisation rate. In addition, an 8-hour working
system are implemented by making good use of
the existing manpower and accrued wages to
enhance the happiness of employees, which
indirectly increase the productivity of employees;

Prepare and implement standardised policies and
procedures for each production department,
especially for line grooves, steps, pipes, 7S
rectification and other areas, to eliminate dirty,
disorganised and poor equipment. This can
standardise the production operation process and
reduce subsequent rectification. At the same time,
the environment of the production site can be
beautified, and the operation efficiency can be
improved accordingly.

Henan Company

The “hydraulic lifting and loading terminal” is
installed in the extrusion workshop, which can
stack the materials directly above the terminal.
After the railcars are in place, the materials will be
transported to the railcars through the hydraulic
lifting device in the terminal for transfer and the
delivery efficiency is improved;

REETFRESNREBET
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Upgrade the equipment in the extrusion workshop
and adopt an automatic pull-out machine, so that
the pull-out process can be improved from
requiring more than one person to a single person,
greatly reducing the demand for manpower and
saving RMB720,000 in labour costs for the
company;

The online rubber strip cutting machine was
comprehensively promoted. In 2023, the amount
of materials consumed per unit of finished products
of rubber strips in China in the bridge cutting
process decreased by 2.6%, and the amount of
materials consumed per unit of finished products of
imported rubber strips decreased by 2.5%;

While maintaining stable production, the quality
inspectors of the extrusion presses are assigned to
the production line. By leveraging the advantages
of the quality inspectors’ knowledge on the model
and material quality of raw materials, they are
gradually integrated into the production process,
such as the start-up, straightening and mounting
process, so that the line leader of the machine and
each employee can participate in the quality control
work together, timely discover material defects,
effectively avoid mass quality incidents, and form a
deep integration of quality inspection and
production.

Precision Manufacturing Company

Deployed a new automated multi-storey storage
system to save storage space and improve
warehouse operation efficiency;

Conducted a special improvement project for the
life cycle of moulds to extend the useful life of
moulds and reduce the waste generated from the
loss of moulds;

Special improvement projects on extrusion quality
were carried out to reduce sub-standard finished
products, thereby reducing waste.
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The Group exercises rigid quality control throughout the
entire process. We have quality control points in every
segment from casting, extrusion, moulds and surface
treatment to ex-warehouse delivery, preventing defective
products from flowing into the next process. Meanwhile,
we regulate quality inspection and evaluation measures
for engineering projects, as a move to raise project
management standards. For example, Jiangxi Company
compiled documents such as the “Special Quality Control
Plan for Special Profiles”, and updated the “Process
Standards for Painting Workshops” to provide guidance
and specifications for quality assurance. Precision
Manufacturing Company has also introduced the
“Process Governance” project to reconstruct the
processes of quality, information and management. We
also strictly control every detail of the operation process,
carefully check whether there are quality problems such
as grooves, rough lines and scratches on the profile
surface and measure the profile angle and flatness
through a square ruler to strive towards the goal of
perfection. We fully implement the “Product Quality
Management Manual”, “Quality Department
Management Plan”, "QUASCAP Pearlescent
Electrophoresis Profile Inspection Regulations” and
“Internal Control Standards”, emphasise product quality
management and strive to provide customers with
satisfactory products, protect the ecological environment
and maintain staff safety and health. The general
manager of the Group holds a dealer meeting every year
and visits key customers on an ad hoc basis every month
to solicit opinions from customers on product
improvement. In order to manage the recycling and
processing of faulty products, we implement the “Control
Procedure on Faulty Products” and the “Bad Quality
Behaviour, Process Specification Supervision and Penalty
System”. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
violate any laws and regulations related to product
liability.
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3.2 Research and Development (“R&D") and

Innovation

The Group has all along been committed to building core
enterprise competitiveness by enhancing its technological
innovation capabilities. Since its establishment, the Group
has obtained more than 1,800 domestic and foreign
patents and provided aluminium products and
engineering solutions that cover over 200,000 product
specifications and models in all major areas of aluminium
alloys, such as door, window and curtain wall systems in
construction, electronic equipment, mechanical
equipment, rail transportation, aerospace and ships. With
our strong R&D capabilities and persistent pursuit of
excellent quality, a wide and stable sales network has
been established in China and beyond in the past over 30
years, so as to meet the needs of global customers for
high-quality products. During the Year, Xingfa Aluminium
obtained 183 patents, including 20 invention patents, 44
utility model patents and 119 design patents.

Furthermore, the Group actively conducts industry-
university-research collaboration with universities and
research institutes. For example, Jiangxi Company and
Nanchang University jointly established a joint laboratory
of advanced aluminium alloy materials for lightweight
automobiles this year. On the other hand, it also
submitted the “Gan Po Talent Support Scheme Project
(%8 B & 4 ¥ #5 51 &0 1 B)" for 2024 with Jiangxi
University of Science and Technology.
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The Group highly values intellectual property rights
("IPR”) management. In accordance with the
requirements of the “Enterprise Intellectual Property
Management” (GB/T 29490-2013) issued by the National
Intellectual Property Administration (“CNIPA"), we have
passed the certification of the “Enterprise Intellectual
Property Management” system. We have formulated
rules and regulations, including the “Intellectual Property
Rights Management System”, “Patent Management
System”, “Trademark Management System”,
“Intellectual Property Rights Training Measures”,
“Scientific Research Project Management System” and
“Intellectual Property Rights Strategic Planning
Programme”, so as to strengthen the promotion of
patent laws and regulations, the popularisation of patent
knowledge, patent training, patent application and
protection, etc.

Products and Services

The Group always puts customers and their satisfaction in
the first place. Apart from satisfying customers’ demands
for high-quality products, we also focus on providing
them with timely and effective service solutions. The
Group's sales network extends all over China and we are
committed to building a customer service management
mechanism through various customer service channels,
including customer opinion surveys, customer service
centres and hotlines, customer visits, exhibitions and
large-scale activities such as super factories events. For
the convenience of customers, we have also established
online enquiry method on our website which enables a
quick search on sales outlet locations, online messages,
dealer portal website enquiry, anti-counterfeiting enquiry
and other options.

In order to standardise customer service management
and improve customer service quality, we provide the
following after-sales service undertakings in our tender
contracts:

o After receiving a customer’s quality feedback,
Xingfa Aluminium will respond within 24 hours or
dispatch service staff to the site as soon as possible
for after-sales service until the customer is satisfied;
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3.4

o Xingfa Aluminium will send technicians to the site
to provide technical guidance services when
needed;

o If there is any damage caused by the quality of the
materials provided by Xingfa Aluminium, such
materials will be replaced free of charge;

o Xingfa Aluminium will actively participate in
engineering coordination meetings organised by
customers, strictly implement meeting minutes or
signed agreements between the two parties and
pay return visits regularly to understand the use of
materials;

o After contract obligations are fulfilled, Xingfa
Aluminium undertakes to continue providing users
with the relevant technical services and answer
users’ inquiries at any time;

o Xingfa Aluminium will further improve its services
and implement timely service, advanced service,
full-process service and high-quality service
throughout the entire product manufacturing and
installation process.

Information Security and Privacy Protection

The Group attaches great importance to information
security and customer privacy protection in strict
compliance with relevant national and local laws and
regulations. The Group is the first enterprise in the
industry to apply the “ERP modern management
information network project” and passed the
“Integration of Informatisation and Industrialisation
Management System Assessment” in 2017.

The Group also works hard to keep customers’
information and privacy confidential and regulates the
collection and preservation of customer information. For
software that may contain customer information,
customers’ private information will be encrypted and
relevant records will be kept for customer information
operation purposes only.
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Given our informatisation, automation and digitalisation
standards, we utilised multiple information systems,
adopted cloud computing, big data, Internet of Things,
mobile 5G and other new technologies and integrated
smart profile WMS, automated material multi-storey
warehouse, automated mould multi-storey warehouse,
energy information integrated management platform,
production equipment data acquisition platform and
comprehensive performance analysis platform. Now, we
are also accelerating the construction of industrial
Internet platforms, to ensure the continuous
improvement of our operational efficiency and overall
management standard.

The Group is committed to protecting customers’
personal privacy and attaches great importance to
information security. In strict compliance with the
relevant national and local laws and regulations, we
ensure that customer information is used properly and
prevent customer privacy leakage. We strengthen the
“digital centre” multi-level information security protection
as well as the network centre and industrial control
security. We believe that information security system
construction is a comprehensive, three-dimensional
project. In addition to strengthening the introduction of
security equipment, we also need to carry out
information security knowledge training for all staff
members, to reduce the security risks caused by
unnecessary user operation behaviour. In 2021, we
completed the security assessment of two digital centres
and one network centre and reinforced the security of
user terminals. In the future, we will continue to
accelerate the process of enhancing the security of
industrial control networks to ensure that security risks
could be reduced to a minimum.
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3.5 Sustainable Supply Chain

3.5.1Supply Chain Environmental Risk

Management

While developing, we join hands with upstream
and downstream partners in the value chain to
promote a responsible supply chain, constantly
improve service quality and facilitate the healthy
and sustainable development of the industry. We
conduct a qualification review during tendering and
stipulate that the bidder must meet the related
requirements to become our supplier. For example,
the bidder must be a registered enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China, meet the relevant
requirements as a legal person and possess a
business licence and tax registration certificate. The
bidder must provide product specifications, quality
certificate, quality system certification (including
environmental management system), credit
certificate, etc. At the same time, we also require
the bidder to meet CSR requirements in three
different dimensions, that is, economic
sustainability, environmental sustainability and
social sustainability. The raw materials used in
product manufacturing of the Group are mainly
aluminium ingots and aluminium rods. Most of its
upstream suppliers are highly-polluted and high
energy-consumption enterprises. Accordingly, we
make every effort to minimise the environmental
impacts of the upstream suppliers. We require our
supply chain partners to strictly comply with the
specific requirements of the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
the “Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and other relevant
laws and regulations. Meanwhile, we have also
issued related internal provisions. Our
environmental risk management policy for the
supply chain includes the following:

o The policy requires suppliers to satisfy the
requirements of regulatory, reporting and
operational measures. For chemical materials
purchases, general safety will be enhanced
through strengthening environmental
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management, preventing environmental
pollution incidents and integrating supplier
environmental risk management and supply
chain management to achieve "overall
safety”;

o Supplier assessment covers the assessment of
risks associated with the supplier, which
includes aspects relating to product quality
and hazardous material control, supplier
environment. and safety control;

° Letters of guarantee are to be entered
into with suppliers on the exclusion of
environmentally hazardous substances. All
of these materials and parts are required to
pass the tests conducted by professional
testing organisations and testing reports with
official seals shall be provided.

Based on such policy, the companies formulate and
implement supply chain environmental risk
management measures in light of their actual
production and operation conditions. For example,
when Chengdu Company organises its supplier files
every year, it requires suppliers to confirm that they
are not accountable for any safety and
environmental incidents in the previous year.
Whether the suppliers passed the environmental
impact and safety evaluation is the key inspection
item of the Group in evaluating such suppliers. If
any supplier fails to pass the evaluation, the
supplier may be unable to fully guarantee the
supply of products. As such, the Group will not sign
any procurement contract with such supplier, to
avoid related security risks. During the Year, the
Group updated the “Procurement Management
and Regulations of Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd. (K BEREEHREARARKBE A ER
#7E))"” and added the “Procurement and Bidding
Management Regulations (¢ % & & 8 12 & 12
FIEN)" to regulate the risk assessment procedures
and assessment indicators in the procurement and
bidding process, including environmental and social
risk-related considerations. These environmental
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and social risk considerations are also reflected in
the Group’s “Supplier Qualification Evaluation
Form (€ 4 J& 7 & & ¥ {8 & ))” and "Supplier
Annual Cooperation Evaluation Form ({ £ & &5 4
& EFE X)), forming a full closed-loop risk
management from entry to continuous monitoring.

3.5.25upply Chain Social Risk Management

The Group has established supplier evaluation
control procedures, major raw and auxiliary
materials inspection and procurement procedures,
quality objectives management and statistical
regulations for the specification and control of
supplier evaluation processes and procurement. The
Group's tendering and procurement team is led by
the senior management, comprising the sourcing
director and heads of companies and departments.
Raw materials are mainly purchased by tender
invitation.

In order to reduce social risks in the supply chain,
our social risk management policy for the supply
chain includes the following aspects of content:

o Rules and regulations: The Group has
established the “Supplier Management
System of the Procurement Centre ((£RBE S
D FEREEIEHIE))” to define the functions
and roles of supplier management as well as
establish supplier classification, evaluation,
selection, monitoring and other processes
and criteria for considerations to cover
environmental and social risks in the supply
chain;

o Investigation on bidder’s qualifications: The
policy states that the bidder must be an entity
incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China, which meets the legal person capacity
required by the bidding unit and possesses an
enterprise business licence and tax registration
certificate. The bidder must provide product
specifications, quality certificate, quality
system certification (including environmental
management system), credit certificate, etc.;
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o Corporate Social Responsibility Management:
The policy requires the suppliers of the Group
to satisfy social sustainability.

4 PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT, CO-
EXISTENCE AND CO-PROSPERITY

4.1 Environmental Compliance

Through integrating with the national green
manufacturing development plan, the Group has
formulated a comprehensive environmental protection
system, constantly improved the environmental
management standard and successfully obtained the ISO
14001 environmental management system certification
and the ISO 50001 energy management system
certification. All subsidiaries strictly abide by the
“Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, the “Environmental Impact Assessment Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, the "Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
Caused by Solid Waste Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, the “Environmental Noise Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and other relevant national laws and regulations,
persist in conducting environmental emergency drills and
improve staff's awareness of energy conservation and
environmental protection and work capabilities. The
Group has set up a safety and environment office to lead
and be accountable for its environmental protection
work. We implement the reward and penalty system for
environmental protection to reward environmental
protection staff with outstanding performance or penalise
those who have violated the regulations in respect of
environmental protection.
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4.1.1 Investment in environmental protection

During the Year, the Group invested a total of
more than RMB30,000,000 in environmental
protection, which was mainly used for upgrading
and renovation of sewage equipment, repair and
maintenance, addition of sewage monitoring
system, reconstruction of environmental emergency
plan, hazardous waste treatment, etc. Sanshui
Company has carried out rainwater and sewage
diversion transformation projects to ensure that
rainwater and sewage can be effectively separated
to avoid sewage flowing into natural water bodies.
Chengdu Company mainly invested in the new
technical transformation of volatile organic
compounds treatment facilities for fluorocarbon
coating exhaust gas and focused on the clean
production audit and acceptance project. Jiangxi
Company updated the volatile organic compounds
waste gas treatment facilities in the painting
workshop. Henan Company carried out wastewater
facilities maintenance, exhaust gas equipment
relocation, installation and maintenance. It also
carried out upgrading and maintenance of other
environmental protection facilities, reconstruction
of environmental emergency plans, hazardous
waste treatment, environmental testing, etc.

4.1.2 Environmental protection training

activities

In addition to hardware investment, the Group also
attaches great importance to personnel training, so
that employees have a higher environmental
awareness and consciously implement
environmental protection operations in their daily
work. The Group provides employees with general
environmental protection management,
standardised management of solid waste,
hazardous waste management and other training.
In addition, we also provide more in-depth special
training, such as training on environmental
emergencies such as sulfuric acid, liquid ammonia,
and solvent leakage, and emergency drills. We have
also formulated environmental protection
responsibility letters, implemented environmental
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protection responsibilities, and signed
environmental protection responsibility letters with
employees at all levels, leasing units and
contractors. We also distributed environmenta
protection manuals for employees at all levels, and
formulated environmental management systems
such as the “Clean Production, Environmental and
7S Reward and Punishment and Assessment System
(COBREE - BIRRTSEERZZGIE))", the
“Regulations on Exhaust Emission Management
(C B2 | BEBR & 3 48 £ )", the “Regulations on
Wastewater Discharge Management ({BE/KBERUE
BRI )", the “Regulations on Noise Management
B 5 &F B H T )" the "Regulations on
Classification Management of Solid Waste ( [& #&
FEEYHIEE R TE))", and the “Administrative
Measures for the Transfer of Hazardous Wastes

(rEREmEREERIE))".
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The Group strives to implement its environmental AEBESHZESEREEETL
management initiatives and achieved all of the following 15 WRAFERIENNATRE

targets during the Year:

Sanshui Company
=K

Jiangxi Company

PNis/NC|

Chengdu Company

D% {UNC]

Henan Company

ZIPNG]

Precision Manufacturing
Company

MER:

No environmental pollution incidents throughout the Year
EFEERITSLAEN

During the year, the discharge of “three wastes” (wastewater, waste gas and solid
waste) reached the national and local emission standards, and no penalty was
imposed by the regulatory authorities for excessive discharge or other environmental
pollution.

2F [ =R (BEK - BER - EREEY) BERCERIR Kt 5 HEUR 2 - REBIREEN

FHERR)SRAXDEEFPIERE

No environmental pollution incidents throughout the Year

Accredited as enterprise with excellent credit rating in environmental protection
EFEERTSLAEN

RERRRIEATEBRIFEE

No environmental pollution incidents and environmental impact incidents
Wastewater discharge, exhaust emission, and noise production in compliance with
the national and local standards

Compliant disposal of solid waste

Steady operation of environmental protection facilities
TEERRTARNRIREZESH

FEXK - BER - BEHRAE BR K 75 BEUR 4

BEREEREE

RIRRIMEIRTEETT

Wastewater discharge and noise production in compliance with the national and
local standards
All hazardous waste handed over to qualified entities for disposal

Py NG BEK R R B & BIR I 5 B UR A
TEbfElREN R EE B RIE
During the Reporting Period, there was no breach of any WERA REEBRFEFMNER
laws and regulations relating to environmental emissions RIBBEBBBOERIEZRNTA
by the Group nor did the Group receive any notice of AEIBUTIRREPINEEQS ©

violation from the government environmental protection

department.
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4.2 Emissions Management 42 HHYER

4.2.1Exhaust Gas Emissions 4.2. 1R BEH

Exhaust gas emissions generated during the
production and operation of the Group include
nitrogen oxide, particulates, sulphur dioxide and
organic waste gas. We strictly comply with the
relevant laws and regulations, such as the
" Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law
of the People’s Republic of China”. In our
environmental policy, the Group requires a
stringent restriction of exhaust gas and particulates
emitted into the atmosphere. Prior to emissions,
exhaust gas must undergo purification treatment
and shall not exceed the specified standard
prescribed by the national or local environmental
protection bureau.

Nitrogen oxide and particulates are mainly
generated from the casting workshop. The Group
has purchased natural gas energy transforming
equipment and used natural gas as production
energy to effectively reduce exhaust gas emissions
in workshops. During the Year, the companies
strengthened the exhaust gas purification
management:

Sanshui Company

° Installed spray towers to increase the weight
of pollutants to achieve sedimentation
filtration;

o Deployed regenerative catalytic combustion
device (“RCO") to purify organic waste gas
and remove various organic pollutants at the
same time;

° Used equipment with bag philtre to enhance
the filtering capacity of pollutants.
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Jiangxi Company

Updated the VOCs waste gas treatment
facilities in the painting workshop, and the
waste gas discharged in the front-end
spraying, paint mixing and solidification
processes is collected by the respective
collection systems. The waste gas collected is
treated by type through the “pretreatment +
zeolite molecular sieve adsorption
concentration + three-chamber regenerative
combustion (“RTO") treatment process,
forming a set of efficient and environmentally
friendly organic waste gas treatment systems.
After the transformation, the total VOCs
emissions can be reduced by 33.78 tonnes
per year, the collection rate can be increased
by 45%, the treatment rate can be increased
by 35%, and the surrounding environment
can be further improved;

In addition, it completed the registration of
non-road mobile machinery in the factory,
and eliminated used and worn forklifts that
do not meet the emission standards in
accordance with the requirements of the
government.

Henan Company

Strengthened the treatment and
transformation of unorganised emissions of
exhaust gas, and completed the upgrading
and transformation of environmental
protection equipment in the aluminium rods
workshop to avoid unorganised emissions;

With the construction of new environmental
protection facilities in the hazardous waste
room of the aluminium rods workshop, and
anti-leakage treatment on the ground, the
outflow of liquid pollutants is avoided,;

RTO environmental protection equipment has
been installed on the fluorocarbon line of the
surface treatment workshop to reduce VOCs
emissions.
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During the Year, Precision Manufacturing Company
took the following measures to reduce the
environmental impact of the construction site in the
process of plant expansion:

o formulating a science-based construction plan
during construction, which included
enhancing construction management and
advocating civilised construction;
strengthening transportation management
and prevention of material loss and leakage
measures on material transportation and
usage;

° the construction waste should be reasonably
piled up and cleaned in time and dry
construction waste should be sprinkled to
reduce dust pollution during loading,
unloading and transportation;

° watering the ground and roads in the
operation area, regularly clearing road soil
and covering the ground with dust-proof film
to reduce the impact of floating dust
pollution on the environment and minimise
the impact on ambient air.

4.2.2Wastewater Discharge

Industrial wastewater generated by the Group's
production lines mainly consists of acidic and
alkaline wastewater, chromium wastewater and
nickel wastewater. We strictly abide by the
“Emission Standards of Pollutants for Inorganic
Chemical Industry”, the “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and other relevant laws and
regulations and the takeover standard for sewage
treatment plants. The annual qualification rate of
wastewater discharge was 100%.
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In addition, our environmental policy requires
strengthening wastewater treatment to reduce its
discharge volume. The policy also requires good
maintenance of the closed-circuit circulation and
integrated treatment of production wastewater,
including:

o Operating and upgrading wastewater
treatment and purification facilities;

o Oily, acidic, alkaline and highly toxic
wastewater is prohibited from discharging
into the water body. Discharging pollutants
into the water system is strictly restricted to
prevent pollution;

o Cleaning of vehicles and containers that
contain greasy or poisonous substances in the
water body is prohibited;

o Deploying defluorination process to the
wastewater treatment station, adopting a
dosing tank and maintaining the wastewater
sedimentation tank;

o Reducing fluorinated wastewater discharges
through the use of wastewater recycling
agents and related retrofits;

o The testing centre is responsible for
conducting daily wastewater inspection,
installing online wastewater monitoring
facilities, strictly controlling wastewater
discharge within standards and preparing
inspection records and reports;

o The safety and environment office of the
Group as well as the environmental
protection management personnel in
production workshops shall cooperate with
and accept inspections by the environmental
protection agency on wastewater discharge
from time to time;
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o Using a new process for online recovery of
water resources from nickel wastewater and
extraction of nickel metal resources to realise
efficient recycling of resources and a water
reuse rate of over 95%;

° Retrofitting the nickel wastewater treatment
system to realise separate treatment and
starting to monitor nickel wastewater flow;

o Introducing the pot mould lye resource
utilisation system to realise the recycling of
lye.

During the Year, Sanshui Company and Jiangxi
Company carried out rainwater and sewage
diversion transformation, including upgrading the
rainwater and sewage online monitoring system, to
monitor the operation and efficiency of rainwater
as well as sewage diversion more effectively and to
ensure that rainwater and sewage can be effectively
separated and reduce the chance of sewage
flowing into natural water bodies. Sanshui
Company has also set up a laboratory to test the
wastewater generated every day.

4.2.3Hazardous Waste Management

The Group strictly abides by relevant laws and
regulations such as the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Waste”
and the “Measures on the Management of
Hazardous Waste Manifests” and specifies the
management requirements for hazardous waste in
the environmental policy. The hazardous waste
generated by our production and operation mainly
includes waste corrosive liquid, waste washing
liquid, waste tank liquid, tank slag, wastewater
treatment sludge, waste engine oil, etc. We
standardised their management as hazardous waste
as per the pertinent national provisions.
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We strictly follow the “National Directory of
Hazardous Wastes” and other relevant regulations
and all hazardous wastes are entrusted to qualified
third-party bodies for proper recycling and
treatment. When pollution incidents may occur or
have occurred, emergency measures must be taken
immediately to prevent pollution from spreading
out and alleviate and even eliminate the impact of
incidents. Major incidents or emergent events
should be reported to the safety and environment
office of the Group for investigation within two
hours after the occurrence.

During the Year, the Group continued to propel the
process of hazardous waste recycling, reduction
and non-hazardous treatment. The companies of
the Group continued to expand the use of the pot
mould lye resource utilisation system to realise the
recycling of lye. Jiangxi Company has improved the
efficiency of neutralising hazardous waste by
planning a new hazardous waste storage area.
Henan Company carried out anti-seepage works on
the ground of the hazardous waste room and
installed additional waste gas collection and
treatment facilities in the room to prevent the
pollution of hazardous substances. Henan
Company also strengthened the standardised
management of hazardous waste to ensure that
storage, entry and exit ledger, and various signs
and warning signs meet the standardised
management requirements. In addition, Sanshui
Company has set up appropriate storage facilities
for hazardous waste, which is legally transferred to
third-party hazardous waste treatment institutions.
At the same time, the companies conducted
training on hazardous waste knowledge and
emergency drills against emergency environmental
incidents such as leakage of sulphuric acid and
liguid ammonia.
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4.2.4Non-hazardous Waste Management 41 24BEEFEYELE
The non-hazardous waste generated by the REBEEEEFELEANESR

Group’s production and operation mainly includes
aluminium slag, scrap steel, construction waste,
office and domestic waste, etc. The Group also
attaches great importance to non-hazardous waste
treatment, especially the recycling of waste
materials and non-hazardous waste residue. Some
of the waste materials can be directly used for
production after being processed. For example, the
product scraps can be used as raw materials after
recycling to the furnace. Other waste materials
such as mould steel can be handed over to the steel
plant for processing and reuse. The main
components of non-hazardous waste slag such as
aluminium slag in the casting workshop are
alumina powder, aluminium powder and refractory
particles, which can be used as raw materials for
high-aluminium cement production after being
handed over to the cement plant for treatment.

During the plant construction process, we strictly
abide by national and local environmental
protection laws and regulations and control
construction waste through a series of
environmental protection measures. During the
Year, Sanshui Company updated its “Solid Waste
Management Regulations ( & & B£ ¥ o 8 &
EIRTE )" to handle different types of waste more
effectively. Jiangxi Company assigned a recyclable
waste storage area for wastes such as waste
plastics and waste wood heads, so that general
solid waste generated can be collected and recycled
in a timely manner with a view to preventing
resource loss and eliminate potential environmental
hazards. When expanding its plant, Precision
Manufacturing Company collected construction
waste and domestic waste and strictly prohibited
mixing them for transportation. The construction
waste, which came in a small amount, was
collected in time for handling by the relevant
departments to handle and improper disposal was
strictly forbidden to reduce the environmental
impact from construction waste. The reusable
construction waste was reused on the construction
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site to reduce waste. For the non-reusable
construction waste, the contractor was asked to
contact a third party for cleanup. All unavoidable
construction waste was requested in a timely
manner and disposed of by the relevant
department.

During the Year, the waste materials and non-
hazardous waste residues recycled by each
company are as follows:

Company Amount recycled
AT ENE

BEEENFERE T EMR
—BBE=J78E - TBETH
RS NI B NI
SRR IR

AEE  ZFREEEMHNE
FEEERWIERMT

Sanshui Company

=IKA7]

Jiangxi Company

pANYNG]

Henan Company

AERE

Precision Manufacturing
Company

4.3 Use of Resources

4.3.1Use of Energy

About 2,000 tonnes of scrap steel
JEE 47 2,000 2% WE

A total of 2,946 tonnes of waste materials were used, including
scrap iron, waste paper, waste plastic, waste wood heads, waste
die steel, waste mould shavers, etc.

FEEYE 2,046 0F - BIEREE - B BER - BEAE - B
i - EEAMSE -

About 468 tonnes of scrap mould steel

About 32 tonnes of scrap steel straps

About 337 tonnes of scrap shavings

[6% B 15 ELHf) 49 468 1R

JE S T BS540 32 1

FEBI 4440 337 BB

About 100 tonnes of scrap mould steel
R E R ALH 49 100 WA

43 EBERER

The Group has an energy management system to
collect statistics and analyse the consumption
amount and trend of water, electricity, gas and
other resources, enabling each production base to
monitor resource consumption in real time and
timely debug and repair controlling equipment to
improve efficiency.
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In order to increase the utilisation efficiency of
electricity, we have taken effective measures
including using LED lamps and energy-efficient
equipment, replacing electrical machines with new
and highly efficient motors, reclaiming residual heat
of boilers and installing solar PV power generation
equipment on plant rooftops. In addition, the
Group also made full use of the energy generated
during the production process, such as applying the
heat generated from the operation of the workshop
air compressors in heating the technology groove
in the oxidation workshop and also providing hot
water supply for staff for daily use, to effectively
reduce the use of electricity and natural gas and
reduce safety problems caused by the use of
liguefied natural gas facilities.

During the Year, the companies continued to
strengthen staff’s energy conservation awareness
training and supervision and use lean production
activities to reduce process waste and improve
operating efficiency, thereby reducing energy
consumption per unit of product. Sanshui
Company, Jiangxi Company, Henan Company and
Precision Manufacturing Company have installed
photovoltaic solar panels in their plants, generating
more than 22,000,000 kWh of solar electricity
during the Year. Sanshui Company carried out the
transformation of the machine rod furnace and the
transformation of the spraying vertical pump to
improve energy efficiency. Jiangxi Company
arranged special personnel to manage the use of
energy, regularly inspected the production site to
ensure the normal operation of machinery, the
compliance of personnel operations, and at the
same time promoted energy-saving knowledge. In
addition, Henan Company has taken the following
measures in energy management and conservation:

o Conducted frequency conversion
transformation of positive pressure fans in
the fluorocarbon line painting room, saving
272,000 kWh of electricity per year;

o Made comprehensive transformation to
reduce vertical powder consumption from
42KG/T to 32KG/T;
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o Conducted compressed air screening
procedures and technical transformation of
automatic drainage valves in air storage tanks
to reduce the impact of the temperature of
the paint process on the surface quality and
thereby reducing wastage.

4.3.2Use of Water Resources

Water resources are of vital importance to our
production process as it is indispensable in every
process such as extrusion and casting. The Group
uses both municipal water and water from its own
well, so as to ensure there is no suspension in
production due to water supply shortage. The
Group does not face any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose. The ratio of municipal water
use to well water use is approximately 8:2. In order
to enhance water resources management
capabilities and improve usage efficiency, the
Group continues to implement the water reclaim
system and reuse reclaimed water for daily life
activities such as watering, toileting and cooling
water production in facilities through water towers
and water tanks. During the Year, Henan Company
used recycled water for flushing toilets and
workshops, with more than 50% of reclaimed
water reused. Sanshui Company reused about
100,000 cubic meters of reclaimed water, which
mainly went to front-end treatment in the surface
workshop.

4.3.3Use of Packaging Materials

The packaging materials of the Group are mainly
packaging tapes, labels, stick bands, lumps of
wood and sealing glue. We source from packaging
materials suppliers that meet the requirements of
relevant national laws and regulations. For sourcing
product packaging materials, we have formulated
the Group-wide sourcing management plan as its
principal policy. Packaging material suppliers are
selected by tender, with which the Group has
already established long-term cooperative
partnerships.
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4.3.4Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emissions and

434 BEZRE([BERE])H#

Management

Climate change is one of the most pressing
challenges facing humanity in the global
community. As a leading enterprise in the Chinese
aluminium industry, the Group has actively
responded to the call by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’'s
Republic of China (“PRC") to construct a green
manufacturing system. While seeking business
development, we are also committed to protecting
the environment and creating a green home
together with all sectors of society. In 2017, we
were included in the first list of exemplary green
manufacturers by the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology, becoming one of the first
201 "green factories” in China. Our “Aluminium
Profile Production Line Air Pollutant Emission
Reduction Technology Reform” project was rated
one of the “National Industrial Clean Production
Demonstration Projects” by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology, making Xingfa
Aluminium the only company in Guangdong
Province that won such title of honour. Meanwhile,
we were also recognized as the “Clean Production
Enterprise in Guangdong Province” and one of the
“First Resource-saving and Environmental-friendly
Enterprises in Guangdong Province on A Pilot
Basis”.
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In order to reduce direct and indirect GHG
emissions in production operations, the companies
not only implemented green production, but also
promoted green office practices and raised eco-
friendly awareness among staff. The Group
gradually adopt natural gas as one of the energy
supplies for production operations, because the
carbon emissions of natural gas are lower than
coal. So the use of natural gas could reduce GHG
emissions correspondingly. In addition, the
companies adopted the OA system, promoted the
video conferencing system and paperless office,
regulated the use of official vehicles, specified
temperature for the air conditioner, and travel
management to reduce energy consumption, use
of papers and travel carbon emissions while
ensuring office efficiency. The recycling of domestic
and office water was also encouraged at the
companies. The Group plans to:

J Retrofit or install the solar photovoltaic power
generation system at all bases where possible
(including new infrastructure projects);

J Gradually promote intelligent and digital
transformation in existing bases and gradually
replace motorised logistics with rail logistics;
and

o Scientifically arrange production lines for all
new and renovated projects based on the
lean manufacturing concept, thus further
reducing duplication of processes and
achieving high energy efficiency.

To respond to risks arising from climate change
more effectively, we have conducted climate-
related risk assessments this year in order to identify
material climate risks, as well as designing the
corresponding risk mitigation measures.
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Risk Types
EES

Physical Risk

IR B

Physical Risk

Y112 BB

Transition Risk

AV

Transition Risk

BRI B

Risks
BB

Damage caused by flooding
arising from more extreme
weather due to climate change.

B SR B B SRR R
TR 3| BRHO K SIS B AR BRI

Increasing temperature caused
by global warming may harm
employees’ health.

2 ERERAL AR B /OB £ 7T AT RE &Y
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Stringent sustainability disclosure
requirements in China and Hong
Kong will increase compliance risk.
B A E B AB B AR BV AT AR
ERREBEEREE NS RER -

Mainland China may include
aluminium sector into the national
carbon market, thereby increasing
the cost of carbon emissions.
RREAM AT R BERITEMAAS
BUfR 3% + S INBRBEARBR AR o

In the future, the Group will continue to identify
climate risks that have a material impact on our
business and develop measures to mitigate the
impact of various climate risks. At the same time,
we will further optimise the management system
related to green factories, continuously improve the
environment and energy management system and
leverage fully our corporate technology, resources
and external partners to make Xingfa Aluminium
an advanced and smart green factory with high
energy efficiency, low pollution and low emission,
contributing to the nation’s green and low-carbon
transformation and development.

BRI - HEREREE

Risk Mitigation Measures

B 4R R 4 B

Insurance coverage on valuable assets
have been arranged, complemented by
business continuity plan to minimise
impacts on production.
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More air conditioning and ventilation
equipment will be deployed at workshops
as necessary.
REBERNBEESMERES 2 E
SR o

Professional sustainability consultant has
been engaged to ensure compliance.
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=

Actively identify carbon emissions
reduction opportunities to reduce
production emission intensity.
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HUMAN-ORIENTED, SINCERITY AND
TRUSTWORTHY

5.1 Employment Practice

Being people-oriented, sincere and trustworthy is the
foundation for a company to perform CSRs internally. To
recruit a highly qualified workforce, the Group strives to
provide a multicultural and equal workplace for
employees, create comfortable and safe working
conditions and implement dynamic management for
ensuring the physical and mental health of staff.

We strictly comply with national and local labour
regulations such as the “Labour Law”, the “Labour
Contract Law”, the “Law on the Protection of Minors”
and the “Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour” to
protect the legitimate rights and interests of staff. We
follow the principle of equal employment, namely
“fairness, openness and impartiality” and focus on job
applicants’ business abilities, personal qualities and
development potential during the recruitment process
and none of them will be treated differently for reasons
such as age, gender, ethnicity, nationality, marriage and
family status, health condition and religion. We
emphasise communication and participation among staff
and disseminate policy and information through posting
announcements on bulletin boards, e-mails, employee
manuals, or training. Staff can put forward their opinions
and questions to management through interviews,
functional e-mail, or group discussion, so as to provide
input for our operations and developments.

At the same time, the Group’s internal trade union
organisation strictly abides by the relevant requirements
of the “Trade Union Law of the People’'s Republic of
China”, protects the rights and interests of staff in
accordance with the law, performs democratic
procedures and gives full play to the role of staff in
democratic management. In addition, we help employees
enrich their after-work life by carrying out activities such
as birthday gift distribution, supply of summer necessities,
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open-air barbecue for team building and festival AR EEHELYEE TERLE
celebration, while offering assistance for employees in EoUTRBISHABERKRRNES
difficulty through the trade union organisation, so as to T #ZAFHERERABEINEBERM
enhance employees’ sense of belonging and happiness SETRRN o

from various perspectives.

gl Ak 3
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Supply of summer necessities provided for employees The “8th of March Women's Day” celebration held by
by Chengdu Company Henan Company
HKEBL ] [ B Hi28 R )58 IR E [ =\ X B )&

Precision Manufacturing Company held birthday party One-day Foshan outing, namely “A Beautiful Journey to Remember
for staff every month (474872 + BIBK—4 )" organised by Precision Manufacturing Company
BEAAEABTAE RN A] [EAFIEFE - Bk —4 | BILTEX)EE)
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During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with
the laws and regulations in relation to employment and
labour in all material respects, including equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and welfare.
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5.2 Labour Standard

The Group attaches high importance to fairness and
incorporates it into all aspects of its labour standard. We
issue policies relating to employee compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare in the
employee handbook, to create an open and transparent
environment. In doing so, we offer a competitive
remuneration and benefit package for staff to ensure
good performers get paid well.

Instead of taking the one-sided narrative, we adopt a
series of comparative evaluation measures to complement
our employee management system, which include
reviewing regularly the remuneration at all levels
internally, collecting industry information on
remuneration from the labour market and adjusting the
remuneration and benefits with reference to position,
work capability, work performance, skills and profitability
of the Group. While adopting the performance-based
incentive system, we also fully consider internal fairness.
For example, the monthly salary of production line staff is
calculated given the comprehensive piecework on a team
or group basis, so as to ensure that staff who works more
will be paid more. At the same time, varying employee
performance appraisal processes are implemented for
different positions according to the performance
appraisal measures of the departments in which
employees work. In addition, we adopt a policy whereby
management personnel shall abstain from any human
resource matter relating to their family members and
relatives, which requires such family members and
relatives of management personnel not allowed to work
in the same departments with them.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 R%ZRER AT

REBERATH  THENHEFE
Frg 4 TAERIF - HMEE T FM
hEGTEIFMERE  HEXR
B THERH BRE - FEHK
g Ziltk s RERUREMESR
MEMNFEANEREK  EEARS
B BhABETIRERITEHAES
HENREFMEFFS  RERXRR
BEFHNE TEIBENEIR -

R HATNA—EZ2EERF
EiE1T B TEEHIE R A —F5|
R EER MEHHRAERE
TRMEFIMKF - EONEEARTTE
BE)NMSFHIINL - WIRIEET
MBS - TERE N ~ THRERE - &
MEENARER G FRARARY
48 R 7K S o 3R AP ER A A4S AR A2 D 6
FEXFTHEENBAFNE - flant
EREBTAMARA T A
EEANTIE KMREZSZ
B HNBTIMBEREZBRE T
(R sl (L2 AR 45 P 72 B P RO 48 30E 12k
EDREE BN RMABRER
A B B T Ju FFE E P RO #RPT
IE BREBAERBEEES
[Z - Bt



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group strictly abides by the minimum age of
employment requirements stipulated by the PRC and the
location where it operates. Our CSR policy expressly
stipulates the prohibition of recruiting child labour under
16 years old. For minors between 16 to 18 years old, we
carry out special protection in accordance with the laws
of the PRC. Moreover, we illustrate the policy of
preventing forced labour in the employee handbook and
adopt an order-oriented production model to prevent
forced labour. If child labour and forced labour are
found, the Group will immediately terminate their
employment and hold the relevant departments and
personnel accountable.

Pursuant to the approval from local labour department,
we implement a work system with integrated
computation of working hours to ensure staff’s rights to
rest and leave are protected and production and other
work can be completed through collective working,
collective rest, shift replacement, time off in lieu (TOIL),
flexible working hours, etc.

Apart from prohibiting employment discrimination and
forced labour exploitation and ensuring that child labour
is eradicated, we also adopt a zero-tolerance approach to
any form of discrimination or harassment and bring
violations under rigid prevention and control. During the
Reporting Period, there was no misconduct nor regulatory
non-compliance related to employment of child labour or
forced labour in the Group.
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5.3 Occupational Health and Safety

The Group resolutely regards protecting the life safety
and occupational health of its staff as its paramount
mission. We adhere to the policy of “Safety First, Focus
on Prevention and Comprehensive Treatment” and the
principle that “Production Management must Encompass
Safety Management and Person-in-charge is the
Responsible Person”. We have prepared a safe production
management system, which emphasises that “all activities
are based on the life and health of staff”. Besides, the
safe production committee, headed by Chairman, has
been set up to be responsible for our overall safe
production management of the Group. For
implementation, every production department has
established its own safe production leading group,
responsible for staff's work safety in the department. We
strictly follow the relevant regulations of the Group’s
safety and quality control, actively carry out the
promotion of safe production and regularly organise
safety experts to conduct safety evaluations on every
segment of production process and all equipment and
facilities, including the evaluation of performance and
risk factors. Our factories have also obtained I1SO 45001
Occupational Safety and Health Management System
certification, demonstrating that our occupational safety
management system has reached international standard.
At the same time, we update equipment and technology
with the approach that deals with both symptoms and
root causes to reduce the safety risks from the source.
Below is the progress made by the companies during the
Year:

o Sanshui Company has updated environmental
protection equipment for its melting and casting
workshop to improve air quality; newly installed air-
conditioning rooms in the mould workshop and the
extrusion workshop to ensure the health of
employees at high temperatures; adjusted the rods
and furnaces in the extrusion workshop in a timely
manner to improve the heat preservation capability
and reduce the safety risks of employees; ensured
that labour protection supplies are distributed
accurately and effectively;
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In terms of occupational health and safety
protection, Chengdu Company provided employees
with labour protection supplies in accordance with
relevant national standards and the Company’s
relevant regulations, and identified the relevant
management systems;

In terms of noise control, Jiangxi Company tested
the data of the workplace every quarter to ensure
that the noise does not exceed the standard. For
dust cleaning in powder rooms, the company
purchased professional vacuums for cleaning. Upon
the technological transformation of automatic
alarm for low natural gas pressure, there was timely
alarm in case of gas pipeline leakage, so as to
eliminate the safety hazards caused by leakage;

Henan Company added environmental protection
collection and treatment facilities to reduce the
impact of emissions on the health of employees;

Precision Manufacturing Company improved the
quality of labour protection supplies for employees
and provided training to enhance employees’
awareness of occupational health protection;
implemented noise reduction measures for job
posts with high noise exposure; strengthened the
transformation of dust collection and ventilation for
severe dust positions.
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As a production and construction-oriented enterprise, we
attach great importance to staff’s occupational health
and resolutely comply with the “Law on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases of the PRC" to
ensure employees’ occupational health. We set up safety
facilities on construction sites, ensure timely provision of
safety helmets, gloves and other labour protection
supplies and make investments in safe production.
Besides, the environmental measures adopted during
production could reduce hazardous exhaust, waste and
wastewater, which greatly protects the health of staff
who long works in workshops. We are committed to
instilling the environmental protection concept into staff.
The companies achieved the following safety targets set
for them during the Year:

Target
B

Sanshui Company e General and major fire incidents: Nil

=IKRH]

140

e Work injury incidents: 14 at most

e Incidence of occupational diseases: Nil

e Percentage of staff holding necessary
certificates for special jobs: 100%

e Percentage of staff passing security training

in the Year: 100%

e Rectification rate of hidden dangers in the

Year: 100%
o —MREANLEH T
. I%%ﬁﬂl-TﬁE@M%
. #%E{’E%hﬁim < 100%
o BETFELZRIEIAEKEMEI00%
o FELZERBEENE100%
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Status
ERER

e Accomplished
e Accomplished (5 incidents in the Year)
e Accomplished
e Accomplished

e Accomplished
e Accomplished
o BEK

o BEK(FFERBSTENR
o DEK

o BEEMX
o BEEX
o BEX
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Target Status
B EXRER

Jiangxi Company

pANiYNG]

Chengdu Company

FXER A 7]

Henan Company

EIEPNG

Work-related fatalities: Nil

Serious work injury incidents: Nil

Fire incidents: Nil

Rectification rate of hidden dangers: 100%
AIRTER:Z

RAIEGER: T

NKEBEW T
BB EWE100%

Major fire, explosion and equipment
incidents: Nil

Class C/minor incidents: <8%

Compliance on pollution discharge/emission
and hazardous waste disposal: 100%
Administrative penalties for environmental
and safety violations from governments: Nil
Incidence of occupational diseases: Nil
Percentage of new employees taking three-
tier security training: 100%

Rectification rate of hidden dangers before
the prescribed time limit: 100%

Major hazardous chemicals leakage and
environmental pollution incidents (0)
BAMNK - BIFEW  ERREFWR T
CHR/BWEELREFW : <8%
RRERPFBUAREEAREZE 100%
REBMNOIRREZEERTHES - T
BERBEEE Z
MEL=RLEHEF100%

R EIHIE K : 100%
BAERICEmERRIRETRER(0)

Minor injury and above incident rate:
<=8%

No occupational disease

Rectification rate of safety hazards 100%
BIERIA EFHE  <=8%
TEERZER

Z2REERE100%

Accomplished
Accomplished
Accomplished
Accomplished
BEEK
BEEK
BEEK
EEK

Accomplished

Accomplished
Accomplished

Accomplished

Accomplished
Accomplished

Accomplished
Accomplished

EEMK
B
B
B
EERK
EIERK
EIERK
[Ry=354

Accomplished (1 incident in total

during the Year)

Accomplished
Accomplished

EEX (AFERABIRER

EEK
B
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Precision Manufacturing

Company

HERERIRE
Target
B

e Severe and major safety incidents: Nil
General safety incidents: 3
e Minor injury incidents: 3

REREAF] o BREA BAZZEH T

142

o —RELEEW 3R
o HWBEH 3R

In addition, we provide comprehensive safety awareness
and skills training for employees, which disseminates laws
and regulations, occupational safety-related knowledge,
job skills, occupational hazards and other information,
offer special training courses for employees on
occupational health and safety in light of actual needs of
the companies (such as return-to-work training for
employees after holidays, hands-on training for key posts
and training on procedures for high-risk operations) and
arrange daily routine safety inspections, occupational
health checkup before employment for new workers and
on-the-job health checkup for employees who have
joined us for more than one year. At the beginning of
each year, an annual training programme is prepared
according to the training needs of each production
workshop and the entire process is tracked and
implemented as scheduled.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 R%ZRER AT

Status
ERER

Accomplished

Accomplished (0 incident in the Year)
Accomplished (2 incidents in the Year)
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Environmental, Soci

During the Year, the companies actively carried out
occupational safety-related activities and training,
examples of which are as follows:

Sanshui Company

. Fire training and drills;

o Training on job operation procedures;

o Hidden hazard investigation and management
activities;

° Case studies training;

o Occupational health training.

Chengdu Company

° Occupational Disease Prevention Law Promotion
Week;

° Environmental Promotion Day;

. Safety Production Month;

. 119 Fire Protection Promotion Month (including
“119" special training on fire safety laws and
regulations);

o Three-level education and training for new
employees;

. Special training on driving (crane) operation safety;

e Training session on the Work Safety Law ((Z &4
EED).

al and Governance Report
RIE - HERERHS

AEE ERREBEFARBER
2R AEI - fIFT

=XKATHE

o EMEIINRRAREE
o BARIEREEI
s RBEMEREED:

o UNURREHFAEEI:

o BEEBEEI -
ER AT
o  BERMIEEMER:

. RETER

o  LRAER:

. MOEFEEA(RIET119]
SEM R 2R ERA R A IR
EDE

e HEIAB=HHESHI:

o TH(MHE)IEXLE2HIALE
B

o (LEREERIEIE -

Production Training of Chengdu Company
KEBL ] 4 I

Training on Rules and Regulations of Chengdu Company

KB AR B ) 45 3
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Jiangxi Company

o Resumption of work and production training;
° Case studies training;

o Safety knowledge training;

o Special equipment safety training;

o Fire safety training.

Jiangxi Company Crane Safety Operation Training
TR Bl BEL D IRIEE

Henan Company

o A series of activities for the Safety Production
Month in June;
° 119 Fire Protection Promotion Month;

o Machine injury safety training;

o High heatstroke prevention and cooling safety
training;

o Special operation safety training;

o Safety training in confined space;

o Hazardous chemical safety training.

144 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 R%ZRER AT
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Fire Protection Skills Competition of Jiangxi Company
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Precision Manufacturing Company

° Fire drill training;

o Emergency rescue drills;

o Special position safety training;

o Special equipment safety operation training,
(cardiopulmonary resuscitation, escape and self-
rescue) and other first aid knowledge training.

EHS Training of Precision Manufacturing Company
G223 B] EHS 45 3

We allocate different types of labour protection gear to
staff according to the national regulations on the
prevention and treatment of occupational diseases and
conduct awareness-raising training for staff in respect of
occupational hazards factors that exist in production
environment. The safe production leading group in each
department conducts inspection on the actual compliance
of staff safety management. For any staff who does not
wear safety equipment properly, warning will be given
for the first time of non-compliance discovery and upon
the second time of non-compliance discovery, a fine will
be imposed on the responsible leader in strict adherence
to the principle that “Person-in-charge is the Responsible
Person”. At the same time, each company invites the
local occupational disease prevention and control centre
to conduct occupational health examination for front-line
workers every year.

BRI - HEREREE

o HPDESIFI

o EIRURESR:

o HREREE
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Al CLBRTEEE - k4B
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7S Training of Precision Manufacturing Company
RN A 7S 155
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Safety inspections (times)

Incident emergency drills

Safety production
investment (RMB 0'000)

146

In order to continuously improve, transform, install and
maintain safety protection equipment, all companies
invested considerable funds during the Year for employee
safety education and training, purchase of personal
labour protection supplies, purchase of fire-fighting
facilities and equipment, safety testing and evaluation,
safety and accident prevention facilities, emergency
rescue equipment and drills, occupational hazard
protection fees, etc. The amounts invested by each
company are as follows:

Sanshui Chengdu
Company Company

=KkAF BT

ZERE(R) 106

EfESEROR) 120

ZEEENHEL 550
EeB/A(BT)

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not violate
any law and regulation on health and safety nor were
there any work-related employee fatality incidents. In
response to work injury incidents that occurred during
the Year, we promptly and properly treated injured staff,
reviewed and investigated the causes of incidents and
adopted measures to strengthen safe production
awareness among employees and improve workplace
protection conditions, with a view to preventing incidents
from happening again.
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Precision
Jiangxi Henan Manufacturing
Company Company Company
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5.4 Development and Training

Safety training session

Attendance

We firmly believe that staff development and training is an
important part of our efforts to achieve business objectives,
improve performance and attain sustainable development.
We are committed to attracting and retaining high-quality
talents by rendering them with sustainable development
and training opportunities. The staff development and
training policies are set out in the employee handbook and
staff training is guided in accordance with the “Staff
Training Management System (( & T 153 & B %l &))"
and “Measures for the Management of Staff Career
Development (( B TR 2R EIEHE))". We carry out
diversified training programmes, which are conducted
through classroom training and online learning, to help
employees grow and improve themselves quickly to the
greatest extent. During the Year, the companies were
active in providing occupational health and safety training.

Sanshui Chengdu

Company Company

ZKAH RERF

Z28E (R) 433 101
SEAR 17,216 4,320

We made the following achievements during the Year in
respect of safety training:

o rate of occupational health checkup after
employment: 100%

o safety training rate of newly recruited/transferred/
reinstated staff: 100%

o percentage of staff holding necessary certificates
for special jobs: 100%

o percentage of principal persons-in-charge and
safety management personnel receiving training:
100%
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Precision

Jiangxi Henan Manufacturing
Company Company Company
TEDF AERR REREAR
475 334 146
25,415 15,872 2,016
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The Group has formulated the “Training Plan for the
Construction of Talent Echelon of Xingfa Aluminium (&
BImEASBEKREREEF X)), implemented the
talent training system, established and improved the
talent training mechanism of the Group, and through the
formulation of an effective plan for the selection of
successors and reserve talents for key positions. The
Group reasonably tapped and cultivated the reserve
talent team, established the talent echelon of the Group,
and provided human resources support for the
sustainable development of the Group. The Group issued
the “Interim Administrative Measures for Continuing
Education of Employees (( & T#EH B E1TEEIHE))”
to implement a training system to meet the needs of the
Group’s sustainable development, promoted the
construction of a learning enterprise, and encouraged the
enthusiasm of employees to learn and comprehensively
improve the overall quality of the Group’s employees.
The Group also optimised the level and structure of
employees’ academic qualifications and standardised the
management of employees’ on-the-job academic
education.

We develop an annual training implementation plan
based on the results of the survey on employee training
needs and with reference to our training resources and
arrangements for human resources activities. Our training
work adheres to the principle of “comprehensive
coverage and key development”, mainly covering the
following aspects:

New Staff Training

Through various forms of training, new staff is able to
fully understand the Group’s development status,
organisational structure, rules and regulations, process
flows, etc., enhance their recognition of and confidence
in corporate culture and give full play to their initiative
and enthusiasm.
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Management Training

General management training courses are available to all
staff members, including management skills
improvement, business etiquette, emotional
management, safety training, communication skills
improvement, office automation, laws and regulations
and policy presentations, to improve staff quality and
comprehensive skills.

On 3 July 2022, with the launch of talent cultivation, the
Group successfully held the kick-off ceremony for the
Shaping Future Development and 2023 University Fresh
Graduates Training Programme, which started the first
chapter of talent cultivation for Xingfa Aluminium.
During nearly one month of the programme, the
participants were trained through intensive courses, first-
line workshop practice, reports and exchanges, and other
specialised training. The training laid a solid foundation
for better performance in work.

From 7 August 2023 to 10 August 2023, Guangxin
Group's 2022-2023 Cadre Rising Stars Training Camp
commenced in Guangzhou. Group leaders Bai Tao,
Huang Jiahe, Xie Zhiyun and the persons-in-charge of the
relevant departments of the Group Headquarters
attended the training camp and gave lectures and shared
their experiences, while more than 170 representatives of
new employees from the Group Headquarters and its
subsidiaries attended the training. The training camp
placed emphasis on the “New Start, New Height, New
Dream (¥ &2 25 %7 = £ 7 2 18)" of Guangxin Group's
debut as the world's top 500 companies, focusing on the
theme of “Stimulating Youth and Dreaming for Guangxin
(B BSEEBEF)" and three objectives of identifying
with Guangxin, changing roles, and setting ambitions.
The training is to set a systematic learning mode of
“internal learning, professional sharing, and innovative
carriers” for the newly recruited staff, with internal
courses on corporate culture, integrity and honesty, the
Group's profile and development planning, official
writing, safety and environmental protection, and legal
compliance, etc. Senior experts are invited to give lectures
on time management and efficiency.
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In order to implement the “Eleven Measures of Talent
Strengthening Strategy of Xingfa Aluminium ({23485 %
A Ao BB 1+ — (& 5 BE )", strengthen the
construction of the talent reserve and build a talent
system that is in line with the development of the Group,
the Group held a programme under the theme of
“strengthening the foundation and educating the people
to add momentum, and pooling wisdom together to
promote development” together with Xinfa Aluminium’s
first training ceremony for its reserve talent on 9
December 2023, which emphasised the importance of
constructing a talent supply mechanism that will secure
competent and efficient talent supply.
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Professional Training

We offer a wide range of professional training for staff,
such as trainings on sales skills, financial operations skills,
human resources management and specific projects. The
purpose of such training sessions is to improve the know-
how and skills of professional staff, thereby improving
work efficiency. At the same time, we hire highly skilled
staff as internal lecturers to share their work experience
and professional skills with other staff members and use
this as an opportunity to explore outstanding talents,
recruit a contingent of efficient internal trainers and pass
on our corporate culture, skills and know-how.

In order to further popularise the practical ability
of emergency rescue of employees, strengthen
the awareness and education of the Group’s
safety production, and continuously improve the
self-rescue and rescue ability of employees in
case of emergencies, the Group held a fire-
fighting skills competition during the Safety
Month. The fire-fighting skills competition
activities include the operation of fire hose
connection and the use of fire extinguishers,
which were divided into two scenarios: oil barrel
fire and electrical appliance fire. Fire fighters are
required to select the correct fire extinguishers
for firefighting according to the fire category.
RE-—FZEEIHELET NESKIENE R
N MREET2EETEHE - TEHRS
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In order to enable our staff to learn knowledge,
craftsmanship and have technical exchanges, we
have organised different types of training
courses, such as mould making process training,
spraying process training, working principle and
operation of sand blasting machines, general
nitrogen inspection procedure training, and
outsourcing system operation procedure training,
etc., to strengthen the professional skills of our
staff.
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In order to create a positive atmosphere of safety
culture, enhance the safety awareness of
employees and strengthen the safety concept of
employees, we held a speech contest under the
theme of “everyone talking about safety,
everyone knowing how to respond to
emergency” during the Safety Month. Nine
contestants from different positions in various
departments gave speeches under the theme of
“everyone talking about safety, everyone
knowing how to respond to emergency”. They
discussed safety issues from their own daily work
and promoted safety awareness to other
employees in attendance.
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In order to promote learning through
competitions, further improve employees’ safety
awareness and professional quality, and
effectively promote the learning, mastering and
application of safety knowledge, we held a Q &
A competition, covering the new “Production
Safety Law ((Z & A E)A))", the understanding
of 7S, the construction of dual prevention
mechanism, the Company’s relevant safety
regulations, occupational health, fire safety,
emergency rescue, job responsibilities, workshop
risk control, safety production management and
other aspects.
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On-line Training

We integrate with intelligent and Internet platform-based
learning methods and collaborate with third-party
training agencies to develop an on-line training platform.
The platform devised different training programmes for
staff at each stage and incorporate training attendance
into the annual appraisal to ensure training effectiveness
and timeliness and improve the pro-activeness of staff in
learning.

Anti-corruption

The Group attaches great importance to the integrity of
its team, requires managers at all levels to set examples
for others to follow suit and maintains a “zero-tolerance”
approach to fraud and corruption through advancing
good practice. We have been continuously improving the
internal control mechanism and whistle-blowing
mechanisms to eradicate various form of corruptive and
fraudulent behaviour, including bribery, extortion and
money laundering. The Group arms employees with the
bottom-line mindset to strengthen internal education and
intensifies the supervision of corruption-prone aspects
and post holders. Meanwhile, we also conduct the Party
discipline month activities for Party branches and hold
meetings on Party conduct and government integrity and
anti-corruption to develop the awareness of integrity
among Party members and cadres, a prerequisite for
achieving the strategic goal of “no one daring, being
able, or wanting to be corrupt”. We strictly implement
the code of conduct for anti-corruption and anti-bribery
in accordance with the relevant national policies, laws,
rules and regulations. The above code of conduct clearly
specifies that staff must abide by strict code of ethics and
must not engage in malpractices such as corruption or
bribery, receiving secret profits and gifts from customers,
or misappropriation of funds. It is applicable to material
procurement, outsourced processing, facility projects,
business sales, equipment procurement and maintenance,
quality supervision, other economic activities and the
process of management of individuals, properties and
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belongings. At the same time, all customers, suppliers,
service providers and underwriters who have business
relationships with the Group are also covered by the
code, which contains the following aspects:

o Requirements of anti-corruption and anti-bribery
conduct for procurement and sales staff;

° Requirements of capital management involving
anti-corruption and anti-bribery conduct during the

procuring and selling processes;

o Requirements of anti-corruption and anti-bribery
conduct for accounting cashiers;

o Regular check on the evaluation system;

Whistle-blowing registration system.

The whistle-blowing registration system implemented by
the Group allows employees to report violations of code
of conduct to the Group. Every reported case is handled
in a confidential manner and followed up according to
the relevant policies and procedures. Anyone who
violates the code of conduct shall be given a warning,
demotion or dismissal depending on the severity of the
matter. The Group will never tolerate any form of
corruption. If an employee is found to be involved in
corruption or other criminal offences, we will transfer the
case to the disciplinary inspection and supervisory bodies,
judicial authorities or other related government
departments for handling.

During the Reporting Period, there was no misconduct or
regulatory non-compliance related to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering in the Group.

During the Reporting Period, neither the Group nor any

of our employees was involved in any corruption legal
case that had already been filed and concluded.
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Chengdu Company — “Flower Integrity (€38 B&/1»)" Integrity Culture Learning Activity at the Education Base
On 14 September 2023, the Party branch of Xingfa Chengdu organised all Party members to visit the Flower Integrity
Culture Education Base in Wanchun Town, Wenjiang District, Chengdu to carry out disciplinary education and learning
activities to further improve the Party members’ awareness of anti-corruption and integrity. The base has set up different
themed halls, such as the “Prevention Hall (F5 f £8)", which combines the principles of Chinese medicine in treating
illnesses with the education of integrity culture, and the “Flower Hall (f€ & %)", which closely combines the growth
habits of flowers with the culture of integrity, to promote the awareness of cleanliness and self-discipline.

BEAR —[REERO | RECHEE BB BT

20239140 REEHRETHMAMERES - AIEKETRTREFELERLBREUCHEEFRLEH
BREERY NWE—FPRSEENRBERER - BMRE TR T ENISE - P10 (D186 5 B m R &EREK
MEHERES  [TERE ] BIENNAERBHERIULERHESS  EHRZBRES -
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Jiangxi Company — Disciplinary Education Month Activity

In September 2023, Jiangxi Company organised all Party members to participate in the 2023 Discipline Education Month
— Party Constitution, Party Rules and Party Discipline Training Session and Party Integrity Building and Anti-Corruption
Work Conference held by the Party Committee of Xingfa Aluminium. We watched the integrity education film “Buckle up
the First Button of Clean Politics ({3047 BRZMINBIZE —FEH0F )" to understand the deep-rooted causes of corruption
from the depth of human nature and highlight the importance of clean politics. At the same time, through the Xuexi
Qiangguo (& & 58 B) Learning APP, WeChat platform, the Company’s public account and the distribution of honesty
books, all employees are always on the alert to prevent corruption.

SIEAR — RHBAED

2023698 TAATABRERESE T BEIRERE023FAKAKS AR & BEERIER ARG
BTIERE  FEBERERE S G RORRRHE—BINT) - AR BRERERE - SERERIEN
B[R BAREREAP  META  ARNAREAREARKESES TR B2RETIHALE  HEE
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Henan Company — Disciplinary Education Month

On 9 September 2023, the Henan Party Branch of Xingfa Aluminium held a general meeting of the Party members’ of the
Party Branch, in which the branch secretary, Liao Peikun (E2{fl3#), led the Party members of the Branch to learn the spirit
of General Secretary Xi Jinping’s speech at the second plenary session of the 20th Central Commission for Discipline
Inspection. In addition, in the morning of 21 September, Henan Company also organised party members and cadres to
visit Anti-corruption Education Base in the county government office of Yexian County (¥8) to carry out the discipline
education and learning activity under the theme of “keeping the bottom line of integrity, honesty and self-discipline in
the heart of discipline”on a Party Day of an Activity Month, and visited the history of the system, the anti-corruption
storm of the Ming Dynasty, the classics of ancient anti-corruption, the contemporary pioneers, the anti-corruption history
of the Communist Party of China, and cases of the senior officials’ convictions.

AREAR —RHBAED

20239 A9F  BMBIMETHEXMARXHMERAS  XHECEMHBTRIHREEEROIFRECLE_THE
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COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION AND
SHARING

As a socially responsible and grateful corporate citizen, Xingfa
Aluminium has been actively assuming social responsibilities
and undertaking many community development and social
assistance programmes over the years. Through a variety of
ways and initiatives to care for vulnerable groups, participate in
environmental public welfare activities, make charitable
donations and facilitate poverty alleviation and education
development, we conduct practical actions to unify corporate
development goals with CSRs and create value in communities
related to our business operations.

While seeking continuous development, we always keep giving
back to society. We have set up a dedicated charitable fund
and have actively participated in social charitable donations in
the name of companies and individuals and donated funds to
socially disadvantaged groups or charitable associations,
proactively assuming CSRs. During the Year, the Group
donated RMB100,000 (2022: RMB101,900). Within the scope
of the Report, RMB31,500 was used to purchase agricultural
products from rural areas and support rural revitalisation
projects.

The charitable activities organised by the companies during the
year are as follows:

Chengdu Company

o An activity was organised to purchase rural agricultural
products from Batang County, including hand-torn meat,
Tibetan spiced pork, red oil bean paste, black sesame
balls, etc., which involved more than RMB26,000 for
supporting the revitalisation of rural economy.

o The Tree-planting Day was organised for staff

representatives to participate in tree planting activities to
encourage everyone to help care for and protect trees.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 R%ZRER AT
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Precision Manufacturing Company BEAT

e The “Little Wish for Children, Xingfa Precision in Action o BT [BNRE[IMOR] HE
(BhHRE"HORE" - HEIEHEIEITE))” campaign was BEATE]ED  BEEHER
organised, focusing on local underprivileged children, RE RIIETRERE S BER
visiting families with left-behind children, and distributing REREXE £5ARE -

stationery and daily necessities to the children in need.

Al o oy , @ ) | v 4 e

Precision Manufacturing Company offers assistance to Precision Manufacturing Company organised an activity to visit the
the “Little Wish (7258 )" campaign underprivileged children before the new school term in 2023
WBERAE N ZE [0 )EE WBE R [2023 FRZRIFDNEZE | R
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APPENDIX I: MAJOR AWARDS AND HONOURS

DURING THE YEAR

Since its establishment, Xingfa Aluminium has always been firmly the

leader of construction aluminium profiles in China. The Group won
the following major national awards and honours during the Year:

Award sponsors
TEEN

Guangdong Hi-tech Industrial Association

BRESHEMEERE
Department of Industry and Information
Technology of Guangdong Province

BREIEMERE

Department of Industry and Information
Technology of Guangdong Province

BERETIEMESE

Bureau of Industry and Information
Technology of Foshan City

BT IEMESER

Department of Industry and Information
Technology of Guangdong Province

ERETEMNEELE

Guangdong Provincial Enterprise
Confederation, Guangdong Provincial
Association of Entrepreneurs

BREACEMES BEREACERHE

Guangdong Provincial Enterprise
Confederation, Guangdong Provincial
Association of Entrepreneurs

BRETCEHRES BRECERDS

China Real Estate Chamber of
Commerce, Lianzhu

EHEHERNS - H#E

fisgk— : FREERBMEE

BHRILIAZK - BE iR R I RIBE T B SRR T
MBAEENBESK - AFE - AEEESEH

FTERBEREENT :
Awardees Honours
ERTE BRERE

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium

Co., Ltd
BREEIRFFR A
Guangdong Xingfa Precision

Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
BR BT EERR AR
Guangdong Xingfa Precision

Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
BER B ETRERR AR
Guangdong Xingfa Precision

Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
BR B ETEERR AR

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium

Co., Ltd

BEREEREER QA

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium

Co., Ltd

IR RE R AR

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium

Co., Ltd

FEREZREERAA

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium

Co., Ltd

EREEREER QA

160 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED %42 %42l 5 1R A 7

2023 Famous Quality High-tech Products
of Guangdong Province

2023 FEREBERFEMED

Innovative Small and Medium-sized
Enterprise of Guangdong

BREBIFTE R/

“Specialised and New” Small and
Medium-Sized Enterprise

2022 FEIFFHP/IEE

Digitalised and Smart Demonstration
Factories in Foshan for 2022

2022 FHILHBF LB L RE TR

“Owner” of Key Industrial Chain of
Strategic Industrial Clusters in
Guangdong Province in 2022

022 FEREBMEEXSHERESE
#E

2023 Guangdong Top 500 Enterprises
(150th)

2023 EHR ¥ 500585 15012
2023 Guangdong Top 100
Manufacturing Enterprises (63rd)

2023 BREUEZ B 100585 637

Ranked First in Top 10 in 2022 China
Real Estate Chain Strategic Integrity
Supplier ® Aluminium Brand

2022 7 B 55 4h /5 = SR SR B S SO L IR
7 e B AmETRER
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Award sponsors

BBEM

China Real Estate Chamber of
Commerce, Lianzhu

PHEHMENS - BE

Zhongfang Youcai Evaluation

B R AT

Zhongfang Youcai Evaluation

R EEERIR

Zhongfang Youcai Evaluation

T EERRIRT

Zhongfang Youcai Evaluation

o B EEORIET
Alwindoor.com — Official Industry

Platform of Doors, windows and
curtain walls

TEREE —FIERRTREN TR

Awardees

B
Guangdong Xingfa Aoke
Architecture Technology Co.,
Ltd.
BREERMEEMRBERA
7]
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd
BREEIREFRAA
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd
BREEIREFR AR
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd
BREEIREFRAA
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

EREZREERAR

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

EREZREERAR

BRI - HEREREE

Honours

KEEW

Ranked First in Top 6 in 2022 China Real
Estate Chain Strategic Integrity
Supplier ¢ Domestic Brands in Door
and Window System Category

2022 B 5 b E 7 3K R B SBULAE (1 P
& e RHMEEREMREBEE

2023 Top 500 Preferred Suppliers in
terms of Comprehensive Strengths in
Real Estate Supply Chain — Aluminium
Category

2023 FEEHERLG S E I TOPS00 &
EEER — AR

2023 Top 500 Preferred Suppliers in
terms of Comprehensive Strengths in
Real Estate Supply Chain — Window
System Category

2023 FFEHER#LREE I TOPS00 &
BEHER — ZoER

Ranked First in 2023 Preferred Suppliers
for State-owned Property Development
Enterprises (National Brand) —
Aluminium Category

2023 REEFIMAEMBE L EEEMER
(RiEmh®) — 2B MBREE

Ranked First in 2023 Preferred Suppliers
for State-owned Property Development
Enterprises (National Brand) —
Window System Category

2023 REEFIMEMBE L EEEMRER
(RixmMg) — RS EBEE

Top Ten Preferred Building Materials
Brands in The 18th AL-Survey
Architecture Doors, Windows and
Curtain Walls Industries for the Year
2022-2023

2022-2023 % [Z 55 18 J& AL-Survey &
PFIERim T R m SR+ R EE
i
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Award sponsors

BBEM

China Enterprise Confederation, China
Enterprise Directors Association

PEMERBESE  PEEERBE

China National Accreditation Service for
Conformity Assessment

TEARTERNZRILRES

China Non-ferrous Metals Processing
Industry Association

THEEEEIENS

China Non-ferrous Metals Processing
Industry Association, the Non-ferrous
Metals Society of China

TEEEEEIXGE  TEEE
TEEY

China Association of Inventions

HPEIERGE

Foshan Entrepreneurs Association,
Foshan Enterprise Confederation,
Foshan General Chamber of
Commerce

BT EEBEE  FHLUTEER
e - fLmEne

Foshan Entrepreneurs Association,
Foshan Enterprise Confederation,
Foshan General Chamber of
Commerce

BT EEBEE  FLUTEER
e - fLmEne

Foshan Entrepreneurs Association,
Foshan Enterprise Confederation,
Foshan General Chamber of
Commerce

LT EEBSE  FBLUTEER
e - FLmeEne

162

Awardees

BRI

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd
BREEIEFRAA
Physical and Chemical Testing
Tenter of Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd.
BEREEiR% OLm) AR
NCIEEX | o9 LR
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd
EREIEHIREFR AR
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

EREEREER QA

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

BEREEHIREFR AR
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

FEREZEREBR AR

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

B 3R E AR AR
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium

Co., Ltd

EREZEREBR AR

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 R%ZRER AT

Honours

RELH

Top 500 Manufacturing Enterprises in
China

B 45 2 {2 3 500 58

China National Accreditation Service
Certification

Il
s
EY
Rl
Fd
Tt

FEARFEARANE

\

Gold Cup Champion in Quality
Nonferrous Metal Products

FecBEREYEE R R

Second Prize of 2023 China Nonferrous
Metals Industry Science and
Technology Award

2023 AR EE T ERERIE

:%#\

First prize of Innovation Award in the
2023 Invention and Entrepreneurship
Award

2023 FEEHAIF AT R —F 4

2023 Foshan Top 100 Enterprises (23rd)

2023 F1{#R L2 10058 28 23 %

2023 Foshan Top 100 Manufacturing
Enterprises (10th)

2023 G I RE X 100582 104

2023 Foshan Top 20 Enterprises in
Technological Innovation (12th)

2023 13511102 100 38 RHL A3 TOP20
F124
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Award sponsors

BN
Foshan Science and Technology Bureau

BRIL TR BRI E

Bureau of Commerce of Foshan City

BTSSR

Management Committee of Foshan
National Hi-tech Industrial
Development Zone

BLUEAIRNERREREREERES

National Enterprise Technology Center

BESS T IN

National Intellectual Property
Administration

BRMBEER

Bureau of Social Responsibility of the
State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the
State Council

BE%CEEEHERER

Institute of Industrial Economics of Jinan
University, Guangdong Manufacturers
Association, Guangdong Provincial
Development and Reform Institute

EMABEERLERRR  BERARE
(g kEREERMUEHRER

Shanghai E-house Real Estate Research
Institute

FESERMERE

SGS-CSTC Standards Technical Services
Co., Ltd.
SGS MBI ER M ARTE BR AR

Awardees

BRI

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

BREEIREFRAA

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

BREEIREFR AR

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

BREEIRE AR A A

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

R EEIRE AR AA]

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

EREHIREERAF]

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

R E IR EE R AR

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

R EE AR AR

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

BEREEHIREBR AR
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium

Co., Ltd
EREEIREFRA T

BRI - HEREREE

Honours

KEEW

Top 100 Techology Leading Enterprises
in Foshan in 2023

2023 FEHILITRHRAERE 10058

2023 “Foshan Best Product” Cerificate

20234 [FEILEm] EmABE
Top 30 Large-sized Enterprises in terms
of Innovation Credits in 2022

2022 FERIFTE D KA 3058
Good Rating in 2023

2023 FEFHERM
The 24th China Patent Excellence Award

o tHETEERESE

Ranked 49th in ESG-Pioneer 100 Index of
State-owned Listed Enterprises (2023)

Bl (2 FTHARIESG » 582100 FE 8L
(2023) (15155 496z

Guangdong Top 500 Manufacturing
Enterprises (32nd)

EREREFEPF 500585 3217

Top 5 Listed Companies of Property
Ancillary Supply Chain in terms of
Investment Value

FEREMHERE FHARIREEER
98

Industry’s First Compliance Management
System Certification

TEAEREHERREARERSE
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Award sponsors

MHEEN
Fortune Global 500

(B E) SR 500 5815 &8

China Social Responsibility 100 Forum
Chinese Expert Committee on CSR
Report Rating

hETEEEE AWRE
FEPELGEERETRER
Z8g

Architecture Technology

MEBEEERS

Leping County Trade Union in Foshan
City, Sanshui District Human Resource
and Social Security Bureau in Foshan

BT TEATS  FILUHm=KR
ANE R ERER

Economic and Information Technology
Department of Sichuan Province

s &ER

Economic and Information Technology
Department of Sichuan Province
m)IERIER

The Eighth Committee of Qinyang City,
Communist Party of China

TEEEENGETENERZES®

The Eighth Committee of Qinyang City,
Communist Party of China

TREAEENGTEN\EZES
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Awardees

BRI

Guangdong Guangxin Holdings
Group Co., Ltd.

BREEFEREERR AR

Guangdong Guangxin Holdings
Group Co., Ltd.

EREEFEREEER QT

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd

R IR E AR A A

Xingfa Aluminium (Sanshui
Branch)

I IRE =KD A

Xingfa Aluminium Chengdu
Co., Ltd.

B RRKEBR AR

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu
Branch)
Lk S D E NG

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Henan) Co., Ltd.

mEEins O m) BRAA

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Henan) Co., Ltd.

B inE O m) BRAA

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 R%ZRER AT

Honours

RELH

Ranked No. 427 in 2023 Fortune Global
500

2023 F (B @)t 5 50058 + [151]427 fiL

2023 “Responsible Bull Award e
Overseas Responsibility Award”

2023 E [EEFFTE BINEEE]

The 10th Polaris Award of Construction
for 2024

2024 FEEF TR IR 2 LS

The second runner up in the “ZkAlI%&
- RN ET Skills Challenge

[ZREIARR  [EOEE] KEERER
R =%

Top 100 Enterprises in terms of
Technological Innovation and
Development Capabilities in Sichuan
in 2023

2023 F )1 EFHRIF # R LD 100
G

Top 100 Sichuan Enterprises in terms of
Invention Patent Ownership in 2023

2023 F )1 (P HAFEFEA E 10058
hx

2022 Top 10 Manufacturing Enterprises
in Qinyang City

2022 F 0 MBIER T REE

2022 Outstanding Achievement
Enterprise in Qinyang City

2022 G RH BRI
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APPENDIX II: ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL [Ki#— BERTSBRENIEE

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Key performance indicators Unit 2023 2022

BREANER By

Total aluminium output’ Ten thousand tonnes 76.3 66.5

EEMAEE" B A

Environment aspect

RIGEIRE

GHG emissions

BERBHEK
Scope 1? Tonne 141,448.0 133,248.7
#E—> U
Scope 2° Tonne 197,026.4 192,261.8
#lE =3 s
Total GHG emissions Tonne 338,474.4 325,510.5
RERBHRAS 185
GHG emission density Tonne/ten thousand tonnes 4,433.6 4,892.1
BERBEENRERE WE, & A

Emissions

B
Total non-hazardous waste Tonne 959.8 976.6%
EEEREVAS 145
Intensity of non-hazardous waste Tonne/ten thousand tonnes 12.6 14.74
mEBRRYRE WE, &R
Total hazardous waste Tonne 10,008.3 10,923.0
BEBEEMHEE U
Intensity of hazardous waste Tonne/ten thousand tonnes 131.1 164.2
BERENEE Ly

1 Total output of the self-made products of four companies located in Sanshui, BRI RE - IE IR REEEERR AR B R

Chengdu, Jiangxi, Henan and the Precision Manufacturing Company. The
differences in the intensity data below are due to rounding.

2 Scope 1 emissions are direct emissions resulting from the Group’s consumption
of natural gas and diesel, calculated with reference to the “Guidelines on the
Calculation Method and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emission by Other
Industries”.

3 Scope 2 emissions are indirect emissions resulting from the Group’s purchased
electricity, calculated with reference to the “Guidelines on the Calculation
Method and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emission by Other Industries”.

4 In order to more accurately reflect the environmental impacts of this data, we
changed the statistical methodology for this data in 2023. As a result, this 2022
data needs to be revised under the new methodology to ensure comparability
with the 2023 data.

ERMGES - UTHREZEEBEAHEZRERAEA
HE-PREEAEERAREEHERSHNEER
BINE  2E T(TEAEMITELEREREIMEZ
B RREMEEEETTAE

HE_HMBREAEEINEENEEOMEERE -
S2ET(IEEMITECERERBHIUZE AR
RERBY BT E -
BRI R BURFTE £ IRE R E - BT
2023FER T WEEN G A Al B S
FTAET - 2022 FEUE T ZIEHERT - AR
2023 FMEIBE 2 HMAB AT o
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Key performance indicators Unit 2023 2022
BREARER B
Air pollution emissions
KRB R
Total nitrogen oxide Kg 29,491.6 22,201.0
mENYEE TR
Total sulphur dioxide Kg 17,501.7 11,063.7
—EeneE T
Total VOCs Kg 16,271.2 11,089.3
AEVOCs & T
Total fluoride Kg 1,411.7 2,681.3
ALY EE T
Total general dust Kg 2,623.8 2,385.3
— IR T
Wastewater discharge
BEXKBER
Total chemical oxygen demand Kg 35,156.6 67,404.0
tEFasHE T
Total ammonia Kg 1,992.0 2,685.4
aREE Fr
Exceedance or other non-compliance Times 0 0
situations
8 H PR B S B A N & AR 1B R IRER
Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity Times 0 0
with environmental laws and regulations
EAT & RIRAR AR 4% 51 S AL IRER
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Environmental,

Key performance indicators

BRANER

Use of Resources
ERER

Total energy consumption®

BUIREFREEES

Energy consumption intensity

AR HFERE

Total purchase of electricity

BEE RS

Electricity consumption intensity

RERE

Total natural gas usage volume

RARBRAE

Intensity of natural gas usage

RARAERE

Total water consumption

AkiaE

Water intensity

RK®E

Usage of packaging materials (carton, kraft
paper, etc.)

BEMHBAE (A FRESE)

Intensity of packaging materials (carton,
kraft paper, etc.)

BEMBETE (B - FREE)

Usage of packaging materials (Others,
including polyethylene wool, protective
membrane, condensed membrane and
self-adhesive tape)

BEMHAE (Hft - BEPHKE - RiE
IR WHER - B

Intensity of packaging materials (Others,
including polyethylene wool, protective
membrane, condensed membrane and
self-adhesive tape)

Unit
By

kWh
FE
kWh/ten thousand tonnes
TR &
kWh
FRE
kWh/ten thousand tonnes
FTRE B
m3
RV
m>/ten thousand tonnes
SR &R
Tonne
7
Tonne/ten thousand tonnes
g, &R

Tonne

7
Tonne/ten thousand tonnes

e, & ME

Tonne

7

Tonne/ten thousand tonnes

BEMHBERE (Bt - BEZRR Wi, B
RAERR - WHERR - B
>  Energy includes electricity and natural gas, among which, the calculation of natural 5

gas is made by reference to the conversion factor in the “Guidelines on the

Calculation Method and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emission by Other Industries”.

Social and Governance Report

BRI - HEREREE

2023

1,110,083,059.3

14,540,631.6

381,392,010.5

4,995,734.9

67,382,797.5

882,626.2

3,028,994.4

39,675.9

19,457.0

254.9

8,817.2

115.5

2022

1,017,619,188.4

15,293,743.0

344,830,897.5

5,182,444.7

62,213,413.0

935,002.0

3,135,270.9

47,119.8

20,0981

302.1

6,244.2

93.8

BRBBENMRAR - Hh - RARMNFESZ T(TEEMIT
ESTS

ERBH RS AR E R PHBRERE -
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IRIE - tERERHRSE

Key performance indicators Unit 2023 2022
AREVER B
Social Aspect®
HEHERe
Employment
&%
Total employees Number 8,091 8,308
BIEES A N
By gender
IR B 5
Male Number 6,434 6,605
Fit N
Female Number 1,657 1,703
pegia N
By age
RFRE D
16-30 Number 1,219 1,520
16-30 5% AR
31-50 Number 5,914 6,038
31-505% A
>50 Number 958 749
>505% N
By employment type
REREREIS
Full-time employees Number 8,091 8,308
IEVES ABL
Contracted or part-time employees Number 0 0
R IFIEXIEE N -

& Employees for the five companies: Sanshui, Chengdu, Jiangxi, Henan and Precision 6 A=K AKED I N MEREEREARMNES
Manufacturing. All employees came from the Chinese mainland. BN - EEHKEREANM -
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IRIE - HENRERERSE

Key performance indicators

BRANER

Turnover rate
EBERKE
Overall turnover rate
FEE NS
By gender
=MERIEN S
Male
it
Female
poglia
By age
RERE S
16-30
16-30 5%
31-50
31-505%
>50
>505%

Health and Safety
BREHEZE
Number of work-related fatality’
FRERETARN ¢
Number of work-related injuries
HITIEXE AR
Number of working days lost due to work
related-injuries
AIGEALTIEEE
Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity
with laws and regulations related to health
and safety
B &R EELR 2 HEARR M S e
AR

Unit
By

%

%

%

%

%

%

Number
AH

Number
A#
Days

H
Times

7 For the year ended 31 December 2021 (“2021"), the number of work-related fatality
was 3. The work-related fatality rates for the years 2021, 2022, and the Reporting

Period were 0.038%, 0.012% and 0% respectively.

7

2023

56.9

57.9

52.7

113.8

51.0

20.5

22

2,000

HE2021FN2AALFE(=2T=—%F]) -

2022

51.3

52.6

46.2

98.9

43.4

19.0

HE I

RTCABARIA ZTZ—F - T _FRBEHA

THEIRT-RIEE RS 5 50.038% * 0.012% K% 0% °
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IRIE - tERERHRSE

Key performance indicators Unit 2023 2022
BRARER B

Development and Training
B RIEH
Average training hours
15 15 51 5 2K
By employment type
RERELED

Senior management Hours 16.6 21.8
BRELRE /N
General management Hours 16.9 12.7
—MRETEE NS
Non-management Hours 29.3 241
FEEE N

By gender

RIERI B 5
Male Hours 29.6 23.7
Fit N
Female Hours 27.3 22.9
Z4 N

The percentage of employees trained
XIMEEBDHL
By employment type
RERELED
Senior management % 100 80.6
BREEE
General management % 100 771
—REEE
Non-management % 100 98.2
FEEE
By gender
RIERI B
Male % 100 99.4
Flt
Female % 100 91.3
Eogia
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Key performance indicators

BRANER

Suppliers
IR
Number of suppliers by region
it & o RS A
Chinese mainland
A B A9 1
Hong Kong
X
Overseas

AL

Labour standard
BT AR
Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity
with laws and regulations related to
labour standard
BN & 8 B 85 AR 4% 51 s sk A 5
Product responsibility
EmEE
Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity
with laws and regulations related to
product responsibility
BT & 2 mm AR BE VR AR M 4% &1 SRS e A
New products and technical patents acquired
during the Year
FINTELT HO T EE o S B AT A

Anti-corruption
RESS
Legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or staff
HETAZHESRE I EEENESTH

el

Community investment
HERE
Total community investment®
HERENEESD®

Unit
By

Number
EgE
Number
#H
Number

28

Cases

IRER

Cases

IRER

Number

Cases

S

RMB10,000
BAR®

8 In 2023, the total community investment made by the Group was RMB100,000.
Within the scope of the Report, RMB31,500 was donated for community investment.

BRI - HEREREE

2023 2022
1,193 1,002
1 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
183 177
0 0
3.15 10.19

8 20234 - AEEABE AR 100,0007T : R L
BN HERENESHAARKE 31,5007 °
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RIR - tERER

HE

APPENDIX IlI: INDEX OF HKEX ESG REPORTING

GUIDE

Aspects
Eol

A. Environmental
ARFERE
Aspect A1: Emissions

BEAT : 59

KPI'A1.1

RSB IR IR AL

KPI'AT.2

RASAR IR R A1.2

General disclosure

Information relating to air and

greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land and

generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

—RE

BREERIBRERBIN - mKK

TS BENEEREYN

EEEH

(@) BR: M

(b) BTFHBEITABEARE
AR IR E R

Z L:0KE

The types of emissions and
respective emissions data

BRI R ARRR B IR BUR

Direct (Scope 1) and indirect (Scope
2) GHG emissions (in tonnes) and,
where applicable, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per
facility)

BiE (#E) kegRMEE (8E2)
BEREHRE (ABEEHE) K (40
BR)BE(WNWABESSE( - 1B
AT E
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Aspects
g

KPI'A1.3

FASAEIRIRAL3

KPI'A1.4

RASAR IR A1.4

KPI'A1.5

RSB IR IR ALS

KPI'A1.6

RS AR IR R A1.6

Aspect A2:

Use of Resources

EBEA2 : &B(EH

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIE - HENRERERSE

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)

FRELBEREMEE (AWETE
R (AEm ) =2 (A S E 8 BT -
BHRMH

Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g., per unit of production
volume, per facility)

FREXEEEEMBE (CANESTE
K(nER) = E (AT EE B -

=,

SR E

Description of the emission target(s)
and steps taken to achieve them
PRI LB E B 1R S iE S
B B AR PTERERE 22 B

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled
and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them
HiREREREEEEYN
& RIIETEI S REE B R A
EDE L B R 5

General disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials

—MRiRE
BRERER(BEER - KERE
b ER A K B R

Section

-]

APPENDIX II:
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

fifsr— « IRE R
BRBARIER

APPENDIX II:
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

fifsr— « RE R B
RAENIER

4.1

4.2

Remarks
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Annual Report 2023 F %

173



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIE - tERERHRSE

Aspects
g

KPI'A2.1

RASEAE IR IR A2.1

KPI A2.2

RS AR IR R A2.2

KPI'A2.3

RASAE IR R A2.3

KPI A2.4

RS AE IR IR A2.4

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s)
and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)
REPREIDNEE RS HEEEIR
(W& - B3om) @2 (ATETF
RRAE) RZE (WASEEE
iz~ FIEARMAHE)

Water consumption in total and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)

B KERERE(MASESEN -

BHFMEE

Description of energy use efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them
PRI LR IR I A B IR R
RET|E L BRI E 5

Description of whether there is any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them
it SRERGE R IO - AT A el
7 ARFIEI B AR B IR &
RERE L B R PTERERE) B
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Aspects
g

KPI'A2.5

RASEAE IEIZ A2.5

Aspect A3: The
Environment and Natural
Resources

BHEA3 : REMRAREIR

KPI'A3.1

RS AE IR IR A3

Aspect A4:
Climate Change

BEAL: RS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit
produced

R mATABEM R EE (AN
AE) R (WER) BEESMIEE

General disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer’s
significant impact on the
environment and natural resources
—REE

AR FEIT AHRIE MR AEIREK
BATENEE

Description of the significant impacts
of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the action
taken to manage them

i EBEBEIRIE RRAAEIRE
BAREREHENEREEBETEN
178

General disclosure

Policies on identification and
mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted
and those which may impact, the
issuer

—REE
AR B RN A REHEITAE
EFENEARREREENRR

RIR - tERER

Remarks

(S
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BRI - HERERERE

Aspects Section Remarks

g 4] {-F

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant 4.3 This performance
climate-related issues which have indicator is not the most
impacted and those which may material aspect of the
impact, the issuer and the actions Group during the Year,
taken to manage them we will update it

according to relevant
regulations in future.

RS E IR IR A4 B LA G HEITAEER REF P IBRZRILIER
ENEARGEAEE - REYHTT SEEEENEE - B
EJ) FIEE A& 0 2R E
W -
B. Social
B EE R
Aspect B1: Employment General disclosure 5.1

Information relating to

compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination and other benefits

and welfare:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
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Aspects
g

EmEB1 : EfE

KPIB1.1

RSB IR R B

KPIB1.2

RS2 IRIZB1.2

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIE - HENRERERSE

—RIEE

ERFIRERE BEEEA T

BN B TEKE 2T

1t~ RBREAREA B REFR -

(@ BEE: &

(b) BFHBITABERTEMNME
AR RRANER

Total workforce by gender,
employment type (for example,
full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region

RIER - REER (N ERER

B) - FRARI kiR ESHES 2
2

Employee turnover rate by gender,
age group and geographical region

iR Rt & my 18

Section
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PERFORMANCE
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sk — : IR Rt B
RENIER
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
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RIRRIER
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IRIE - tERERHRSE

Aspects
g

Aspect B2:
Health and Safety

BEB2: BEEZS

KPI'B2.1

RASAE 1517 B2.1

KPI B2.2

RASRAR IR B2.2

KPI'B2.3

RAS AR WIE 1R B2.3

178 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED %42 %42l 5 1R A 7

General disclosure

Information relating to providing a

safe working environment and

protecting employees from

occupational hazards:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

—RIE

BRRHZETERRENREES

BRBEEEER

(@ BEE: &

(b) BTFHETABEATENME
AR RROINER

Number and rate of work-related

fatalities occurred in each of the past

three years including the reporting
year

BEZF (BREBRFE)SFET
TEHH AR R

Lost days due to work injury

ATEBERTIERHE

Description of occupational health
and safety measures adopted and
how they are implemented and
monitored

HA PR B R R R R 24
B ARMERATT R B TE

Section
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RIABIER
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PERFORMANCE
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RIABIER
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Aspects
g

Aspect B3: Development
and Training

[EME B3 : B 157

KPI'B3.1

A B A8 R 1R B3

KPI B3.2

BB NIEIEB3.2

Aspect B4:
Labour Standard

[EHE B4 : & TR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

General disclosure

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work Description of training
activities

—REE
BRRAREBITIIERE N AH
MEREHIBUR © fLIEIE S

The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management)

R RIE B (SR ERE -
hRERE) MSNZIIEEES
e

The average training hours
completed per employee by gender
and employee category

RIER KB 8 5B HIEH
TR DI T2 B B

- BHEE

General disclosure

Information relating to preventing

child and forced labour:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

—RIEE

BEAPIIEE T SaE b4 ThH)

(@ BE: Rk

(b) BFHEITABE
MEE RO ER

FENH

RIR - tERER
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RIR - HERE

Aspects

Ll

KPI B4.1

RS A IR IZ B4

KPI B4.2

R4S ISR BA.2

Aspect B5: Supply Chain

Management

[EMBS5 : HEHEEIR

KPI B5.1

RS AE WFEIZ B5.1

KPI'B5.2

RASE 45 515 B5.2

awmE

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour

HE g ET R B Bl R pE AR S
TRaEhlsT

Description of steps taken to
eliminate such practices when
discovered
MR B RIEAGER GBS
SUPERER ) 25 58

General disclosure

Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain
—RE

B EEARE M g R R BER

Number of suppliers by geographical
region

miEE D MHEERHE

Description of practices relating to
engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented and how they
are implemented and monitored
Tt A RS RO E R AV 1B B - I E
WITERBENNHEREE ARk
HERITRERT A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIE - HENRERERSE

Aspects Section Remarks
il E=4:1] G
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to 3.5

identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain and how
they are implemented and
monitored

RS A IR B5.3 it A B R ERE IR
BERAERRED - LARAEREH
TRERNE

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to 3.5
promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting
suppliers and how they are
implemented and monitored

RSB M IE1RB5.4 SR R R 2 AIRIR
2 SRR TSV IB B - LA RABREFT
KEERTTA
Aspect B6: General disclosure 3
Product Responsibility Information relating to health and

safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products

and services provided and methods

of redress:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

EmB6 : EmAE —RINE

BEFREERNREHRRES

2 RBE BREEMEFEENURE

RTER

(@ BE: Kk

(b) BTHETARGEATENN
B KIROINER
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IRIE - tERERHRSE

Aspects Section Remarks
g 4] {-F
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or - During the Reporting
shipped subject to recalls for safety Period, there was no
and health reasons product recalled due to
safety and health
reasons.
RS AR 1R B6.1 EERCEXEMBERTELEH BEHRN - RENRARA
fEREhmARKN E D e IR A M ZE R
WY Emn
KPI B6.2 Number of product and service- 3.1 During the Reporting
related complaints received and how 3.3 Period, there was no
they are dealt with product and service-
related complaints
received.
RS E 512 B6.2 RN Em MRS E A HREHR - REDREE
NS 5% BT E an R IRTSBR
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to 3.2

observing and protecting intellectual
property rights

BB EE1RB6.3 et R A R AR PR AN B E R Y
(=

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance 3.1
process and recall procedures

BB IR B6.4 HLE 8 F B REMBIWIZF

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data 3.4

protection and privacy policies, how
they are implemented and
monitored

RIS 512 B6.5 HMOEE & BURRIE RALEE -
AR AERERIT R BB TA
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IRIE - HENRERERSE

Aspects Section Remarks
il E=4:1] G
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption General disclosure 5.5

Information relating to bribery,

extortion, fraud and money

laundering:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

[EMEB7 : RE)S —MRiRE

BEEPIERRES - BR - MGFROER

B

(@) BUR: M

(b) BFHETABERTENN
AR AR DI ER

KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases 55
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases

RS E R 1R BT RERAANE T AR HESRH
WEBENETHRARMEHEE &
FANER

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures 5.5
and whistle-blowing procedures and
how they are implemented and
monitored

RS E 5 1R B7.2 A By S48 b S R ERAR T - A KA
BT RERT X

KPIB7.3 Description of the anti-corruption 5.5
training provided to directors and
employees

BABE B IR BT 3 HmEERETRHORESE

Bl
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BRI - HERERERE

Aspects
g

Aspect B8: Community
Investment

EmB8 : HEIKRE

KPI B8.1

A48 A HE 17 B8

KPI B8.2

RASR AR W17 B8.2

General disclosure

Policies on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the
communities” interests

—REE

AL R SR T BE BT
@FEEMBEREEBETEEEEMT
%= ) 25 B R

Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport)
BFEREE(HE REEH
BITEsk @k b - 8B5)

Resources contributed (e.g. money
or time) to the focus area
EETHRAEBAER (NS
FfE)
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Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBHRk2BILHMES

KPMG

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 194 to 318 which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KPMG

B AR E
BERERERERAFAKRR
(REASHSZME L BRAA)

=R

AZEED (AR (3 )) E BT IE R E
194 =318 BB IR IR AR AR (AT
BIEAEREMBRARATHE &£ )
MEE M ERE WU ERRBEER T ==
F+ A=+ BOGEEMERRREEETZ
HIEFERNGEGERR GeBakEMmER
WEHR  GEEREHRNGAEESRER
AR BIEEAGTBRANREMRERE

BFIRR  ZFHEVBERREREBR S
ZAZES((BERETLENZES )R ACE
B BHEER) (KERPBHEERD]) A
EmPEitRRT BEKER-_T_=F1+=
A=t BNHREUBRRARBEZB LFE
MEEVBRARGERERE  YEBRE
SR BERG) B FE B Z DR

RRENER

BZMERETESHMAS([REGFMA
g BEMACERESEL) (KFBEFTE
D) ETE - RPEZFEN TAENR
EEEARS [ZBEI R E R A M B RR A
EMEETI BoTEE— TR - RIZFAE
AR A G RMACEE G EER TR (AT
B[R D ARBERMERASHSEA T
BROBEAEENBREELR RABLIRES
CWEETTATHEMERBRET &
PIHRfE - RAIPAESHETRERETEREE
AT FIRE BRI FER -

I
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Independeni Auditor’'s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRR 2B IZETHRE

Key audit matters

REESEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FA#EFTFHERBERMINEZEHE - R EE
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the ARHGEPBREANENTRAEENEH &
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These LtEBEIZEFRMIBFEEGEESTBHRER LA
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the HEZRBEEITRIEN - I T2 EELEIE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our ZHEFBHNER

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on page from 230 to 234.

The Key Audit Matter

BRENSEE

Revenue mainly comprises sales of aluminium profiles to
distributors in a variety of end-user markets.

W BRERBELRRNIS 2D HAHEERIY -

Each year, the Group enters into a framework distribution
agreement with each distributor and sells its products in
accordance with the terms of separate purchase orders.
Once the products are delivered to the location designated
by the distributor, the control of the goods are considered
to have been transferred to the distributor and revenue is
recognised.

ESEZFERDHEBILERD HBZERRESKE
RIBZIGREEER - —BEEMIXNED HEE TN
B RS mEEIERR REER T o HE LR R
Wiz o

WEHTER : pEERHE
EREG A SRR3R 2302234 B IS HEKE °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNETEEZSER

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue from distributor arrangements included the
following:
BPIRNFED HE R 2 RS ERNEA T ERE
IATR&IA

e assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal controls
which govern revenue recognition;

o HMHEBRUWEEREEEAEANIBEIT 225
Bt KETRN ¢

e reading distribution agreements entered into with
distributors, on a sample basis, and considering
whether any agreements contain terms permitting
the distributors to make sales returns;

s WMBEMEBEBRESHEEAI L NHEHRE  IEBES
BEEABZEES A D HAEEREZ KR
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Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Consolidqied Financial Statements

Key audit matters (Continued)

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on page from 230 to 234.

The Key Audit Matter

BRENSEE

We identified the recognition of revenue from distributor
arrangements a key audit matter because revenue is one
of the key performance indicators of the Group and
therefore there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the
timing of recognition of revenue by management to meet
specific targets or expectations.

BRSO HE L WS RHA RERETFE R

REWk#T) BERERERRRES— WHEEEER
R E LR RAZH AR B RXBERRFERES R
|§Mo

n'.F

TR

M BHR 2B RENERE

FEEETTEE %)

D DB R

2252 B4 A

EREE A SRR3R 2302234 B IS 5HEKE °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNETEEZER

for a sample of revenue transactions recorded just
before and after the year end, inspecting the
related goods delivery notes, which had been
signed and dated by the distributors as evidence of
their receipt of the goods, to assess if the related
revenue had been recognised in the appropriate
financial period on the basis of the terms of sale as
set out in the distribution agreements and the
terms of the purchase orders; and
RRFRABELHE WA RGEAME @ RER
AR EE(HE A HEHE Rt A R BN EKE
BEE) - ArHh AR R B EREB D R ZAE
ZHE RN RIRIB AT E 2 RN EE M B HE T
IARERR &

inspecting significant manual adjustments to
revenue raised during the reporting period,
enquiring of management the reasons for such
adjustments and comparing the details of the
adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.
EEREHAEREMENERTHRAE  MF
BEARBEARNRE  WHABRNFIEENR
B EITHLR »
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FEMBHRR 2B IZETHRE

Key audit matters (Continued)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

Refer to Note 30(a) to the consolidated financial
Statements and the accounting policies on page from 218
to 223.

The Key Audit Matter

HRENSEE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’'s gross trade
receivables amounted to RMB3,226,048,000, against
which an allowance of RMB1,033,451,000 for expected
credit losses (ECLs) was recorded.
RZZBEZ=F+ZA=+—H ESEXRFEWFIELE
BAARYK3,226,048,000 T - HHERBTEMEEEER
B AR 1,033,451,000 7T °

Management measures the ECL allowance for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
EREERREENHRRCEEFENSRITERHRE
WRRIRR TR B E B R 1R 54 -

Management measures the ECL allowance for credit-
impaired trade receivables individually based on the future
cash flows expected to be derived from the collaterialised
assets.
EREREEMFEENEEELNARESRE &
BirBEERERSREFENTRREEEEEE -

For trade receivables that are not credit-impaired, the ECL
allowance is measured using a provision matrix, which
involves the use of estimated loss rates for each category
of trade receivables which are grouped according to shared
credit risk characteristics. The estimated loss rates take into
account the ageing of trade receivable balances, the
payment history of the Group’s customers, current market
conditions and forward-looking information. Such
assessment involves significant management judgement
and estimation.

HRUBEERENZZEBFKIENS @ SKARGBRER
BRHEERERE S MERRARNGEERRE
BOENZER S REFIENGTBEX - A EBREX
ERTRHERRFIEGERORKR ~NEEEP AN RE
£ BRSO RATELEER - ZRPREANER
& # B 2 A5t -

FEEETTEE %)

REERFEBENEREEEERE
FRRI A B IR RN 30@) 218 R 223 BRI E 5
B °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRAWETNAEEZSEE

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance for
trade receivables included the following:

BFIRUF AR ZREFIEZ AREEBRRENS
STEFEEATSIE

e obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls relating to credit control,
debt collection and estimating the ECL allowance;

o THMEKEAMEERE BBKRERMEFES
EEBEREBZARANMEE 2R - B lE
TR

e evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating the
ECL allowance with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standard;

o KB2EBMGIEANNBRE  Th EXEEE
TR EERREENEBER

e obtaining an understanding of the key judgements,
parameters and assumptions that management
uses in its implementation of the ECL model,
including the identification of credit-impaired trade
receivables, the basis of segmentation of the
trade receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics of customers, the historical credit
loss data used in management’s estimated loss
rates;

s THREEBEECEHRENEEEIBREARERNH
BHE - 2EARR  EEHANEERERZE
WHIE - BEREFPHEREERRFHERZZER
FIEMDHKE  BEEEMGEEXREERNE
LEEEEEE
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Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables
Refer to Note 30(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on page from 218
to 223.

The Key Audit Matter

BEETEE

We identified the ECL allowance for trade receivables as a
key audit matter because the gross carrying amount of the
trade receivables and the related ECL allowance are
material to the Group and determining the level of the ECL
allowance requires the exercise of significant management
judgement, which is inherently subjective.
BMBERGEEKRENEREEEERESN REARE
SEIE - REAER S EKKIENRERE RE@ERERE
EEERGY BEREEEE EETRHGEERHE
BHIKFREREBELERNAE - ESFENETHETE
M o

SEMBHRk2BILHMES

REERFENEHREEEERE
BRI A AN 30(a) 218 2223 BRI & 5T
BUR o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETNAEEZSEE

e for credit-impaired trade receivables, evaluating the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the
collateralised assets with reference to market
information;

s BEERERSFEKUREMNS  K2EMHELS
A TEEE e EREEEERRRRESNE

e assessing, whether items in the trade receivables
ageing reports were categorised in the appropriate
ageing bracket by comparing individual items
therein with relevant underlying sales invoices, on a
sample basis;

s BRHEWFIARKEKNIELIAR LEMIEBMIEE
SERETHELE - AEERRKRREANER
BOREZHEENRKBE

e testing the accuracy of the historical credit loss data
and evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current market
conditions and forward-looking information; and

o AIFBEEEBBEENERE LT HBESRE
EREHRBAITSAR KA EER EY)FHE
P54

e re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance
as at 31 December 2023 based on the Group’s ECL
allowance policies.

e RiEF BEEENTHEHEERERBEE  EEMA
BERZT_=F+-A=+—HHEBEEH-
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FEMBHRR 2B IZETHRE

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBHRk2BILHMES

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

BB ET RS U BRRAEN
B

BFNEE  RYUSRAVMBHRRBERSSF
FERRAFE AR M BN EKHERRARG
BERE YHABERMEROZEE R
& RIEREBIRRBRE © BRULAIN - 3
BRE TR AEREMARE - R TRARS
MRS HEMEMALTBESREET -

BEAEERKPHRE  ETERERKE
BEEADETHNRFT  EX-BAHERR
AMAFFERS B BE TR - SRR AL AT LA fh BRRE 88
el - IMRAIEIEHIT BBk E AR R A
RER B AR A M5 R (E B & KRR 5 R P AE
HEVE R TE - BB BER)EE SRR A AT AR (F &
* o

ERECEBETEDETETHBES - I
PIER T EXHE - RIFTEXEREE - &
{FI7R

o BAMFEARKRFRERMEBRE
MBHRERFEEAHRBUANER - %5
MYITEAEF NEHE LR - ARE
BREMEENETEE  ERRMAER
MVERE - ARNEFFRIRES R ERR - B
ERER  ERRA - SORBERAEHES
2L FRERRARFMERNEK
B8 AR R A 1O [ e = A PR BE 3R 3R R 88 RR T
BHRNBERFERRANRR -

o THREBHAMOAMES - ARTEE
MBS  BROLIEY BEERN
THE BB RES -

o FHEEEMRASTBENREERIE
SR A MR NEN SR -
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FEMBHRR 2B IZETHRE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBHRk2BILHMES

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Yu Hei.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

FERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREE5I7R)

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Impairment loss on trade and other
receivables

Profit from operations
Finance costs
Share of loss of an associate

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year

Earnings per share
Basic (RMB yuan)

Diluted (RMB yuan)

BRE
SHE R

ER
H it Y zn

TR

R 5 K EAM B IRREE 1R

gEnR
BATE A
D5 —REE R BEER

BR B AT 3 R
PR

FEEF

LU AL HE
AARRESER
FEIE R R

FEEF

BRAF
ERNARET)

By ARET)

The notes on pages 201 to 318 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note

29(b).
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2023 2022
—E_-= B CF
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
M et AR¥Fir ARKFIT
5 17,352,551 16,933,064
(15,362,349) (15,158,361)
1,990,202 1,774,703
4 172,618 132,138
(374,054) (288,446)
(439,264) (410,523)
5() (293,204) (552,098)
1,056,298 655,774
5(@) (138,056) (138,874)
15 (1,919) (5,016)
5 916,323 511,884
6 (108,222) (50,575)
808,101 461,309
804,171 457,774
3,930 3,535
808,101 461,309

10
1.91 1.09
1.91 1.09

F201EEBAZMERZFMBHRRN—
BB D - AR R ERBCREIG F RN 2 BT

EFBEHRHE290)



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for
the year (after tax):

Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Equity investments at FVOCl — net
movement in fair value reserve
(non-recycling)

Items that are or may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements of operations
outside the Chinese Mainland

Cash flow hedge: net movement in
the hedging reserve

Other comprehensive income for
the year

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for
the year

The notes on pages 201 to 318 form part of these financial

statements.

FEREREMEEIRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ —Z - =F+_A=+—HIFE

FEEF

FEEHM2ERE (1
HMIER) -

5
N

B ER A M2 EKER

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AARHEFIR)

\BEM O BERR AR

BIE — AT ERERE

FE(TREE)

ERLHE A RETDIEE

R HE -
BERBERMIBEINERZ
M HmRZERLZR

R mEL - $PHEE
HE)FE

FEHEMEEYS

FEZHEHRSEAE

BUF AT R4
ZNGIE: $li
FEIE S

FEZHRSEAE

2023 2022

—E_-= B CF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M et AR%Fir ARKFIT
808,101 461,309

9

3,112 2,298

201 1,455
- (70,846)
3,313 (67,093)

811,414 394,216

807,484 390,681

3,930 3,535

811,414 394,216

F201EEBAZMERZFMHHRERN —

BB
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Fa MR &

At 31 December 2023 R=ZE—-_=F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AAR#FIR)

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Interest in an associate

Equity securities designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income
("FvVOCI™)

Derivative financial instruments

Prepayments

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Derivative financial instruments
Inventories and other contract costs
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets held for sale

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Loans and borrowings
Lease liabilities

Current taxation

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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FRBEE
YE G
BREMFE

ERERE
BVEE
N NG P T

BERBAHEF AR EE
Yzs ([ A FER AR
EEYE ) WA

TESMIA
BNFIA
ERERIREE

hRBEE
TESRMTA
FEREME LKA
R 5 N E AR IR
BN IE

EHEAER

RAe MREEHEY
FEREZIFRBEE

RBAEE
R 5 K EA RN FIR
BHEE
ERREE
HERE
BNEATR IR

RBEEFHR

REERRBAE

Notes

et

11
11

12
13
15

16
17
19(b)
28(b)

17
18
19(a)
19(b)
20
21
15

22
23
24
25
28(a)

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
—=E_= —E-4F
ZHA=1—H pyiEakl=!
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR%Fr ARKEFIT
3,303,653 2,845,925
193,580 199,052
3,497,233 3,044,977
465,218 401,813
2,586 2,998

- 3,959

36,508 32,847
4,315 8,556
31,432 -
201,919 145,621
4,239,211 3,640,771
- 3,402
1,362,123 1,453,525
4,191,085 4,751,383
107,102 172,381
124,250 224,736
2,840,415 1,849,773
2,040 =
8,627,015 8,455,200
3,822,213 4,420,769
382,413 378,517
499,590 550,452
2,518 2,427
88,201 70,885
4,794,935 5,423,050
3,832,080 3,032,150
8,071,291 6,672,921




Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Lease liabilities
Deferred income
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A RIFINR R

FRBEME
ERREE

HERE
B A

EEHIRRE

EERE

B AR f#
[EEN
Gl

shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21

March 2024.

The notes on pages 201 to 318 form part of these financial

statements.

SR

REEAHE

Wang Li

S

Chairman

]

R0 E R R A R AR

At 31 December 2023 R=—FE—_=F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AARHEFIR)

31 December

31 December

2023 2022

—E-= =
+=A=+-0 QECERE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
vz QEPLEEA AR%TT
24 2,647,902 1,948,554
25 3,537 5,624
26 66,118 41,579
28(b) 27,903 21,700
2,745,460 2,017,457
5,325,831 4,655,464
29 3,753 3,753
5,314,555 4,648,118
5,318,308 4,651,871
7,523 3,593
5,325,831 4,655,464

Liao Yuging
BEXE
Executive Director

HITEF

RZTBZNF=A-t+—ARESTSHRERRE
)3 -

F201EEBAZMERZFMBHRRN—

2B -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HoRSEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ T -_=F+_-_A=+—HILtFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AAR#5I7R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RO RRERFEE
Fair value Non-
Share Share Capital Other  Statutory  Exchange  Hedging reseve  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserves reserve reserve (non-ecyding)  earnings Total interests equity
AVERE

Bx  RGEE EARRE  HbRE  EERE  ENRR  WMBE  (fTHE)  REEA @it FERER Er i

Notes RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

Wi ARBFT ARETFL ARETT AREFT ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARKTT
Note 29(c)  Note 29(a)(i) Note 29(c)ii)  Note 29(c)ii) Note 29(c)(iy)  Note 29(c)y) Note 29(c)(ui) Note 29(c) i)
Hiit290 29 M2 HE2900) M2 HE290n K29 29

Balance at 1 January 2022 R-E--%#-B-H
2kt 3,744 188,048 9414 209,822 397,680 604 1121 - 3662303 4479342 58 4479400

Changes in equity for2022:  —B-ZEEHEE !

Profit for the year B30 - - - - - - - - ASITIA 45774 3535 461,309
Other comprehensive income 2N - - - - - 1,455 (70,846) 2,298 - (67,093) - (67,093)
Total comprehensive income 2 EKEEE - - - - - 1,455 (70,846) 2298 457,774 390,681 3535 394216

Shares issued due to exercse of - RfF(FEEREEIMES

share option scheme Bk 290) 9 7199 (1,370) - - - - - - 52838 - 5838
Amounts transferred from EhspalA

hedging reserve to inital HREENRERE

camying amount of hedged

items 30() - - - - - - 63,119 - - 63,119 - 63,119
Recognition of employees' share  H32/E BB iE3t 2l

option scheme 27 - - (1,690) - - - - - - (1,690) - (1,690)
Appropriation to reserves ER20E - - - - 8,790 - - - (8.790) - - -
Dividend approved in respect of  BAEFEH KRS

the previous year 29(b) - (47,008) - - - - - - (238411) (285419 - (285419

Balance at 31 December 2022 H=F==#+=f=t-H
and 1 January 2023 R=2-z£-§-Rz
&8 3,753 148,239 6,354 209,822 406,470 2,059 - 2298 3872816 465187 3593 4,655,464

Changes in equity for2023:  —B-=FEHEE:

Profit for the year EE R - - - - - - - - 80471 84T 3930 808101
Other comprehensive income 22N E - - - - - 21 - 3112 - 3313 - 3313
Total comprehensive income 2 EREHE - - - - - 201 - 3112 804 807,484 3930 811414
Appropriation to reserves HRZEE - - - - 7,49 - - - (7,49) - - -
Dividend approved in respect of  BEEFEHELRS

the previous year 29(b) - - - - - - - - (141047)  (141,047) - (141,047)

Balance at 31 December 2023 W=B==§
TR=t-Az&H 3,753 148,239 6,354 209,822 413,966 2,260 - 5410 4528504 5318308 7523 5325831

The notes on pages 201 to 318 form part of these financial 5201EZXE318EH 2K A
statements. Ao

;gi}:
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Operating activities

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid
Dividend withholding tax paid

Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") paid

Net cash generated from operating

activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Payment for purchase of property, plant
and equipment and land use rights

Payment for pledged deposits

Proceeds received upon maturity of

pledged deposits

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Payment for purchase of unlisted equity

securities

Payment for deposit of commodity
futures

Refund from deposit of commodity
futures contracts

Net cash used in investing activities

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

= he -1 —§
FARRERER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2—Z-=F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AARHEFIR)

BEED

EBRERE

EfAEH

B EFEH

BN LR ER (T LR ER )

REEZBMBRS TR

REED

BEUFLE

BEWE  BEIREBAK
T 2 SRIA
EHEMRERAR
REBRERIHRENK
PT1S3R
HEME - BFELREMSE
R

BEF ETEABSF 2R
BmBEeEE 2R

BRmMEANREREN
PSR

REZHMARLFE

Note
KfaF

21(b)
28(a)
28(a)
28(a)

2023 2022
—E-= —E__F
RMB‘000 RMB’000
AR%F T AREFT
1,608,157 943,990
(131,537) (138,260)
(10,000) (14,718)
(13) (245)
1,466,607 790,767
63,220 59,344
(980,917) (975,097)
(2,022,764) (2,400,436)
2,123,250 2,384,619
4,826 20,312
(27,516) -
(2,000) (141,000)
5,200 161,869
(836,701) (890,389)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FARRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZ2—ZE-=F+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AAR#5I7R)

Financing activities

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Interest paid

Proceeds from loans and borrowings

Repayment of loans and borrowings

Dividends paid to equity shareholders of
the Company

Proceeds from shares issued under share
option scheme

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

The notes on pages 201 to 318 form part of these financial

statements.

200

MEED
#5
#5

BEfNEEzAE
B 2FE
ERFE

ERKEEREHRIA
EEERNEE

ENARRREBRIR 2R

B EIE T EHITRN

Z SR

MEZHRERLFE

B kBRESEWEMFER

R—A—BHHWRERAE

£EY

EREEH o TE

Rt=-—A=+t—BHEBRER

REZEY
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Note
KfaF

21(c)
21(c)
21(c)
21(c)
21(c)
29(b)

29(c)

21(@a)

21(@a)

2023 2022
—E_-= — T &
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR%Fir ARKEFIT
(2,293) (1,985)
(321) (515)
(146,135) (139,052)
2,771,236 3,527,664
(2,122,750) (2,780,017)
(141,047) (285,419)

- 5,838

358,690 326,514
988,596 226,892
1,849,773 1,643,133
2,046 (20,252)
2,840,415 1,849,773

F201BEE318E 2T AZEIBREN—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

EXREHEE

1 Material accounting policies 1

BREH

(a) Statement of compliance (a)

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Material accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

SEMBHRERTDRBAAERZE
W% 765 e o 2 R ([ B B 75 s o5 2
Al]) - ZMEERBER G EAER
B ((BERetENZER]) Rk
B P 7 i AR 1 Y B B B 75 o 5 2
A B g 2R BRER &£
Al]) KRR RBEBRRIGRZ 3
BRTHRE ZEWBBRERNTTA
BEBARIAERAREZ LT
MAZ BB ERIG - AEBERMY
ZERSEBRBELT -

BEReERZE @ RHETHE
B BmEERNER - ZFER
RRAEEARS R & RERK
AREHRM - MREAREEAE
6 B8 2 BIFR Bt 75 o &5 B R P 5l 3K
ERMEAHEEMNSABRE
B CRBRRZEVEHRERRAN - A
BB RDIFNHIFE 1) °

201

Annual Report 2023 F %



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR RE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAERIN  BEUARBIIR)

1

202

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and
the Group's interest in an associate.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand,
which is the functional currency of the major subsidiaries
carrying out the principal activities of the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

— investments in debt and equity securities (see Note
1(f)); and

— derivative financial instruments (see Note 1(g)).

Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (see note

1(2)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED #2458 %1ZRAR A 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

B IRk EE

n'.F

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(o)

(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 2.

Changes in accounting policies
The Group has applied the following new and amended

IFRSs issued by the IASB to these financial statements for
the current accounting period:

IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

. Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors:
Definition of accounting estimates

o Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Making
materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting
policies

° Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax
related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

° Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: International
tax reform — Pillar Two model rules

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

1 EREFTEE®E)

(b)

(c)

MBBRZEREE(E)

fhEt MR B R SR AR - G5
fhat 2 BRI & EE R fEat R (f
ERTERFEZ M) HEFTHE K
REHIE (HEFT 8 B 3l KRR
HARS) BERR o

H

& 12 [E FE P BB B 5 SR 5 M RIS BT
{EHE B RER B EATEN A
Rt A EEAR 2 EEZRRER
B2

B BEEH

AEEERAEHEEO R
BENEAUTER G ENES
R T RIS T B A S 3R
EESIE

s BRUBHS
{%AAEI

HERIZE1T755%

.+ ERMBESLAESRET
BB B
RS RS

© B2 2ERIZE 1 5FRIEFTA -
Eﬁ%#&i’%fﬂ&.@ﬂﬁ%#ﬁ%
ERBEBMESE 2% - (ELE
RULHIES : BB RE

o  [EIRREEERIF125RIERIA
St : BB —RXFEANE
EME EREEERIE

o  HBEEERIFE125EFIA -
Frfe®i « BB R HIeRE—SiE
—REFR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

v'.R

B IR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=HERIN

1

204

BEEAARKEDIR)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

()

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. None of these new and amendments
have had a material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented in the financial
statement except for impacts of the adoption of the new
and amended IFRSs discussed below:

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax
related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption such that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences on initial recognition such as leases
and decommissioning liabilities. For leases and
decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax
assets and liabilities are required to be recognised from
the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an
adjustment to retained earnings or other components of
equity at that date. For all other transactions, the
amendments are applied to those transactions that occur
after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Prior to the amendments, the Group did not apply the
initial recognition exemption to lease transactions and
had recognised the related deferred tax, except that the
Group previously determined the temporary difference
arising from a right-of-use asset and the related lease
liability on a net basis on the basis they arise from a single
transaction. Following the amendments, the Group has
determined the temporary differences in relation to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. The change
primarily impacts disclosures of components of deferred
tax assets and liabilities in Note 28(b), but does not
impact the overall deferred tax balances presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as the related
deferred tax balances qualify for offsetting under IAS 12.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

BEARSTHE®)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued) 1

(R) - INCIDSE g

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d)

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights
to, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which control commences
until the date on which control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised
income and expenses (except for foreign currency
transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests (“NCI”) either at
fair value or at the NCI's proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets. NCI are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. NCI in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between NCI
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of NCI and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1(r) or (s) depending on the nature
of the liability.

MEBAREAAREZEFNEE -
HWAKRERN2 B TR ZEMmME
BRERZTEHAEDT - WEEH
EREBERBCRITEZS
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FELEZRERERIAERER Y
mAER 2T - EERERE
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AELREHME  AREREE
WA Es IR R ([ IR AR
@) PTG R B 2 Al iR & E
ZH PG E A IRE R R - JREE
PR TSRS WA R 2 5
A - EAR RS R EEE
DHE - FERESEAEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nv'.R

B IR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=HERIN

1

206

BEEAARKEDIR)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary,
and any related NCI and other components of equity.
Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary is
measured at fair value when control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(m)), unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group classified as
held for sale) (see Note 1(2)).

Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
the financial and operating policies.

An interest in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group classified as held for sale)
(see Note 1(2)). They are initially recognised at cost, which
includes transaction costs. Subsequently, the consolidated
financial statements include the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income (“OCI") of
those investees, until the date on which significant
influence or joint control ceases.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED #2458 %1ZRAR A 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Associate (Continued)

()

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method,
together with any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate, after applying the ECL model to such other
long-term interests where applicable (see Note 1(m)(i)).

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-
accounted investees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent there is no
evidence of impairment.

Other investments in securities

The Group's policies for investments in securities, other
than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, are set out below.

Investments in securities are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment. The investments are initially stated at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except
for those investments measured at FVPL for which
transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or loss.
For an explanation of how the Group determines fair
value of financial instruments, see Note 30(f). These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.

(e)

(f)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nv'.R

B IR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAERIN  BEUARBIIR)

1

208

Material accounting policies (Continued)

()

Other investments in securities (Continued)
(i) Non-equity investments

Non-equity investments are classified into one of
the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Expected credit losses, interest income
calculated using the effective interest method
(see Note 1(w)(ii)(c)), foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.

— FVOCI — recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as if the
financial asset was measured at amortised
cost. The difference between the fair value
and the amortised cost is recognised in OCI.
When the investment is derecognised, the
amount accumulated in OCl is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

—  FVPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair value
of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Other investments in securities (Continued)
(i) Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
OCI. Such elections are made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective. If such election is made for a
particular investment, at the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained earnings and
not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from
an investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income (see
Note 1(w)(ii)(b)).

(g) Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to
manage its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the
host contract and accounted for separately if the host
contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are
met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with
changes therein recognised in profit or loss, except where
the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or
hedges of net investment in a foreign operation (see Note

1(h)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAERIN  BEUARBIIR)

1

210

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(h) Hedging

The Group designates the derivative as hedging
instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows
associated with highly probable forecast transactions
arising from change in commodity price.

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging
instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair
value of the derivative is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the hedging reserve within equity. The
effective portion that is recognised in OCl is limited to the
cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item,
determined on a present value basis, from inception of
the hedge. Any ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When the hedged forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial item such as
inventory, the amount accumulated in the hedging
reserve is removed from the reserve and is included
directly in the initial cost of the non-financial item when
it is recognised.

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the amount
accumulated in the hedging reserve is reclassified through
OCl to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment in the
same period or periods during which the hedged
expected future cash flows affect profit or loss. If the
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting
or the hedging instrument is sold, expires, is terminated
or is exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued
prospectively. When hedge accounting is discontinued,
the amount that has been accumulated in the hedging
reserve remains in equity until the transaction occurs and
it is recognised in accordance with the above policy.

If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to
occur, then the amounts that have been accumulated in
the hedging reserve is immediately reclassified through
OCl to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued)

0]

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note 1(l))
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are accounted for using the cost
model and stated in the statement of financial position at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Note 1(m)). The cost of investment property, less its
estimated residual value and accumulated impairment
losses, is depreciated using the straight-line method over
its estimated useful lives as follows.
— Land use rights 50 years
— Buildings and plants which are situated on
leasehold lands are depreciated over the shorter of
the unexpired term of the lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 35 years after the
date of completion.

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is recognised in accordance with
Note 1(w)(ii)(a).
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1

212

BEEAARKEDIR)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which
includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (see
Note 1(m)).

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components).

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

No depreciation is provided against construction in
progress.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual values, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives, and is generally recognised in
profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:

—  Buildings and plants held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 35 years
after the date of completion.

—  Machinery 3 - 15 years
—  Motor vehicles 3 -5 years
—  Office equipment and others 3 - 10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have
finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses (see
Note 1(m)).

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of
intangible assets less their estimated residual values using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives,
if any, and is generally recognised in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:
—  Patents 10 years
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are

reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. This is the case if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.

(i) As alessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has elected
not to separate non-lease components and
accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.
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(BRAERIN  BEUARBIIR)

1

214

Material accounting policies (Continued)
() Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As alessee (Continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for leases that have a short lease term of 12
months or less, and leases of low-value items such
as machinery. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value item, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. If not capitalised, the associated lease
payments are recognised in profit or loss on a

systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is recognised using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability, and are

charged to profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued) 1 BEXREFBEX®
(I) Leased assets (Continued) () HEEE#E)
(i) As a lessee (Continued) (i) EBERHBEAE)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Notes 1(m)
(ii)), expect for the following types of right-of-use
asset:

— Right-of-use assets related to interests in
leasehold land where the interest in the land
is held as inventory are carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value in (see with Note

1(n)(@).

Refundable rental deposits are accounted for
separately from the right-of use assets in
accordance with the accounting policy applicable
to investments in non-equity securities carried at
amortised cost (see Notes 1(f)(i), 1(w)(ii)(c)) and
1(m)(i)). Any excess of the nominal value over the
initial fair value of the deposits is accounted for as
additional lease payments made and is included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.
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e SRR RE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAERIN  BEUARBIIR)

1

216

Material accounting policies (Continued)

)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Group changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is
a lease modification, which means change in the
scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease
that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract, if such modification is not accounted for
as a separate lease. In this case, the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are rent concessions that occurred as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of IFRS
16, Leases. In such cases, the Group has taken
advantage of the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(I) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

As a lessor

The Group determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee.
Otherwise, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with Note T(w)(ii)(a).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in Note 1()(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAERIN  BEUARBIIR)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

218

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses ("ECL"s) on:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and other receivables); and

—  lease receivables.
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Generally, credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls
between the contractual and expected amounts.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following rates if the effect is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

BREEAN  BEAARKIIR)

(m) FEBEREERE#E)

1 Material accounting policies (continued) 1 ERSHEE®)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i)

and lease receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are the portion of ECLs
that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12
months); and

— lifetime ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following,
which are measured at 12-months ECLs:

— financial instruments that are determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

— other financial instruments for which credit
risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAERIN  BEUARBIIR)

1

220

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

and lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument (including a loan commitment)
has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when measuring ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit assessment,

that includes forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in

default when:

— the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the group in full, without
recourse by the group to actions such as

realising security (if any is held); or

— the financial asset is 90 days past due.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status

and credit risk ratings.
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n'.F

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

—  a breach of contract, such as a default;

—  the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

— it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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BEEAARKEDIR)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
lease receivable is written off to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group otherwise
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories and other contract costs and
deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash-generating units (“CGU"s).
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

B IRk EE

n'.F

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or
CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
They are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts
of the assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the resulting carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (Note 1(m)(i)).
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Material accounting policies (Continued)

(n) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and
net realisable value as follows:

—  Aluminium profiles manufacturing

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

—  Property development

Cost of properties comprises specifically
identified cost, including the acquisition cost
of interests in freehold and leasehold land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and
supplies, wages and other direct expenses, an
appropriate proportion of overheads and
borrowing costs capitalised (see Note 1(y))
and any other costs incurred in bringing the
properties to their present location and
condition. In the case of properties developed
by the group which comprise of multiple
units to be sold individually, the cost of each
unit is determined by apportionment of the
total development costs for that development
project to each unit on a per square foot basis,
unless another basis is more representative of
the cost of the specific unit.

Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less any estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in selling
the property.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

1 Material accounting policies (continued)

(n)
(ii)

Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer or
the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer which
are not capitalised as inventory (see Note 1(n)(i)) or
property, plant and equipment (see Note 1(j)) or
intangible assets (see Note 1(k)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract e.g. sales
commission, are capitalised if the costs relate to
revenue which will be recognised in a future
reporting period and the costs are expected to be
recovered. Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs
relate directly to an existing contract or to a
specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be used to
provide goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Otherwise, costs of
fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised as
inventory, property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
recognised in profit or loss when the revenue to
which the asset relates is recognised (see Note
T(w)).
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BEEAARKEDIR)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see Note 1(w)). A contract
liability is also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
latter cases, a corresponding receivable is also be
recognised (see Note 1(p)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration and only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain a
significant financing component and other receivables
are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
All receivables are subsequently stated at amortised cost
(see Note 1(m)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, pledge deposits with bank and other financial
institutions, and other short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL (see Note 1(m)(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(®)

Trade and other payables (other than refund
liabilities)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other
payables are stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequently, these
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised
in accordance with Note 1(y).

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are expensed as the related service
is provided.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)

(®

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iij) Share-based payments

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-
based payments granted to employees is measured
using the binomial lattice model. The amount is
generally recognised as an expense, with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting
period of the awards. The amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards
for which the related service conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount
ultimately recognised is based on the number of
awards that meet the related service conditions at
the vesting date.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of

when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer

of those benefits and when the Group recognises

costs for a restructuring.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred
tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to a items recognised directly in equity or in
OCl.

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustments to the tax payable or receivable in
respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax
amount expected to be paid or received that reflects any
uncertainty related to income taxes. It is measured using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising
from dividends.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain
criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for temporary differences related to
investment in subsidiaries, associates to the extent that
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that they will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which they can be used. Future
taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of
relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of
taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognise
a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits,
adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences,
are considered, based on the business plans for individual
subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain
criteria are met.
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BEEAARKEDIR)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Generally provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognised for
the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods and the provision of services
or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases in
the ordinary course of the Group'’s business.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as
value added tax or other sales taxes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(@)

Sale of aluminum products

Revenue is recognised when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the products.
Payment terms and conditions vary by
customers and are based on the billing
schedule established in the contracts or
purchase orders with customers, but the
Group generally provides credit terms to
customers within six months upon customer
acceptance. The Group takes advantage of
the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of
IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, and does not adjust the
consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component as the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

The Group offers retrospective volume rebates
to certain major customers of aluminum
products when their purchases reach an
agreed threshold. Such right of volume rebates
give rise to variable consideration. At the time
of sale of aluminum products, the Group
recognised revenue after taking into account
adjustment to transaction price arising from
rebates mentioned above. A refund liability is
recognised for the expected rebates, and it is
included in other payables (see Note 22).
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Material accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b)

Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
developed for sale in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when legal assignment
is completed, which is the point in time when
the customer has the ability to direct the use
of the property and obtain substantially all of
the remaining benefits of the property.

When residential properties are marketed by
the Group while the property is still under
construction, the Group may offer a discount
compared to the listed sales price, provided
the customer agrees to pay the balance of the
consideration early. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date of
revenue recognition are included in the
statement of financial position under contract
liabilities (see Note 1(0)).

To the extent that the advance payments
from customers are regarded as providing a
significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method
during the period between the payment date
and the completion date of legal assignment.
The discount rate applied is reflective of the
rate in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at
contract inception. The interest is expensed
as accrued unless it is eligible to be capitalised
under IAS 23, Borrowing costs, in accordance
with Note 1(y).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

©

Services income

Revenue from services rendered is recognised
in profit or loss at the time of provision of the
service is completed.

(ii) Revenue from other sources and other
income

(a)

(b)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss

on the date on which the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ii) Revenue from other sources and other
income (Continued)

©

(@

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. The “effective
interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
In calculating interest income, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired). However, for financial assets
that have become credit-impaired subsequent
to initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired,
then the calculation of interest income reverts
to the gross basis.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are initially recognised as deferred
income and subsequently recognised as other
income in profit or loss over the useful life of
the assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(x)

(y)

(2)

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
respective functional currencies of Group companies at
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at
the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates at the reporting
date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in OCl and
accumulated in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal group comprising assets
and liabilities, are classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that they will be recovered primarily through
sale rather than through continuing use.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)
(z) Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Impairment losses on initial classification as
held for sale and subsequent gains and losses on
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Once classified as held for sale, any equity-accounted
investee is no longer equity accounted.
(aa) Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.
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(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

1 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(aa) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group'’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

(bb) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)

(bb) Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 30 contains information about the assumptions and their
risk factors relating to valuation of fair value of financial
instruments. Other significant source of estimation uncertainty

are

0]

(i)

as follows:
Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any. The depreciation expense for future
years is adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimation.

Loss allowance for trade receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade
receivables by assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of
estimates and judgements. ECLs are based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the end of reporting period.
Where the estimation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will affect the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and thus the impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate is changed. The Group
keeps assessing the expected credit loss of trade
receivables during their expected lives.
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B IRk EE

n'.F

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Revenue and segment reporting

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing
and sale of aluminium products and sale of completed
properties. Further details regarding the Group’s principal
activities are disclosed in Note 3(b).

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products or service lines is as
follows:

(% A - BEAARKTIR)
Wz K 2 B E
(a) EXHE

AEEZTEXRBARERKER
AMREEBRIME - BFRASE
BX2XKEPcE—THBERE
PRMIEE3(b) ©

() WzmHz

RIBERIMERED 2E
Fa#WamAMmmT

2023 2022
—g=-= —E-F
RMB‘000 RMB’000
AR#TF T ARETFIT
Revenue from contracts with B PR Bt 7 3R 5 2B R 28 15 5%
customers within the scope of SHERARBEZFEH
IFRS 15 g
Disaggregated of product lines or REMEIREZEE D 2
service line BA 4
— Sales of aluminium profiles — SHE IR 16,764,600 16,450,403
— Sales of aluminium panels, — HEIRIR - G S
aluminium alloy, moulds and A KT
Spare parts 585,582 472,824
— Revenue from processing service  — I LARTEA AUk ER
contracts 2,369 1,766
— Sales of completed properties — HEBER T - 8,071
17,352,551 16,933,064
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with 2o e R R ) S AR [ 45 T 4%
customers by the timing of revenue recognition and gln 2 EP & W ERHAS
by geographic markets is disclosed in Notes 3(b)(i) AT 3(b)(i) Kz 3(b)ii) TR & °

and 3(b)(iii) respectively.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and does
not include any individual customer with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: Nil).

2 _=Ft+_A=+—
HIEFE  AEERFERS
Ttit B TREER HhAE
B Uk 25 #8348 10% 2 E ] 1@ B
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Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group has applied practical expedient in paragraph
121(a) of IFRS 15 to exempt the disclosure of revenue
expected to be recognised in the future arising from
contracts with the customers in existence at the end of
reporting period as the performance obligation is part of
a contract that has an original expected duration of one
year or less.

The Group manages its businesses by product lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which the information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following reportable segments.

o Industrial aluminium profiles: this segment
manufactures and sells plain aluminium profiles,
mainly for industrial usage.

o Construction aluminium profiles: this segment
manufactures and sells aluminium profiles with
surface finishing, including anodic oxidation
aluminium profiles, electrophoresis coating
aluminium profiles, powder coating aluminium
profiles and PVDF coating aluminium profiles.
Construction aluminium profiles are widely used in
architecture decoration.

o All other segments: include the revenue generated
from processing service contracts related to
aluminium products, sale of aluminium panels,
aluminium alloy, moulds and spare parts, sale of
office premises and residential properties.

(i) Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group's senior executive management monitors the
results attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Revenue are allocated to the reportable segments

with reference to sales generated by those
segments.
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results (Continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit is gross
profit. The Group's senior executive management is
provided with segment information concerning
segment revenue and gross profit. Segment assets and
liabilities are not reported to the Group’s senior
executive management regularly.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is
set out below:

(BR=EEHI -

EAARETIR)

3 WHERDIBHE &)
(b) 2EEE ()

(i)

7 EBRAE ()

RS D a2 5t 8
RERN - AEBREATER
ABERHEBD MRS RE
MzDEER - DHEERE
B & F HRAARESRRT
EEANB®RE -

A B2023F K20224 12
A3MBILEFEEZERDE R
DEEE EME - MAEE

BRTEEABRM AR
REE A HwEDBERET 0
T

Industrial aluminium profiles  Construction aluminium profiles All other segments Total
TREEH BEERH fraftA s fazt
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZECcE Petamidl “3-CF Eebabedl “30-F bt C3C-F  ebeietd
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTT Wiaval AGETrT WAyl ARETn WGyl AGETT WA
Reportable segment UREAPYE
revenue
Revenue from external RENRREZ
customers (pointin time) Wi (BSRI%) 2,642,811 2723032 14121789 13727371 587,951 482661 17,352,551 16,933,064
Reportable segment profit %% S
Gross profit £ 151,610 179508 1,619,793 1,417,585 218,799 177610 1990202 1774703
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Revenue and segment reporting (Continued) 3 WHERDIBHE &)

HEAAREDIR)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(iij) Reconciliations of reportable segment

(iii)

profit

Reportable segment profit derived
from the Group’s external
customers

Other income

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Impairment loss on trade and other
receivables

Finance costs

Share of loss of an associate

Consolidated profit before taxation

Geographic information

(b)
KEAREINAEFZ
] $ 5  #B o A
HAb Y A
TR

5 K Bt MR IR R (B
g

LURIDN

DiE—REEE R EEER

BR B B4R & )t )

Analysis of the Group'’s revenue and results as well
as analysis of the Group’s carrying amount of non-
current assets by geographical market has not been
presented as over 98% (2022: 99%) of the revenue
are generated from the People’s Republic of China

(the “PRC") market.
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2023 2022
—E_-= B F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR%Fr ARKFIT
1,990,202 1,774,703
172,618 132,138
(374,054) (288,446)
(439,264) (410,523)
(293,204) (552,098)
(138,056) (138,874)
(1,919) (5,016)
916,323 511,884
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Other income 4 EHKzH

2023 2022
—E_-= B F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fr ARKFIT

Interest income MBI A 63,220 59,344
Government grants R e B

— Unconditional subsidies — G AL 15,978 18,243

— Conditional subsidies (Note 26) — BRI EL (Kt 26) 9,895 22,112
Income from value-added tax (“VAT") TER ([2EF ) Itk

super deduction (i) WA (i) 88,850 -
Rental income WA 15,815 16,696
Net foreign exchange gain GINEE U 2% - KA 1,483 12,384
Changes in fair value of other derivative HEMTETERRIINEEH 2

and forward exchange contracts NEEZE (Mt 17)

(Note 17) (7,643) 3,402
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant &Y% BB LR R EM

and equipment and other assets BEZ (EB) W (14,880) 6,537
Changes in fair value of commodity future RAEESE HNERHAES Y

contracts recognised as hedge ZNTAEZE) (f77F 30(e))

ineffectiveness (Note 30(e)) - (6,580)
Others HAth (100) =

172,618 132,138
(i) Income from VAT super deduction represented the super deduction on (i) AN BRI 35 7 B R R R T
VAT granted by the government authorities in the PRC. AT TR o
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5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) Finance costs:

Interest expenses on bank loans and
borrowings (Note 21(c))

Interest expenses on discounted bills
(Note 21(c))

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 21(c))

Total interest expense on financial
liabilities not at fair value through
profit or loss

Less: interest expense capitalised into
construction in progress*

* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 2.8%-3.3%

per annum (2022: 3.7%-4.9%).

RITERREE ZFBHAX

(HtaF21(c))

BERRER A ERMAX

(Ktzt21(c)

BR B Al %

1=

(a)

MEBBNE (HZ210)

WIR RN FEF ARG Z
SR EN XA

W RERIRHREREH

B>

244 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%%42 #1% j 5[R A 7

BRBLADR A T ER (G A) AT B IR &

B RS

2023 2022
—=E==-= B F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fr ARKFIT
92,967 94,891
50,543 49,058

321 515
143,831 144,464
(5,775) (5,590)
138,056 138,874

BEXKAERENE28%E33% (=T ==
3.7% £4.9%) TAEARL -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Profit before taxation (Continued)

(b) Staff costs:

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses (Note 27)

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (“Schemes”)
organised by the local authority whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Schemes based on certain percentages of the eligible
employees’ salaries. The local government authorities are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HKD30,000 (2022: HKD30,000). Contributions
to the plan vest immediately, there is no forfeited
contributions that may be used by the Group to reduce
the existing level of contribution.

The Group has no other material obligations for
payments of retirement and other post-retirement
benefits of employees other than the contributions
described above.

e TEREMER
CARCHRE 45 E AR 17 R LB R
NRFEX (HaE27)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

I) 7€ B8 BB AR M ET IR

BRESAIER (&)
(b) BIRRA:
2023 2022
—E:E_= —E-4F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBF T
94,010 87,933
1,003,189 1,006,299
- (1,690)
1,097,199 1,092,542

RIEFH BEMERRSERRNSIER - IS
N E 2 AT R R AR A A e BB
FORMRBAIETE (T5HE1]) - it - R EIF
BRARARGEREEFEN —EAD
HelRlaT BIfE L R - s BT BB B 5L
2HEEERERRKEEMFELHRK -

AEBERBRIBEEH R ABSFEE
Bl - BEBBERIEH TIERTZ LA
RERAENRTEREZEE @ E&aH|
MAESHE([RBESE)) - 8ES
SR AR EHEIUERARTE - BB ETA
B o RIFRTESETE  BEEREEED
BT REEEBMIRKAEGESZA
EHER HBAERKAZLERA
30,0008 70( == = =4 : 30,000/87T) °
VEH 2 HRENEFIR A ZETE - AEETE
&) A3 B 150R U A £ FROR R 38 A /9 (1 30K

B B RN - ARES EHR R ER
KEEMEREBRAELMEARL
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RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

5 Profit before taxation (Continued) 5 BRBANER (@)
(c) Other items: (c) HfbiEH :
2023 2022
—ZE=-= —E-—F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Depreciation charge mERX
— Investment property (Note 11) — B (ETT) 5,472 4,873
— Property, plant and equipment — W% - BEREE
(Note 11) (BMtat11) 451,509 493,873
— Right-of-use assets (Note 12) —(FREEE(HF12) 13,329 11,725
Amortisation cost of intangible assets L& E 2 # $5K A
(Note 13) (Ktat13) 412 412
Provision/(reversal) of impairment losses A NS IERIEEIEZ
on B/ (BmE)
— trade receivables (Note 19 & 30(a)) — XS EWFIA (H7£ 19
X 30()) 293,138 552,950
— other receivables (Note 19) — E M YERIA (M aE 19) 66 (852)
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN 2
— audit services — B AR 2,052 1,395
— other services — H b AR 75 920 784
Cost of inventories (i)/(Note 18 & 19(b)) 1F &) (Kfs 18 )%
19(b)) 15,362,349 15,158,361
Research and development costs (i) T B AR 2K (i) 808,426 791,243

(i) Cost of inventories included RMB1,113,899,000 (2022:
RMB1,174,166,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation
expense which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in Note 5(b) for each of
these types of expenses, and included RMB38,107,000 (2022: Nil)
and RMB23,224,000 (2022: Nil) relating to write down of
inventories — completed properties for sale (Note 18) and
impairment loss on prepayments for properties (Note 19(b)),
respectively.

(ii) Research and development costs included RMB188,131,000 (2022:
RMB192,648,000) relating to staff costs of employees and
depreciation expenses, which amount is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in Note
5(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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(ii)

FERABIERE TRARFERS
BRIz ANR®1,113,899,0007t( ==
——F: AR¥1,174,166,0007T) * #%
SR T A LSS MiEE 5(b) 2 R E
BHENAXBE  RBEMREE—E
B THEMEME18) RMEBMNRK
ERERBE (K 190) 2 RIEt AAR
38,107,000 (—E-—4F: B) R
AR #23224,000 L(=F = —F:
)

PEERABFEREEZEEINAR
WEMSZEM2 AR 188,131,000 7T
(ZZ = =F: AR #192,648,000
TT) e BB T A £k R 5(b)
SRBEBRSENRAXAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IRk EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

Income tax in the consolidated statement 6

of profit or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss represents:

Current tax

Provision for PRC corporate income tax
(Note 28(a))

Provision for Hong Kong Profits tax
(Note 28(a))

Provision for PRC LAT (Note 28(a))

Dividends withholding tax (Note 28(a))

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (Note 28(b))

Effect on distribution of dividends

BN 8

FR B {b S TS R
(K17 28(a))

BB FSTEE
(K17 28(a))

FR R+ 3 (B T
(Ktzt 28(a))

f& BTEIF (KTt 28(a))

IEFEBL IR

ERAy ERREL LD
(H1aE 28(b))

B D IRH R E

RGaBBERRNZHAE

(a) RESBBERAZBIAR

2023 2022
—E_=F —=F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREFIT
148,729 119,165
137 -
- 1,168
10,000 14,718
158,866 135,051
(40,644) (69,758)
(10,000) (14,718)
108,222 50,575
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RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 MNEZEEEBERAZAEHR 2
of profit or loss (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) RERBEFTE 2B IEMXHE
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: SRR :

2023 2022
—=E_-= T _F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT

Profit before taxation [ A5 A v A 916,323 511,884
Less: LAT B I IEE R - 1,168
Profit before CIT Br 1> PTS B R & Al 916,323 510,716

Notional tax on profit before taxation,  ¥ZMEA R AR BRI R E

calculated at the rates applicable to ZBRFANE Nz B E=FIE

the jurisdiction concerned 225,973 128,683
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TTTD%RE%S‘ZZ%RW S B 877 884
Tax effect of share of loss of an SME—HEERAREE L

associate BT E 288 752
Effect of tax concessions MIEEBEZTE (88,798) (48,134)
Super deduction on research and F—FE 2 HEFRZ IR

development expenses in respect of (K1z£6(b)(v)

prior year (Note 6(b)(v)) (46,284) (39,695)
Effect of withholding on undistributed  ¥& #4071 BRI Fff B 2 & & 2 B IR 2B

profits retained by PRC subsidiaries wAMER 2 (F et 28(b))

(Note 28(b)) 16,166 6,917
Actual corporate income tax BEREEMENR 108,222 49,407
Add: LAT o HHIBER - 1,168
Actual tax expense B ISFH X 108,222 50,575
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B IRk EE

n'.F

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are liable to PRC
corporate income tax at a rate of 25% for 2023 (2022:
25%) except for Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.
(“Guangdong Xingfa”), Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu)

o., Ltd. (“Xingfa Chengdu”), Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium (Henan) Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa Henan"),
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa
Jiangxi”) and Guangdong Xingfa Precision Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa Precision”), which were certified as
“High and New Technology Enterprises” (“HNTE"”) and
entitled to the preferential income tax rate of 15% for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 15%).

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2023 is
calculated at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary
of the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the
two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime.

For this subsidiary, the first HKD2 million of assessable
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the same
basis in 2022.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2023 takes
into account a reduction granted by the Hong Kong SAR
Government of 100% of the tax payable for the year of
assessment 2022/23 subject to a maximum reduction of
HKD®6,000 for each business (2022: a maximum reduction
of HKD10,000 was granted for the year of assessment
2021/22 and was taken into account in calculating the
provision for 2022).

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
countries.

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

6 RESBEBRAZAEHR @

(ii)

(iii)

BIEP B AEHRER KRG - ANE
ErzhEMNBRARR T =578
1#25% (ZFE = =4 : 25%) 2R
BB ERER - HEREE
IREAR AR ([EREE]) - @z

g F (A HER) AR A ([ & 2K

#W) BREZRECIE)ARRD
A ([ ]) BREEREE(OT

FE)ARAR([EETIH]) RER
EEFEREEFR AR ([ HEE
=) Bl etz (S
M) 2EBIREE_T ==
F+-A=Z+—HILEFEZHE15%
TE - —F 15%) ZEHEMEM
B o

= /ANEHEEIRZ
FE 2T ERBEFIA16.5% (=
T :165%)FHERFE - R
EB—HEANEHMAGE E®K
B RBIRR o

UL B AR MmE © & 2,000,000
785 7T JIE R 5 04 1| DA 8.25 % B A R 42
i - MER T FERR B & I LA 16.5% &Y
PR - WK B AR ZEBHE
@‘a’%%mﬁéﬁi:;ﬁ::ﬂwm%
/é*—|—

R = RABNEHEE LS
FBEBFNTREBRNSE -2 ==
FE_T - —FERIFRENFR
I B 100% HURRE (S BE B &=
HREE 5 6,00087T) (T ——
TR FET - _FEREF
ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁmﬁﬁmom%ﬁ =l

REtE T - —FRBERE T Rt
j{ﬂ JREE) o

7 SN B 2 T A T8 F2 4 B G R
ZBRITIEER o
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B IR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=HERIN

6
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BEEAARKEDIR)

Income tax in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss (Continued)

(iv)  Pursuant to the relevant law in the PRC, from 1 January
2008, non-resident enterprises without an establishment
or place of business in the PRC or which have an
establishment or place of business in the PRC but whose
relevant income is not effectively connected with the
establishment or a place of business in the PRC, will be
subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10% (unless
reduced by tax treaty) on various types of passive income
such as dividends derived from sources within the PRC.
Pursuant to the Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement
and the related regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax
resident will be liable to a reduced withholding tax rate
of 5% on dividends from a PRC enterprise if the Hong

and holds

25% or more of the equity interest of the PRC enterprise.

The Group's Hong Kong subsidiary has obtained the

Certificate of Resident Status of the Hong Kong Special

Administrative Region and therefore have adopted the

Kong tax resident is the “beneficial owner”

withholding tax rate at 5% for PRC withholding tax.

As at 31 December 2023, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB26,948,000 (2022: RMB20,782,000) (Note 28(b)(i))
have been provided for in this regard based on the
expected dividends to be distributed from the PRC
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future in respect of the

profits generated since 1 January 2008.

(v)  During the year of 2023, Guangdong Xingfa, Xingfa
Chengdu, Xingfa Henan, Xingfa Jiangxi and Xingfa
Precision obtained approval from local tax bureau to
claim super deduction on research and development
expenses incurred in 2022. As such, the income tax for 2023
was reduced by RMB46,284,000 (2022: RMB39,695,000).
Such additional tax deduction on research and development
expenses equals 100% (2022: 100%) of the amount

actually incurred.

(vi)  LAT is levied on properties developed in the PRC by the
Group for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, which under the
applicable regulations is calculated based on the proceeds
of sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including lease charges of land use rights, borrowing
costs and relevant property development expenditures.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED #2458 %1ZRAR A 7]

6

REZEESBEBERAZAEHR @)

(iv)

(vi)

RIBFREEBREE AZZ2TN\F
—A—HBR EFEBEARKLE
B I5HT ) sAE AT RIBE AR
WiE - BRERS BB ARE
ERBIERTERERE S8 BE
BB 7 IEERMLE  HANRZE
BN A (TR BE A 2 %8
12 10% 6 2 (Br IEFR B W i5 /e R 2.
BUMTEIRT - RIBAME R AET L
HCE BT L) KA - W
—REEAREBAUBERA [ Ex
WA A WA B % 25% sk A
ERRRHE - BIZEERBER AR
HoREHR B EMNRBZRERE
5% BMTELRRL o A& B HEH S
BRAREESEAERFAITHEER
FHBPAE - Bt EBENHD
FRF 5% K TEMFE o

RZBEZ=F+=-A=+—H" '
FEEARERIEREEREE =
TENF— A —HRBAEEN B
SREMNEHREBER - EFRA
R #26,948,000c( =& = —

A R #20,782,000 7T ) 2 ¥E 3E 5 18
B EER B (5 28(b)i)) °

R =F  BREZ - BN
B - EE AR - EET I R EERE
RERBBINGHR-_ZE__FE
EZHERASTESEMWTRE B
e Bt —E-=F SRR
D NE# 46,284,000t (ZFE ==
4 AR #39,6950005T)° A
HR RS 2 BINITHESRER

EESE2100% (==
100%) °
T IEER I AEEEENTHRD

B Y R R E IR (EIR T IR B
2 T E30% £ 60% B - 1R EZ
BREMTE - EBEA ¥
EMEHRIBERE AR L (B
THEREHEER  EEKRAR
MHEYMERERFAX)
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FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Directors’ emoluments 7

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows:

Salary,
allowance
and benefits
in kind

e =R

wE REWNZH

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

EEME

RIBEE R RHERIZE 383(1) R~ & (]
BEENZBER)ROF 280 BRECE
EMET

Contribution
to retirement
benefit 2023
schemes Bonus paid Total
BB —B==
st Bt BRRA st
(Note ii)
(Htat2)
RMB’000 RMB‘000 RMB’000
AREFT ARE¥F AREFT

Executive directors HTES
Mr. WANG Li EEVE T 180 548 42 350 1,120
Mr. LIAO Yuging BEELE 465 271 19 2,054 2,809
Mr. LAW Yung Koon ERABEE 557 - - 1,683 2,240
Mr. WANG Zhihua FEELE 238 114 17 1,040 1,409
Mr. LUO Jianfeng RBRIESE 429 - - - 429
Mr. WANG Lei TERE - - - - -
Non-executive directors 3 H{TE=
Ms. XIE Jingyun HERELT - - - - -
Mr. ZUO Manlun LimEE 322 - - - 322
Independent non- BYFHTES

executive directors
Mr. CHEN Mo BRERE A 179 - - - 179
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu AEELE 179 - - - 179
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy #3584 4 179 - - - 179
Mr. WEN Xianjun XEIE %% 180 - - - 180
Total et 2,908 933 78 5,127 9,046
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(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

7
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Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Executive directors
Mr. LIU Libin (resigned from the

position of an executive director on

14 April 2022)
Mr. WANG Li (appointed to the

position of an executive director on

14 April 2022)
Mr. LIAO Yuging
Mr. LAW Yung Koon
Mr. WANG Zhihua
Mr. LUO Jianfeng
Mr. WANG Lei

Non-executive directors
Ms. XIE Jingyun
Mr. ZUO Manlun

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy

Mr. WEN Xianjun

Total

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED #2458 %1ZRAR A 7]

UiTES
AEEM=T==%
MA+m AR

£3)
TUREM-F-_-%

MA+EAEZAA

Y72%)
BIELL
EATAE
THERE
BRESE
Takt

FHTES
aREft
R
RUAHES

Eyi

Az
HERLE
XEIERE

At

7 EE#ME @
Salary,  Contribution
allowanceand o retirement Share-based 2022
Fees  benefitsinkind  benefit schemes Bonus paid Sub-Total payments Total
ETE =1 SRR WA — ZF-ZE
#e  REDIG HE 50 ERTEAL et R &t
(Note i) (Note )
(Ht2) (Hit1)
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFTr  ARETr  ARETr AR
= = = 200 200 (95) 105
- 291 28 - 319 - 319
364 269 21 3213 38607 - 3,807
557 - 4 1,739 2,300 - 2,300
382 103 20 1,743 2,248 (80) 2,168
429 - - - 429 - 429
322 - - - 32 - 322
180 - - - 180 - 180
180 - - - 180 - 180
180 - - - 180 - 180
180 - - - 180 - 180
2,774 663 3 6,895 10,405 (175) 10,230
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FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

7 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

@)

(ii)

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the
directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these
share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in Note 1(t)(ii) and, in
accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts
accrued in previous years where grants of equity instruments are forfeited
prior to vesting. The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share option scheme” in the Report of the Directors and Note
27.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, bonuses paid to the
relevant Directors were determined based on the contribution of the
Directors to the Board and the financial performance of the Group.

8 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five Individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2022:
three) of them are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in
Note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other three (2022: two) individuals are as follows:

Salary, allowance and benefits in kind He -
Contributions to defined contribution

retirement schemes

Bonus paid
Share-based payments

BEHEA

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

BEEME &)
Hiat -

(i) ZECBERBEANRBREAERTES
MERENGTEE 2EERENEER
B 10 TRASERRARODETRRZH
B BRE MBEBEBEECK  ZeER
ERAFEEMBRLEZ TAREBAKZ
WHER T RANHEESE - ZSEWF
=HHE  DEEREBRENEEHRRR
HE EREFEREN[ERESNS] —&
N 27 R iEEE o

(i) BE-_ZT-_=FR-_FT-_—_F+=ZA=1+—
BIEEE MEBRESINONELNBREE
EHEESMNEMRAEENPBRBERE -

REFMAL

hERRHFMALT ME(ZT-__F:
ZRIREF  REZMENHIE7HE -

EM=%(ZF==2F : WA )&= 5 M
AZEINR -

Ai%%ﬁm

2R EYF
[7) € B8 SR AR M ET IR

VARAD 7L BE RO 153K

2023 2022

—E_-= B 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#TF T ARBETT

= 1,801 1,075
106 54

3,303 3,479

- (140)

5,210 4,468
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= =
e SRR RE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(= EEBI - BEUAREDIR)

254

Individuals with highest emoluments 8 EBEFMAXw
(Continued)
The emoluments of the three (2022: two) individual(s) with the —H(ZE—F MR )RSFALTH
highest emoluments are within the following bands: e FToIgEE :
2023 2022
—E_=F T _F
Number of Number of
Individuals Indlividuals
AZ
Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 =% 1,000,0007%5 7T - =
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T £ 1,500,000 7 7T - -
HKD1,500,001 — HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 75 7T 2 —
HKD2,000,001 — HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 /7T % 2,500,000 4 7T 1 =
HKD2,500,001 — HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 77T 2 3,000,000 77T - 2

Other comprehensive income 9

(a) Tax effects relating to each component of
other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation
of:
— financial statements of

overseas subsidiaries

Equity investments at FVOCI: net
movement in fair value reserve
(non-recycling)

Cash flow hedge: net movement in
hedging reserve

Other comprehensive income

H b 2 Wi
() FRHMEEKEEAKIED

R E

2023 2022
—E-= —B__F
Before-tax 0 Esaieie  Before-tax  Tax (expense))  Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount benefit amount
PiE
(kxR R O A eE (X)) Fla BEkeE
RIS RS RMB'O00 — RMB'O00  RMB000
AREFT AREFT ARETT WV ZuoW s A
BENTEE ZER A
— B A R B RE
201 - 201 1,455 - 1455
BATEALB2ERER
BiERE : ATEREED
R (T EE) 3,661 (549) 3,112 2,704 (406) 2,298
Renein : HhEEEy
ik - - - (72,211) 1,365 (70,846)
Hit2 AR 3,862 (549) 3,313 (68,052) 959 (67,093)
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FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

Other comprehensive income (Continued) 9 HftZmEWKz= @)
(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) Htt2EKWBZZ2HERTE D B
including reclassification adjustments EEHIERE

2023 2022
—E-= —

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Cash flow hedges: REmEE A

Effective portion of changes in fair value AEARI#EREHIER TAHNA

of hedging instruments recognised FEZEHT 2 BERES

during the period - (72,211)
Net deferred tax credited to other FTAE AL 2 EW AR ER IR

comprehensive income (Note 28(b)(i)) %58 (K15t 28(b)()) - 1,365

Net movement in the hedging reserve A HE b & E U R IER 2 F A
during the year recognised in other YRR B BT
comprehensive income - (70,846)

Equity investments measured at FVOCI: 2 A (BT A H b2 U 25 89

MRHEIRE -
Changes in fair value recognised FAERH A FEES
during the year 3,661 2,704
Net deferred tax charged to other HIBs E b 2 W a R R RE RS I8
comprehensive income (Note 28(b)(i)) %58 (Kitzt 28(b)(i)) (549) (406)

Net movement in the fair value reserve  RE#M 2 EINESHERZFERAN

(non-recycling) during the year N EFECTIAEE) 2
recognised in other comprehensive EE)FEA
income 3,112 2,298
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RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

10 Earnings per share 10 SREF
(a) Basic earnings per share () BREXRZBEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the BIRERBF HBRBEARR A EBERK
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the HERREEMWGHEZNARK
Company of RMB804,171,000 (2022: RMBA457,774,000) 804,171,000 (ZE==% : AR
and the weighted average number of 420,649,000 ¥ 457,774,0007T) RFAE 7L
ordinary shares (2022: 420,110,000 ordinary shares) in BR% ANFE F 19 8420,649,000 i (=
issue during the year, calculated as follows: =T 4 420,110,000 f% E 3@ A% )
STEMT
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EAERMEFSE
2022
—E-—F
‘000
Fhg
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BRBEZETEER 420,649 419,496
Effect of share options exercised ITIFEBIREN T E
(Note 29(c)(ii)) (Bt 29(c)ii)) - 614
Weighted average number of ordinary HR+ZA=+—HzE@&&
shares at 31 December IntEF a8 420,649 420,110
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) SREFRA

256

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R RE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

11 Investment property and property, plant 11 REVERYE  BERRE
and equipment

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) EREEZYE
Office
Buildings Motor  equipment  Construction Investment
and plants  Machinery vehicles  and others in progress Subtotal property Total
BAERME
BEREE HaE RE k& ERIE M RENE At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMFL  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARMTT  ARBTT ARETT

Cost: R
At 1 January 2022 R-E-_—%-f-H 1,389,709 3,220,686 32,392 221,750 224,130 5,088,667 178,153 5,266,820
Additions HE 7,255 440,152 2,735 18,014 389,081 857,237 - 857,237
Transfer to inventory BREEE = = = = - - (21,585) (21,585)
Transfer from inventory BEEGE 580 - - - - 580 - 580
Transfer from construction in progress  B& AR T 78,728 289,868 1,100 8,005 (377,701) - - -
Transfer from property, plant and EVER S

equipment to investment property  EERENE (38,958) - - - - (38,958) 38958 -
Transfer from right-of-use assets EREERELE - - - - - - 17,305 17,305
Disposal e (102) (49,499) (2,864) (1,168) - (53,633) - (53,633)

At 31 December 2022 and

1 January 2023
1,437,212 3,901,207 33,363 246,601 235,510 5,853,893 212,831 6,066,724
Additions 16,304 395,049 43873 9,851 502,866 928,943 - 928,943
Transfer from construction in progress 156,245 113,584 1,216 2197 (273,242) - - -
Disposal (3,406) (65,166) (2,829) (4,383) - (75,784) - (75,784)
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=%
+=A=1+-H 1,606,355 4,344,674 36,623 254,266 465,134 6,707,052 212,831 6,919,883
Accumulated depreciation: BitRE:
At 1 January 2022 RZF==F-f-H (302,368)  (2,067,506) (21,935) (162,698) - (2,554,507 (8,726)  (2,563,233)
Transfer to inventory BREER - - - - - - 735 735
Transfer from inventory BRAGE (15) - - - - (15) = (15)
Transfer from property, plant and BN% - BERKEE
equipment to investment property  AERENE 569 - - - - 569 (569) =
Transfer from right-of-use assets EEAFRELE - - - - - = (346) (346)
Charge for the year FRZ (51,779 (426,629) (2,608) (12,857) = (493,873) (4,873) (498,746)
Written back on disposals HERED 2 36,275 2,636 855 - 39,858 - 39,858
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January R=-Z=—%
2023 +ZA=+-Bk
“-=%-8-A° (353,501)  (2.457,860) (21,907) (174,700) - (3,007,968) (13,779)  (3,021,747)
Charge for the year FRZE (60,885) (372,046) (3,234) (15.344) - (451,509) (5,472) (456,981)
Written back on disposals HERED 447 49,255 2,456 3,920 - 56,078 - 56,078
At 31 December 2023 RZE=-=F
+=A=+-H (413939)  (2,780,651) (22,685) (186,124) - (3403399 (19,251)  (3,422,650)
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2023 R-E-=%
+-A=+-H 1,192,416 1,564,023 13,938 68,142 465,134 3,303,653 193,580 3,497,233
At 31 December 2022 i Sk
+=A=1=A 1,083,711 1,443,347 11,456 71,901 235,510 2,845,925 199,052 3,044,977
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmHEEB

1"

258

HEAAREDIR)

Investment property and property, plant
and equipment (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued)

(i)  All properties owned by the Group are located in
the PRC.

(i) Asat 31 December 2023, the Group is in the process
of applying for the title certificates of certain
properties with carrying value of approximately
RMB27,165,000 (2022: RMB31,275,000). The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
use of and the conduct of operating activities at the
properties referred to above are not affected by the
fact that the Group has not yet obtained the relevant
property title certificates.

(iii)  Certain plants with net book value of RMB365,562,000
(2022: RMB370,330,000) were pledged as securities
for bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2023
(Note 24(b)).

Investment property

The Group leases out investment property under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
19 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date
at which time all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments
are usually increased every year to reflect market rentals.
None of the leases includes variable lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

Within 1 year 15K

Investment property of the Group were stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Fair value
of these investment properties is RMB312,691,000 as at 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022: RMB323,000,000).
The valuations of fair value were carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors who have staff with recent
experience in the location and category of property being
valued.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED #2458 %1ZRAR A 7]

(a)

(b)

1 ?’%ﬁ%%&%% - HBEREE

ARTEI{E 2 ¥ Bk (48)

() AEBEBEADRBENEHRR
i -

(i) MNZBE_=F+-_A=+-—
B AEBEIFEARAENS
A R #27,165,000( = &
— — 4% : AR# 31,275,000
TO) 2B TYEBEIIEERE
FoARBEERE  FHLE
MY ERIE B EREEE
EEW e I$%lﬁ$mﬁ
E@%%%%ME % B 5

iy NZBZ=F+-_A=+—
Ev%ﬁ@ﬁ%AE%
365,562,000 0 (=& = — 4 :
AR #370,330,0007C ) 2 &
T EEEHIERAEERTT
E 2R (HiaE24(0b)) °

REME

AEBREBELEHSEHAKREYD
¥ -HE—RVFAEBEHIE19F
WHEEREBER - BRATAERY
CENER HENFKBAESEF
B ARBTISHASKE - S8
HEHY TR S EHEMNK -

AEEBNARRBABMBRIER RS A
HARTSZ N A] AR BR AR = TR E R M vy
ARREBRBEEMRAT

2023 2022
—E_-= B F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥Fir ARBF T
3,954 3,924

REBERILEYETING S MR
SRR R ITE MR EE B
2 e ZEREMENR T _=F
+ZA=+—HBHWMAFEAARE
312,691,000 (ZE=-—F+—-A
=+ — H: AR #323,000,000
JT) ° AEGHE TR BIOA2R0TT
T HEEBHRIEEYEME
& NPT AR R A Fm A 5s o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

12 Right-of-use assets 12 ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by B EERARND T EBEEEREF
class of underlying asset is as follows: BT :

Land use Other leased

rights assets Total

TifEAE HaBEEE Aast
(Note (i) (Note (i)
(K1 () (Bt (i)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKTT ARETT ARETT

Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2022 R-ZEBE-_—_F—H—H 420,364 11,665 432,029
Additions NE 97,448 2,584 100,032
Transfer from investment EEEIREYE
property (17,305) - (17,305)
Disposal HE - (2,336) (2,336)
At 31 December 2022 and R-ZE_—
1 January 2023 +=—A=+—B8BxX
—E2-_=%—H—H 500,507 11,913 512,420
Additions NE 76,437 297 76,734
At 31 December 2023 RIEBE-=%F
+=-—A=+—H 576,944 12,210 589,154
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At 1 January 2022 R-_E_—_F—H—H (96,212) (5,352) (101,564)
Transfer from investment eI E Y%
property 346 - 346
Charge for the year FAZH (9,525) (2,200) (11,725)
Disposal HeE = 2,336 2,336
At 31 December 2022 and A= =
1 January 2023 +=—A=+—HK
—E_=F—HF—H (105,391) (5,216) (110,607)
Charge for the year FATH (11,182) (2,147) (13,329)
At 31 December 2023 MN-_ETE—_=%F
+=—BA=+—H (116,573) (7.363) (123,936)
Carrying amount: BRTEME :
At 31 December 2023 MNR-_ETE—=4F
+=—A=+—H 460,371 4,847 465,218
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+—-A
=+—H 395,116 6,697 401,813
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

12 Right-of-use assets (Continued)

12 EREEE®

2023 2022
—FE-= —E__F
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
Hita AR¥F T AREFT
Included in “Right-of-use assets”: =t A [{FERELE] :
— Land use rights, carried at — BRI E AT BRA T3
depreciated cost {5 A HE 0] 460,371 395,116
— Other properties leased for — BRI EN AT REEE
own use, carried at BRmEAMmYE
depreciated cost (i) 4,847 6,697
465,218 401,813
Included in “Inventories and other st A [FENEME X
contract costs”: A
— Land use rights under — EREGEYEN T
developed properties for sale 15 B 4 46,599 46,599
Included in “Investment property”: st A [{&EWEE |
— Land use rights, carried at — HRITER AT BRE L i
depreciated cost {5 FA 9,511 10,361

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in

profit or loss is as follows:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
by class of underlying asset:

Land use rights

Other leased assets

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 5(a))
Expense relating to short-term leases

260

ManR :

ENERERAZHEFREZFAXIAER D

2023 2022
—=E_= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFT

LR EEERE D RE R

BENERY

T bR R A 11,182 9,525
EmHEEE 2,147 2,200
HEBEF B (ME5E) 321 515
B ERE 2 A 1,487 52
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

12 Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
RMB76,734,000 (2022: RMB100,032,000). This amount
included the newly acquired land use right, and the remainder
to the capitalised lease payments payable under renewal of
tenancy agreement.

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis of
lease liabilities and the future cash outflows arising from leases
that are not yet commenced are set out in Notes 21(d), 30(b)
and 31, respectively.

The land use rights under right-of-use assets with carrying
value of RMB379,778,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB217,247,000) were pledged as securities for bank loans of
the Group as at 31 December 2023 (Note 24).

(i) Land use rights

As at 31 December 2023, the remaining period of the
land use rights ranges from 33 to 50 years (31 December
2022: 34 to 50 years).

(ii) Other leased assets

The Group has obtained the right to use properties as its
plants and office through tenancy agreements. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 2 to 10 years. Lease
payments are usually increased to reflect market rentals.

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

12 FHEEE®)

FA- ﬁ%%é?%ﬁ%AE%
76,734,0007t( — T = —F: AR ¥
100,032,0007T) ° Z 2 B E Z B FHH W
O HEREREENHERRET
MR TERNMEEFNHEEN G -

HEReRHAE HEeaE 23D
MR E ARG HEEREENARKRIES
2 RIS KT RE21(d) ~ 30(b) K2 31 ©

R-ZE—_=F+—A=+—H  REEAL
AR #379,778,000 (- —F +—
A=+—H: AR#217,247,0007C)
FAEESERE T T MEREDRTES
REERITERAIRA R (FIzE24) °

(i) LTfERAE

R—_F-_=F+-_A=+—H %
HERAENEEGRERN T3B3FE
S0F(ZE_=F+=-A=+—H:
34FEE504F) o

(i) HtHEEEE

AEBBERAERZESERYE
(ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&%“*ﬁm%ﬂ |
E—RNFABH2E10E - HEN
FBESEN  ARBTHHESK
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RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAERIN  BEUARBIIR)

13 Intangible assets 13 BEEE
Patents
=7
RMB’000
ARETT
Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and R-—E_—_F—H—H8 "
31 December 2023 R+ A=+T—AR
—E_=F+-_/F=1+—H 4,122
Accumulated amortisation: Rty -
At 1 January 2022 W—_ZT-_—F—HF—H (712)
Charge for the year FAZH (412)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R-E-_—F+-_A=+—HK
—E-=F—HF—H (1,124)
Charge for the year FARZH (412)
At 31 December 2023 KRB —_=F+—_A=+—H (1,536)
Net book value: HREFHE
At 31 December 2023 R-ZE-_=F+_-_A=+—H 2,586
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+=-_F=+—H 2,998
The amortisation charge for the year is included in REEHIPT Nt ARG BER [T
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of =1

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

Investments in subsidiaries

n'.F

B IRk EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated:

Name of companies
NEER

China Xingfa (BVI) Limited ("Xingfa BVI") (i)

China Xingfa (BVI) Limited (T Xingfa BVI)) (i)

Xingfa Aluminium (Hong Kong) Limited
("Xingfa Hong Kong") (ii)

BEpx(BR)BRAT
[BEEE) (i)

Guangdong Xingfa Holdings Limited (;)ii)i)
(“Guangdong Xingfa Holding")

EREBERAR AR ()i)i)
((BREEZR])

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd (i)(i)
("Guangdong Xingfa")
BREFEEXERAF (i)
([EREE])

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd. (i)
("Xingfa Chengdu")

HEsR% () BRAR ()i
((Ee:0))

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co.,
Ltd. (j)ii) (“Xingfa Jiangxi")

EREZRZE(IA)BRAR ()i
(rggIm])

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment
AMALBHR
EEBH/RIAM

BVI
2 October 2007

EERLAS
“TZT+ETAZA

Hong Kong

14 April 2008

EE
“Z22)\E@A+EA

PRC
25 January 2021

B
—F-—%#-f-1%A

PRC
26 May 2006

HE
“ETRERACTSA

PRC

7 July 2009

i
“ZTNELALA

PRC

14 August 2009

i
“ZENE\ATIA

Registered and
fully paid-up capital

EMRARER

United States

Dollars (“USD")
2,000/USD2,000
20005 ([%£7))/
2,000%7T

HKD1,000/
HKD1,000
1,000 7,/
1,000557

RMB50,000,000/
Nil

AE 50,000,007,/
RMB360,041,350/
RMB360,041,350

AR 360,041,3507T,/
AR%360,041,350 70

RMB130,000,000/
RMB130,000,000
AR 130,000,0007T,/
AE% 130,000,000 7T

RIB100,000,000/
RMB100,000,000
ARH100,000,0007,/
AE%100,000,000 7

(BR=EEHI -

14 RMBARZRE

TREHETEZEATERE

BEAARKESITR)

BEZWBARS - A BEAEIN -
HFFB 2 BRI AEBAY

Proportion of ownership interest

HEELA

Group's
effective  Held by the Held by a
interest Company subsidiary
rEE HmARE  AKEAE
BRER b ]
100% 100% =
100% = 100%
100% = 100%
100% = 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%

Annual Report 2023 F %

Principal activities
TEEH

Investment holding

RERR

Sales of aluminium
profiles

SHERIM

New materials
technology research
and development

MR R
R EREH

Manufacturing and sales
of aluminium profiles

EERHERUN

Manufacturing and sales
of aluminium profiles

EERHERUN

Manufacturing and sales
of aluminium profiles

EERHERUN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(= HEAI - BEUAREIIR)
14 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) 14 AMBARIZRE &)
Proportion of ownership interest
RARLH
Place and date of Group's
incorporation/ Registered and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of companies establishment fully paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
FRRIBER r5E HARR  AKEAR
NRER BRI/ RIAH AT EL B gL ] BE IEBEE
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Henan) Co.,  PRC RMB100,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sales
Ltd. (i)(ii) (" Xingfa Henan") 10 May 2010 RMB100,000,000 of aluminium profiles
BRELRE () BRAF () E AR 100,000,007,/ HERHEREN
(M&zmm]) “Z-ZERATH AR 100,000,000
Foshan Xingfa Real Estate Co., Ltd. (})(i) PRC RMB8,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Development, sales and
("Xingfa Real Estate") 5 June 2013 RMBS,000,000 management of
properties
[ 1177 B 5 R E R R IR AR (i) il AR 8,000,007,/ nER%  BERER
([E#EE]) —E-=F5AEH AR8,000,0007C
Foshan Xingfa Trading Co., Ltd. (i)(i) PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Trading of aluminium
("Xingfa Trading") 3 December 2014 RMB10,000,000 profiles
LT BB ERRAR (i) G AR%10,000,0007T,/ RENES
(MEEmE]) “2-MmE+ZA=H AR 10,000,000
Xingfa New Material(Zhejiang) Co., Ltd. (i) PRC RMB200,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sales
("Xingfa Zhejiang”) 21 January 2022 RMB200,000,000 of aluminium profiles
TS CIHT) BB AR () i AR 200,000,000,/ BB RSHEREN
([BEMT)) ZZZF-AZt—B  ARH200000,0007
Guangdong Xingfa Precision Manufacturing ~ PRC RMB200,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sales
Co., Ltd. (i)(ij) ("Xingfa Precision”) 26 September 2017 RMB200,000,000 of precision products
ERBERTRERRAR ()(i) i AR 200,000,007,/ EERHERTER
([Bgmz) “E-HEAAZHRR AREB200,000,0007
Guangdong Xingfa Aoke Architecture PRC RMB20,000,000/ 51% = 51%  Manufacturing and sales
Technology Co., Ltd. (i)ii) ("Xingfa Aoke") 20 July 2018 RMB19,622,070 of architecture
products
BERAZERZERRARDA () i ARH20,000,0007T,/ EERHERSER
([BERR ) “2-\FLA=tH ARH19,622,0707C
(i) These entities are all PRC limited liability companies. The English translation (i) ZEERHATRER AR c ZENTELE
of the Company names are for reference only. The official names of these ZENBEERERE - ZERRINENESR
companies are in Chinese. [EL: 2T
(ii) The subsidiaries are companies with limited liabilities. (ii) ZEMBRARABREEAT]
(i) The subsidiary is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise. @iy ZMBARABINGEERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Interest in an associate and non-current
assets held for sale

Details of the Group’s interest in the associate, which is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

RBELR 2R RIFFHE
ZERBER

SERBENA M ES (REE M H R

EREREAR)FBET ¢

T /2

i

Proportion of
ownership interest

EERELA
Form of Place of Particulars of Group's
business incorporation issuedand  effective Heldbya
Name of associate structure and business paid-up capital interest  subsidiary  Principal activities
EBRE ALK BRTR 5B mKEAR
BENRER 7% B HREXFEE HEED BE IEEE
Guangdong Xingfa Environmental Limited liability ~ People’s Republic RMB30,000,000/ 40% 40%  Manufacturing and
Technology Co., Ltd. (i)(ii) company of China RMB30,000,000 sales of environment
("Xingfa Environmental ") protection products
BREERGERBARAR (1)) EREARAR HEARLAE  AR#30,000,0007T,/ EERHERRER
(TRERE]) AR#30,000,000 70
(i) The English translation of the entity name is for reference only. The official (i) ERAHIAXNBZEHT2E -ZEEZLE

name of the entity is in Chinese.

(ii) Xingfa Environmental is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market
price is not available.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the amount of the
Group’s share of loss from this associate is RMB1,919,000
(2022: RMB5,016,000) and no dividend was declared to the
Group (2022: Nil).

On 29 December 2023, Guangdong Xingfa and Jiangsu
Yongbao Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. (“Yongbao
Environmental”, a subsidiary of China Lesso Group Holdings
Limited) entered into an equity transfer agreement (the
“Agreement”), pursuant to which Guangdong Xingfa agreed
to transfer the 40% equity interest held by Guangdong Xingfa
in Xingfa Environmental to Yongbao Environmental (the
“Equity Transfer”). The consideration of the Equity Transfer
was RMB15,000,000. Immediately upon signing the
Agreement, the Group discontinued the use of the equity
method over its interest in Xingfa Environmental and classified
the carrying amount of its interest in Xingfa Environmental
amounted to RMB2,040,000 as “Non-current assets held for
sale”. As at 31 December 2023, the Equity Transfer has not yet
been completed, as such, the Group did not recognised any
gain or loss in respect of the Equity Transfer during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

ABBAETXEHE

(i)  BEEBSRFAI LT AAER  UEMISHRE -

HE_T-=—"F+-_A=1+—HIEFE
AEEREGZBEEAFNEBIESEAA
R#1,919000t(ZFEF: AR¥
5,016,000 7T ) * WA & 0 £ 5 K A% B
(ZZT==F ) o

RZZEZ=F+=ZA=+NA  EXREHH
BT #OK IR AR BHE AR A A ([ KR
R o BB 2B 5 B AR A R A BRI B
Al IR E G ([ Z il B
it - R EE A B A K AR (R FE R
BIEE W EIEIRIT A 40% AR AE ([
#E]) o %%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%AE%womom
UL o BEER B MEE  ARERIEHE
Wﬂﬁaﬁm%\ﬁ%%‘ﬁ I E A
BB IR IR R 9 BR T (B A R #5 2,040,000

TOEE ([ FHELREZERBDEE] - B
TEC=FFZA=1+—H ' RESEN
KM Bt AEBREBEE_T_=F
+Z A=+ RALFEYERRIEE S
TR ARSI o
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RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

16 Equity securities designated at FVOCI 16 BEEARAFEFAHEMEZE
W 25 B9 IR A 5% 5

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-F

RMB‘000 RMB’'000

ARMFTT ARBFT

Investments in unlisted equity securities IEETMRAFHKE 36,508 32,847

The unlisted equity securities are the investments held for
strategic purposes. No dividends were received on the
investments during the year (31 December 2022: Nil).

17 Derivative financial instruments 17 {TEE€RIT A

Derivative financial assets

Non-current assets

— Other derivative (Note 30(f))

Current assets

— Forward exchange contracts

(Note 30(f))

At 31 December

TTEETREE

FEMBEE
— EAbDTA (B3 30(f)

MBEE
— EHISNE S K (K aE 30(f))

W12 A31H
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FLTIRAEST REE B NG
KRE -AFEAERARERIBRE(ZF
TCF+ZA=t+—RH 8\ -

2023 2022
—E-=F B F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥Fir ARBF T
4,315 8,556

- 3,402

4,315 11,958
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Inventories and other contract costs

Inventories rE
Aluminium profiles manufacturing SRBUA BUAE
— Raw materials — R
— Work in progress — E&m
— Finished goods — B
Completed properties for sale B8 TIFEYE
— Properties developed by the Group ~ — ANEE IR Y%
— Acquired properties — BWEDE

(i) During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the Group has entered into the sale and purchase
agreements with property developers to purchase certain
properties with total consideration of RMB206,258,000.
Also, the Group has settled the consideration by
endorsing its trade receivables to the property developers
without right of recourse.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has completed the
purchase of properties of RMB130,754,000 (31
December 2022: RMB115,272,000) with ownership
certificates obtained as recorded at costs, net of the
provision for write down of such acquired properties held
for sale to net realisable value amounted to
RMB38,107,000 (31 December 2022: Nil).

Besides, the Group has received the properties of
RMB75,504,000 (31 December 2022: RMB61,104,000)
without obtaining the related ownership certificates and
recorded the properties in Prepayments (Note 19(b)).

The Group intends to hold the properties for sale in
subsequent period.

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

18 FEREMEIRAE

Note
HtaF

2023 2022
—E_-= T 4F
RMB‘000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT ARMTFT

215,491 253,644
170,684 150,152
731,712 782,868
1,117,887 1,186,664
151,589 151,589
92,647 115,272
244,236 266,861
1,362,123 1,453,525

BE_ZT-_=FRKR-_T-—F+—
A=+—HIEFE  AEEEYE
BV EEMRUEBEESETY
¥ BR{EAEARKE206,258,000
JC o NEEINAEBRERN G
R BEWTH T ERER - AL
BHRE -

R-_ZTE_=F+-_HA=+—H &K
SEEES ARK130,754,0007C
T —F+-A=+—H: AR
¥ 115,272,000 7T ) AT E 4 75 BE
ERARVIERZA - W& R BEFZ
EEWERHEL EMEMR = 2
REBFENEEBARE
38,107,000 ( —ZE -+ —_ A
=t+—H:E)-

o REBE KR AR
75,504,000 c( ZE=——F+= A
=+—H: AR¥61,104,0007C )
FEGHEBERZRNDE L
ZEMEEABMNZBEOK &
19(b)) °

AEBERNEEPEFEZERHE
HEWE -
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RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

18 Inventories and other contract costs

(Continued)

18 FERHEMEHNRAKR &)

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

Carrying amount of inventories sold

(Note 5(c))

Write down of inventories — completed

properties for sale

bl

S AR B (AYaE 5(c))

—BERIFEME

All of the inventories are expected to be recovered within one
year, except for the properties held for sale which are expected

to be recovered after more than one year.

19 Trade receivables, other receivables and 19

prepayments

(a) Trade and other receivables

Trade debtors and bills receivable,

R 5 WA M EKF R

net of loss allowance (i) (3B EIERE) ()
Other debtors, net of loss allowance (i)  E b fE U 5118
(N EsIERAE) (i)
(i) Bills receivable with carrying value of RMB887,325,000 were

pledged as security of issuing bills by the Group as at 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022: RMB771,331,000) (Note

22).

268 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S%%42 #1% j 5[R A 7

BRARAX MG ABRZFESEAN

2023 2022
—=E_-= T _F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT

15,301,018 15,158,361

38,107 =

PAGFEREAN—FRKE - EFREHR
—E R E 2 FEWRERIN

R 7 BRWRIE - BRI
RENRIE

R 5 R H b fE W IE

2023 2022
—ZE=-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFIT

3,995,609 4,591,932
195,476 159,451
4,191,085 4,751,383

R-T—_=F+—-A=+—0 K@
E5 AR 887,325,000 7T 8 fE Y 1%
BRI IR A £ B 31T Z IR M K IR @
(ZF2_—F+-A=+—H: AR%
771,331,000 7T) (FfsE 22) »
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e IRk EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

19 Trade receivables, other receivables and 19 XSEWFIE - HttEWFERIE
prepayments (Continued) RENTRIE®)
(a) Trade and other receivables (Continued) (a) XRBREMEWFRIE (&)
(ii) As at 31 December 2023, loss allowance on other debtors is (ii) R-E_=F+_-_HA=+—H ' Hfs
RMB1,476,000 (31 December 2022 RMB1,410,000). B HE Y EEAEE A ARE
1,476,000t( =2 = =& + = A

=+—08: AR¥1,410,0007T) °

@iy~ The amount of trade and other receivables that is expected to be @iy RPREMEYKIEERAR —FAE
recovered after more than one year is RMB15,050,000 (2022: g | A R % 15,050,000t( =T ==
RMB14,401,000), which relates to retention money of construction £ : AR¥14,401,0007T) @ HEAFEE
contracts. All of the other current trade and other receivables are BHZRESEHR FIEEMBENER
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year. SREMEWFIETEBHN —FERN YK E

HERRBFAX °

Ageing analysis i v

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis RWEBRR  REZARKEEE
of trade debtors and bills receivable based on the invoice MAMGETHREERE RS
date or bill acceptance date and net of loss allowance, is FE Y SRIE I FE R 45 2 BR R o0 AT A
as follows: ™

2023 2022
—=E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR®TFT

Within 1 month —fEAR 2,009,535 1,991,878
1 to 3 months —E=={AA 1,217,612 1,511,068
3 to 6 months =EXEHA 672,929 760,986
Over 6 months B8 A 95,533 328,000
3,995,609 4,591,932
Trade debtors and bills receivable are due within 30 to R 2 MR R ERRERFAR A
360 days from the date of billing or bills receivable FSRIB N B 1R 30 B2 360 B
issuance. Further details on the Group’s credit policy and MEIH - BEAAKEREEBR IR
credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills receivable SEBKERERRBEENEER
are set out in Note 30(a). [2\ B B3 — P FFIBE M FE30(a) °
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B IR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EHEASN

n'ﬁ

HEAAREDIR)

19 Trade receivables, other receivables and
prepayments (Continued)

(b) Prepayments

&ﬁ'ﬁ'a‘\klﬁ(éﬁ

(b) FEARIEA

2023 2022
—=-_= —E-—fF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR#TF T ARETFT
Prepayments for raw materials and R R E A B TR FRIE
others 86,254 111,277
Prepayments for properties (i) VTR FRIA () 75,504 61,104
161,758 172,381
Less: e
Impairment loss on prepayments for V) FE R FRIE 2 B E 1R ()
properties (i) (23,224) —
Non-current portion included in FTATERFRIE Z FERENES 5
prepayments (31,432) -
107,102 172,381
(i) The prepayment represented completed properties purchased (i) TR R IE FE A 1 3 R 2 e (BT =T 18)
from the property developers (Note 18) that have been delivered BEMNERNTAEENBERIYE -
to the Group. The properties will be transferred to inventories of ZEMEREERZARE TEAKE
the Group subsequently upon the issuance of ownership BEBAREBRFE - R_FT_=F

certificate to the Group. As at 31 December 2023, impairment
loss on prepayment for properties amounted to RMB23,224,000
(31 December 2022: Nil).

20 Pledged deposits

270

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, pledged deposits represented
bank deposits pledged to banks as securities for issuing bills (Note

22).

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED #2458 %1ZRAR A 7]

+ZA=+—8 " UEBAREBEZR
BEEB A ARK23224,000L(=F
——&+-A=+—H:#)-

[SE LR

RIBE_=ZFR - —F+_A=+—
B BEEEZEE RETIRITIEAZT
= WM 2 BT ER (FIE22) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IRk EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

21 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 21 BERBEESEBYREMES

flow information nEER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () RERBEZEYEE:

2023 2022
—E_=F —EF-—

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FiT AREFIT

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERE 2,840,415 1,849,773
As at 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents situated RZTE_=F+-_A=+—H0 &
in Chinese Mainland amounted to RMB2,836,068,000 (2022: REBERNRS NREEEBNA
RMB1,808,209,000). Remittance of funds out of Chinese AR #2,836,068,000C( =T = —
Mainland is subject to relevant rules and regulations of F: AR 1,808,209,0007T) © &
foreign exchange control. B PBAAESINEE AR

AR DI B AR DIRR I -
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RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

21 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash

flow information (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from operations:

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortisation

Write down of inventories

Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables

Impairment loss on prepayments
for properties

Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses

Finance costs

Interest income

Changes in fair value of
commodity future contracts as
hedge ineffectiveness

Loss/(gain) on disposal of
property, plant and equipment
and other assets

Share of loss of an associate

Changes in fair value of other
derivative and forward
exchange contracts

Net foreign exchange loss

Changes in working capital:

Decrease in inventories and other
contract costs

Decrease/(increase) in trade and
other receivables

Decrease in prepayment

Decrease in trade and other
payables

Increase in contract liabilities

Increase in deferred income

Cash generated from operations

BR B AR

TSI AR -

e

55

WoslTF &

R 5 e B At e MR IR R B
B

WMERNFIA 2R ERE

AR AR A A 2R
DRECES

BT A

FIBIA

R OERBEAL
2 ATESD

I UER T
R E M BE A
e

55— IR A T8

H 574 T A R IR HSNE
Atz ATES

SNERRFR

LEEEHE

T8 MEME KRR D

R 5 M E A W OR
L,/ ()

AR FER S

R 5 K E MR RIER

BHAEEM
EFEUASE DD

EBHBEE
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21

BEeRBESEEYREMES
REER 2

(b) BRBEABANEEBFEREZ

Notes

ffaE

5(c)
5(c)
18
5(c)
19

5(b)
5(a)

HBR -
2023 2022
:i:E ="

RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETFIL
916,323 511,884
470,310 510,471
412 412
38,107 =
293,204 552,098
23,224 =
- (1,690)

138,056 138,874
(63,220) (59,344)

- 6,580
14,880 (6,537)
1,919 5,016
7,643 (3,402)
(1,844) 15,799
68,777 163,835
234,012 (833,134)
56,455 88,144
(618,826) (306,733)
3,896 150,243
24,829 11,474
1,608,157 943,990




Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

B IRk EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

21 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (Continued)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

At 1 January 2022

Changes from financing cash flows:
Proceeds of new bank loans
Repayments of bank loans

Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest element of lease rentals paid
Finance costs paid

Total changes from financing cash flows

Other changes:

Increase in lease liabilities from entering
into new leases during this year

Capitalised borrowing costs (Note 5(a))

Interest expenses (Note 5(a))

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January
2023

Changes from financing cash flows:
Proceeds of new bank loans
Repayments of bank loans

Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest element of lease rentals paid
Finance costs paid

Total changes from financing cash flows

Increase in lease liabilities from entering

into new leases during this year
Capitalised borrowing costs (Note 5(a))
Interest expenses (Note 5(a))

At 31 December 2023

RZZT-_—_#—A—H

MERSREZEE
HRTERZFEHE
BERITER
ERHERE AL HD
ERHEEEES TS
EREEAA

RMEREREZEBLEE

Hit2H

n'.F

(BR=EEHI -

BEAARKESITR)

AERFUMHEELCH

BAREE
BAR(CBRAA (it 5)
MEF (Kt 56)

W_E-_—F+-A=+—H
RZZE-=%F—H—H

MERSREZLE
HRTERZFERE
BERTER

ERHEERE 2 AE S
ERHEEREZFIERS
BB BRA

DH

HEREREZEYRE
$$EJI%E SELZ

éfZM H%?K&A‘( Wizt 5(a)
MBI (it 50)

W_E_=f+-A=1—H

21 BeRREEEBYRHEMERE
nEER ®)
(0 METHELNEBZIYHER
Loans and Interest Lease
borrowings payable liabilities Total
EXREE BAFE HEaE B3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFTL
(Note 24) (Note 22) (Note 25)
(it 24) (FieF22) (i 25)
1,751,359 9,720 7,452 1,768,531
3,527,664 - - 3,527,664
(2,780,017) - - (2,780,017)
- - (1,985) (1,985)
= = (515) (515)
- (139,052) - (139,052)
747,647 (139,052) (2,500) 606,095
- - 2,584 2,584
- 5,590 - 5,590
_________ Do B8 b 1586
2,499,006 14,617 8,051 2,521,674
2,771,236 - - 2,771,236
(2,122,750) - - (2,122,750)
- - (2,293) (2,293)
- - (321) (321)
- (146,135) - (146,135)
648,486 (146,135) (2,614) 499,737
- - 297 297
- 5,775 - 5,775
- 137,735 321 138,056
3,147,492 11,992 6,055 3,165,539
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RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(= EEBI - BEUAREDIR)

21 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash

274

flow information (Continued)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases
comprise the following:

Within operating cash flows BRgERemnE
Within investing cash flows BEREERSRE
Within financing cash flows BRRERSRE

These amounts relate to the following:

Lease rentals paid BfHEE
Purchase of land use right BB T {F s

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED #2458 %1ZRAR A 7]

21 BEeRBeEEYREMERE
REER @)

(d) HERSRHAHE

SEEFARSRERNSRERE

AR -
2023 2022
—E_=f B
RMB’000 RMB*000

ARETFTT AR®TT

1,487 52
76,437 97,448
2,614 2,500
80,538 100,000

p=11]3

2ECRENTRIBAR

2022
—E-=F B F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AR®TT

4,101 2,552
76,437 97,448
80,538 100,000
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e IRk EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

22 Trade and other payables 22 RERHEMBTRIE

2023 2022
—E_-= B F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR%Fr ARKFIT

Trade payables RS N FIE 1,153,505 985,458
Bills payable A2 1,853,247 2,638,202
Accrued payroll and benefits JEEt L& RAEF| 253,667 243,796
Other payables and accruals HAb B IE R BT & 361,621 365,717
Payable for purchase of property, plantand BE ¥ « W/E M & & 2 FER

equipment FIE 137,823 87,703
Interest payable (Note 21(c)) FESRIE (BaE21(c) 11,992 14,617
Deferred income (Note 26) BEEWA (B3t 26) 12,303 12,013
Payable for the purchase of unlisted equity B&E FF I i IXAN 38 55 K 74 FE A~

securities and derivative (Note 33(b)) I (K7aE33(b)) - 27,516

Financial liabilities measured at amortised R ER A EZ SR A E

cost 3,784,158 4,375,022
Refund liabilities RRAE
— arising from volume rebates — RE#EFR 38,055 45,747
3,822,213 4,420,769
All of the trade and other payables (including amounts due to FTE X 5 B B At & A5 R IR (82 43 & A A Bt
related parties) are expected to be settled or recognised as 75 5RI8) TEEE R — F AR SRR R
income within one year or are repayable on demand. AREEREE o
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RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

22

276

Trade and other payables (Continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of
trade payables and bills payable (which are included in trade
and other payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 1 month —EAR

1 to 3 months —==18A4
3 to 6 months ==/~EA
Over 6 months BiE7NEA

As at 31 December 2023, bills payable of RMB170,074,000
was secured by bills receivables of the Group (31 December
2022: RMB267,660,000), bills payable of RMB1,013,000,000
was secured by pledged deposits of the Group (31 December
2022: RMB2,085,000,000).

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED #2458 %1ZRAR A 7]

22

R 5 REMBARE @)

REEHR  REFAHHEZRHEMN
FTARENRER (BT ARS R EAME
NFRIE) 2 FREDITA0T

2023 2022
—_=-= T _F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT

508,500 288,590
1,205,945 893,668
1,018,991 809,460

273,316 1,631,942
3,006,752 3,623,660

R-EBE-_=F+-"A=+—H BENEE
AR ¥170,074,000C( =T = —F+ =
A=+—H: AR¥267,660,0007T) M
AEEZ EKREERERET  BRNEEAR
#1,013,000,000 (= ==F+ =R
=+—H: ARK#2,085000,000T) H
REE 7 BEPERER -
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FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

All of the contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as
income within one year.

(RS EIERIN » BEUAARESIR)
23 Contract liabilities 23 AEE
2023 2022
—E_=F B F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKFIT
Aluminium profiles contracts AN E R
— Billings in advance of performance — BABERNFIA 382,413 378,517
Movements in contract liabilities EHNEERS
2023 2022
—E-=F B F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz&#% 378,517 228,274
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FEMERFERUE GTAEME L
recognising revenue during the year that ~ BE)MELZAHAERD
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (378,517) (228,274)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of %% )E BT84 R I8 M E 2 H)
billing in advance of manufacturing aHEEEN
activities 382,413 378,517
Balance at 31 December R+—A=+—Bz&% 382,413 378,517

FIAEHABEENEN —FARIBEA -
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= =
e SRR RE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(= EEBI - BEUAREDIR)

24 Loans and borrowings 24 BERREE
(a) The analysis of the repayment schedule of () EXRKRBEZENRRERIN
loans and borrowings is as follows: (1 [ N

2023 2022
—=— = 7::7735

— _=__

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT

Within one year or on demand —FRNHEEK 499,590 550,452
After 1 year but within 2 years —EFRERFEA 1,247,259 421,770
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBEREN 1,222,516 1,477,022
After 5 years h i 178,127 49,762
2,647,902 1,948,554
3,147,492 2,499,006
(b) Assets pledged as security and covenants for (b) EERERERREBELERR
loans and borrowings RENEE
At 31 December 2023, the loans and borrowings were RZTE_=F+_HA=+—H ' &
secured and guaranteed as follows: HREEERRERAT

2023 2022
—==-= T _F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT

Secured and guaranteed bank loans EERRERBITERREE

and borrowings 2,900,502 2,290,006
Unsecured bank loans and borrowings — #EXFRITER M EE 246,990 209,000
3,147,492 2,499,006
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FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

24 Loans and borrowings (Continued)

(b) Assets pledged as security and covenants for

loans and borrowings (Continued)

The secured loans and borrowings were secured by the
following assets with net book value of the Group:

Property, plant and equipment (Note 11) ¥1% - = N &4 (Hfa+11)
TR FRRE (ffat 12)

Land use rights (Note 12)

Total 4t

As at 31 December 2023, the banking facilities of the Group
amounted to RMB14,176,200,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB12,003,909,000) were utilised to the extent of
RMB4,509,000,000 (31 December 2022: RMB5,039,000,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the bank loans of the Group,
amounted to RMB946,541,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB210,000,000), are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the subsidiaries’ balance
sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down loans
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in Note 30(b). As at 31 December 2023, none of
the covenants relating to drawn down loans had been
breached (2022: Nil).

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

24 EXRREE®E)

(b)

CEFERERREERERR
HLAENEE#E)

EEMERREENREB ZIAT

& ERMEERR
2023 2022
—E_-= B F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR%Fr ARKFIT
365,562 370,330
379,778 217,247
745,340 587,577

RZBE_=F+_A=+—H8" 'R
REEB AR 14,176,200,0007T( =
TZ-—_F+-f=+—H: AR¥
12,003,909,00070) Z SRITIEEFEE
. AR #4,509,000,000C( =&
T+ ZRA=+—H: AR¥
5,039,000,0007T) &£ 2 E A °

RZZTE_=F+-_HA=+—H &K
EBEIRTTE KA R ¥ 946,541,000
T(ZEZ=ZF+=ZA=+—H: A
R 210,000,000 7T) ZBRFENKH
MEBARETEEABRLERZH
H(ERRESRMEBITLZER
ZHE) B AEE - WAEBEER
ZEZY BERIZEREREX
BYff AEBEHERERLE
FHRERY - BRAAEEEREE
C R BIE 2 — B HR M
F30b)e RZE-_=F+=H
=t B YEERTMANAEBEIR
MERCRY (ZTF &) -
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RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

25 Lease liabilities

At 31 December 2023, the lease liabilities were repayable as

follows:

Within 1 year or on demand

After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 years but within 5 years

26 Deferred income

At 1 January
Additions
Credited to profit or loss (Note 4)

At 31 December

Less: current portion included in trade and
other payables (Note 22)

25 HEEE

R-B-=f+-A=1-0 ARAH
RS TSR R4 -

2023 2022

—E=-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT AREFIT

—F A EEK 2,427
—FERERER 2,438 2,614
MEREBRFA 1,099 3,010
3,537 5,624

6,055 8,051

26 EZLEW A

2023 2022

—E=-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TF T ARBF T

n—H—H 53,592 42,118
NE 34,724 33,586
RIBRAETA (M aE4) (9,895) (22,112)
Rt+=—A=+—8H 78,421 53,592

B IAR S REABERFRIEZ

mENER D (Brat22) (12,303) (12,013)
66,118 41,579
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

B IRk EE

n'.F

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Deferred income (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, deferred income of the
Group represented various conditional government grants
received from the local government authorities for subsidising
the cost of operating activities, cost of research and
development activities, and acquisition cost of property, plant
and equipment, which would be recognised as income on a
straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the relevant
assets, or on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the related costs of relevant activities are incurred.

Equity settled share-based transactions

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 15 October 2018 whereby the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the
Group, including directors of any company in the Group, to
take up options at nil consideration to subscribe for shares of
the Company. The options vest after two years to four years
from the date of grant and are then exercisable on or before
14 October 2023. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is settled
gross in shares.

The options granted under the share option scheme were
lapsed, forfeited or exercised by the end of 31 December 2022.
Therefore, no share option expenses were recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: reversed expense of
RMB1,690,000).

26

27

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

EZEWA &)

RZEZ=FE T _F+HA=1T—
B AEBRNELERA AR STBNE D
EESNESEEEENBATME) - B e,
BB A ~ IREEBI KA IA R -
TS R 5 OB P S+ %2 F IR A AR
B8 & E R T8 2 {5 B R R A LA B 48 07 = A
RAEWASIRELEEBTEBNIEBEER
R[F—HAfE - IR ELERHR o

;&Emﬁuﬁﬁ%g i B 32

ARBR-_FE-N\FTATHBRMNE
PrtEst 8l - AU AR R ESREERN B
FAREHER (BRAKETAKE AT

EX)NTHERBARRRD - 258
BRESKERDABHERFENFRNER
MEER-_Z_=FtAtHOBxXZH
Al FIT{E - SMBERER TRAEAENR
BARA—BE BB RABRN A& -

BIEBRESRE CEREER =S
——F+ A=+ —BFERTRR B2k
HITE-EHit BHE-_ZT=-=F+=A
=t+—HIFETERERERERS (=
T F B0 ARK1,690,000
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

28

282

Income tax in the consolidated statement 28 KRGS BRRAERRNZFE
of financial position
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (@) REEHBERRRAZENEH
of financial position represents: IHIE :
2023 2022
—E-=F T _F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%FT ARMTFT
At 1 January w—A—H 70,885 89,057
Provision of PRC CIT for the year FERESERSHEE
(Note 6(a)) (Htet6(a) 148,729 119,165
Provision Hong Kong Profits Tax BT EEEE (M 6)
(Note 6(a)) 137 -
Dividend withholding tax for the year ~ FE R EFEHFIB (At 6(a))
(Note 6(a)) 10,000 14,718
Provision of PRC LAT for the year O o B 4 i S (E B A
(Note 6(a)) (Ktet6a) - 1,168
PRC income tax paid AT RS (131,537) (138,260)
Withholding tax paid on distribution of 2R %% BIEFNTH 1A
dividends (10,000) (14,718)
PRC LAT paid B B 3 (E R (13) (245)
At 31 December WN+—A=+—8 88,201 70,885
XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED S5 §8 % 12 i FR 24 5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R RE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

28 Income tax in the consolidated statement 28 RZEHBMRARAZFER

of financial position (continued) (%)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELFBEEERAME !
() Movement of each components of () BEZHELZEREMEEE
deferred tax assets and liabilities 72 E
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) FARGEEHBRRAKERZ
recognised in the consolidated statement of BERBEE(BE) AR
financial position and the movements during the D REBHIMT

Deferred tax assets/(liabilties)
arising from

At 1 January 2022

(Charged)icredited to profitor loss
(Note 6(a)

Credfted{charged) to reservs (Note 9)

Transferred to current tax (Note 6(3)

At31 December 2022

At 1 January 2023

Crediedcharged) to proftor loss
(Note 6a)

Charged to reserves (Note 9)

Transferred to current tax (Note 6(3)

At31 December 2023

year are as follows:

Unrealised
Impairment ~ Temporary ~ Temporary profit from
of differences differences intra-group ~ Government Undistributed
non-current from from Impairment Derivative ~ transferof ~ grantsin profit of
FEEZBERE finandial  right-of-use lease  Creditloss  Inventory of finandal certainlend ~ deferred  Cashflow PRC
EE/(86) assets assets  liabiies ~ allowance  Provision prepayment  Taxloss# instruments  useright income hedges FVOCl  subsidiaries Total
5ER
NHEER
T4
FROLH RAREE. ERREZ EREEL EEUAR BATEA HEWRAF

EERE BREE BREE GEGRER  AEAR RORODIE BEERs fLERIR ARDMA LNREME REREMN AMREME ARRER it
RVBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB0OO  AMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0D
Ne#Tr ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARRTR ARETT ARETR ARRTr ARETT ARETR ARRTr ARETR ARETR

i S 1787 (854) 1,034 390 - - 10679 85 13738 1205 (1.365) = (28583 38,486

) (1,787) 179 (170) 83,085 - - (3662) (1397) 387) 814 - - (6917) 69,758
REfRRGA/ () Hitg) = = ® = - - - - - 1365 (406) - %9
SRENERAN60) = - - - - - Wme 148
RB-E+-A1-A = (675) 864 117,025 - - 7017 (512) 13351 8039 - (40) (20782) 12391
N-E-=E-5-f - 675) 864 117,025 - - 7017 (512) 13351 8039 - (406) (20782 12391
REgmtA/ (k)

(6 179 (184) 38638 5716 3484 1,685 1148 (154 6,298 - - (16,166) 40644
REERTR o o o © = = = = = (549) - (549)
SRR
W-BZ=%+Zf=1-8 = [49) 680 155,663 5716 3484 8102 636 13,197 14337 955) 26948 174016

# Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused tax losses of # BREHELEERSRAEEE T

certain subsidiaries of the Group. They are now progressing BB R R BB R R T
to their normal operation stage and are deriving profits. R ZEAT B RTEZRHE
Accordingly, it is considered probable that sufficient taxable BREERLEERRIES R
profits will be available in the future to utilise their unused Ao BUtBERRRATEES

tax losses before expiration. As at 31 December 2023, tax B 5 JE ER B g A LA 7E 2 BA AT
losses of RMB34,812,000 will expire from 2026 to 2028. ERARPDAHBEE - KT

—=ZF+-A=+—H8  #®HE
B A R % 34,812,000 7T #§ 14
—RoNEECT)\FER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

28

284

Income tax in the consolidated statement

of financial position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(c)

(Continued)

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated
statement of financial position

(%)

(b)

Net deferred tax assets in the ERE B AR R R IR A
consolidated statement of financial ~ FiIB& EFE
position

Net deferred tax liabilities in the 4R E B TSR O R AR IR AE

consolidated statement of financial ~ FIEE & FE
position

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2023, deferred tax liabilities of RMB252,573,000
(2022: RMB198,604,000) in respect of temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted to
R\VIB5,051,468,000 (2022: RMB3,972,078,000) have not been
recognised as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is probable that
these profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED #2458 %1ZRAR A 7]

(9]

28 REGEUBMRRERAZHAES

CRABERBEEEREHE:

(%)

(i) BBARE R Bk K 2 B2 AR

2023 2022
—E:E-= —E-_4F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥Fir ARBF T

201,919 145,621
(27,903) (21,700)
174,016 123,921

ARRBZELEHEAE

AR B2 ST B A B RIAR B
RS + WEREENARTRER A] RA K
DIRFZE R MR =T =F+=
A=+—8 AR ENBARRD
IR %A A R #5,051,468,000 T (=&
——4F: AR¥3,972,078,0007C) A
BTN EERERELHBEEBEAR
#5252,573,000L(ZE==F : AR
198,604,000 7T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

BEAARKESITR)

29 Capital, reserves and dividends

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes

(BR=EEHI -

29 BA& - RERKEE
(a) EEHBHEE

AEBEGEERS

MﬁZi%}]&i
KRtz BEREN G A RS E T

; ; . ; /N | Iz i
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s 3 o AN A Bl 18 i ALK B £ 7047
individual components of equity between the beginning NRFRZEBHFHERINAT
and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company A= |
Share Share Capital Other Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
e REEE EAGE At G ERGfE REEF &5t
Notes RMB000 RMB000 RVB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
it ANRETT NEETT NEETT ANRETT NEETT NEETT ANRETT
Note 29(c) Note 29(a)) Note 29()ii) Note 29(a)i) Note 29(a)(y)
Hi#290) 29 i 29(d)i) HiaE29(0)) HiiF290)y)
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZF-F-F-AkR 34 3,744 188,048 3214 441,976 (58,452) 4,309 582,839
Changes in equity for 2022: R CEREEEY:
Profit for the year EEET - . . - - 234102 234,102
Other comprehensive income ~ Eft 2% - - - - 53,688 - 53,688
Total comprehensive income for & 2 Elk #5638
the year - - - - 53,688 234,102 287,790
Shares issued due to exercise of  R{T{ESRRYIET Bl %74
share option scheme f&in 29() 9 7,199 (1370) - = = 5838
Recognition of employees’ EREEERETE
share option scheme 27 - - (1,690) - - - (1,690)
Dividend approved in respect of  BAEE LY ERRE
the previous year 29(b) - (47,008) - - - (238,411) (285,419)
Balance at 31 December 2022 PM=E-—F+-f=1-H
and 1 January 2023 R=F-=%-f-Rz
] 34 3,753 148,239 154 441,976 (4,764) - 589,358
Changes in equity for 2023: “EOCERERY:
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - 190,555 190,555
Other comprehensive income ~~ E 2Nz - - - - 15,232 - 15232
Total comprehensive income for - & 2 EUHEE
the year - - - - 15,232 190,555 205,787
Dividend approved in respect of BEEE L ELRE.
the previous year 29b) - - - - - (141,047) (141,047)
Balance at 31 December 2023 W=ZE-=£+-A=1-F
i3 34 3753 148,239 154 441,976 10,468 49,508 654,098
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

(b) Dividends

(i)

29 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 29 BAX - HERRE ®)
(b) RE
Dividends payable to equity shareholders () FAZENELAERR
of the Company attributable to the year RRE

286

(ii)

Final dividends proposed after the
end of reporting year of HKDO0.64
per ordinary share (2022: HKD0.37

per ordinary share)

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a [
liability at the end of the reporting period.

2023 2022
—=E==-= B F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fr ARKFIT

RBEFREEFRNTZ
RHARS B AR
0.64BIL(ZT=__4F :
BRI ERR0.37HET) 243,968 139,029

K& HREERIRN 2 KB
S ENHEHRERSA

A
N
G
=
=k

.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) REAHERIKN L —1ME
of the Company attributable to the BRFEZEMNELAE
previous financial year, approved and wRRKRE

paid during the year

Final dividends in respect of the
previous financial year, approved

and paid during the year, of

HKDO0.37 per ordinary share (2022:

HKDO.80 per ordinary share)

2023 2022
—E-=F —EoF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fir ARBF T

RERHE KRR E—1&

PREE 2 RARE
B 0.37/8 7T
T oF B8R
TEAL0.80/87T) 141,047 285,419
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

29 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(BR=EEHI -

EAARETIR)

29 B - RERKRE @)

(c) Share capital () KA
(i) Issued share capital (i) ERITRAE
2023 2022
—E-= ke
No. of Nominal value of No. of Nominal value of
shares fully paid shares shares fully paid shares
KA BRRAEE K% A HBRBROEE
RMB RMB
equivalent equivalent
('000)  HKD'000 ‘000 ('000)  HKD'000 ‘000
AE# ARE
(FR)  TEx ZETT G 7k
Ordinary shares, issued ERTRMEEER
and fully paid
At 1 January n—A—H 420,649 4,208 3,753 419,496 4,19 3,744
Shares issued under share REBRIEEIRITH
option scheme Bfn - - - 1,153 12 9
At 31 December W+ZA=t-H 420,649 4,208 3,753 420,649 4,208 3,753
The ordinary shares of the Company has a par AARERRcEBEARERR
value of HKDO0.01 per share. 190.01787T °
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to LB E ABREBRTRE
receive dividends as declared from time to time and KEIRE » WEERRARAE
are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of m AR —FETRR T
the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with BLBBRHEANRRNEGREE
regard to the Company’s residual assets. = &8 RFEHAL o
(ii) Shares issued under share option scheme (i) REBEBRETZZTHR
s

In 2023, there were no shares issued under share
options scheme.

In 2022, share options were exercised to subscribe
for 1,152,800 ordinary shares in the Company at a
cash consideration of HKD6,800,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB5,838,000), of which RMB9,000
and RMB7,199,000 were credited to share capital
and the share premium account respectively. The
balance of RMB 1,370,000 was transferred from the
capital reserve to the share premium account in
accordance with the Company’s accounting policy
set out in Note 1(t)(ii).

Annual Report 2023 F 3§

RZZEZ=F ' BEREER
RERTEIEITIRG o

RZZTZZF - BREETE
LAFRBE AN A 7 1,152,800 A% &
AR - 3R K& %6,800,000
ET(HERHDARE
5,838,00070) r Hf AR
9,0007T & A K #7,199,000
oA BIEF AR K B 1D 5% B
BR o RIEM 1@ T AR
AMETHRE B ARE
1,370,000 L B B & A &
BE=RMOaER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

v'.R

(B=HERIN

BEEAARKEDIR)

29 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

288

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issuance
of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account and other
reserve account of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in
a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents the
difference between (a) the nominal value of share
capital and the existing balance on the share
premium account of a subsidiary acquired; and (b)
the nominal value of the shares issued by the
Company in exchange under the re-organisation of
the Group on 29 February 2008.

The other reserve of the Company represents the
difference between (a) the consolidated net assets
of the subsidiaries acquired; and (b) the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange under the re-organisation of the Group
on 29 February 2008.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED #2458 %1ZRAR A 7]

29 BA - RERKRE (®)
(d) REEMERAZR

(i)

(ii)

B wE

i EEA AR R mER
BT R A WEREY P 1S 5K
A AR ZERE -

REFSFHEARE - ARF]
Z B Bk M B R 2
BeA kTR - HEEREZ
ZNEBREE B - NAAK
RBEERAEEKBIZTE
H 2 (875 -

Hftbf#

AREE 2 HibFEFEATME
ZERBE QB KB ERF
BiaER RAEENRE
e BO)ARRAERER =
T N\F_A=-t+hBA%EHE
EHEA/RBMETZRMO®E
(1510

AR HfEEEATRE
ZE%‘ ) E U B Ff 8 7]
ZEABERE: BEOAR
ARBR-_ZZENF_A
—ThBAREEEASZIM
BITZBMEE °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

29 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the following:

— waivers of liabilities due to related parties;
and

—  the portion of the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in
Note 1(t)(ii).

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves were established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

The subsidiaries are required to transfer at least
10% of their net profit, as determined under the
PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
general reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of a dividend to
equity shareholders. PRC statutory reserves can be
used to make good prior years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into share capital by issuing new
shares to equity shareholders proportionate to their
existing percentage of equity interests provided
that the balance after such issue is not less than
25% of the registered capital.

(B=HEEHIN

BEAARKESITR)

29 BAX - HEERE &)
(d) REUHERARE)

(iii)

(iv)

Annual Report 2023 F %
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BERRERBEATRE

EBHeENBETA
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BRYARREE HATT
BrBEREZELAS
RNFEZBD EREN
A 10 BE A B 0 78 &
B2 N RER M 2 B R IR
RHEER

o B % E i

REDEEREDREERTE
#5152 48 58 DA e 7 = [ v B
BRRHEERARIRY -

MEARAEREREPEE
ATRBIRREEE MR zE
PIO%EET—RFEE B
EFEEEDZME AR Z50%
BlE o M FHEITEE R LA
EDRKE THER R ZRIE
o AR B TE (7 4R AT A DA
BEFEZER(RE)  H]
BEESRERERER DL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAERIN  BEUARBIIR)

29 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of companies with
functional currency other than RMB.

(vi) Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges
pending subsequent recognition of the hedged
cash flow in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for cash flow hedges in Note 1(h).

(vii) Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVOCI under IFRS 9,
Financial Instruments, that are held at the end of

the reporting period (see Note 1(f)).

(e) Distributability of reserves

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves of the
Company as at 31 December 2023 was RMB639,723,000

(2022: RMB585,605,000).
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29 BRAX - HEERE #)
(d) REUHERBARE)

(e)

)

(vi)

(vii)

EL#E

R FHRERRRENREER
WIR/AREH R RS BREK
FEXZFBENZHE -

O E

R EE 1(h) FrE st IR R =
$RETER AN 2 SRTEUR +
HEEEREEFEEERY
HIREREZRESREL T2
HAPTANAFERNFEE)
ZEBHD o

RFEEE (T T EE)

N ERE(TESE) B85
EREHARBFENRETEY
i‘ki& HRERD AT AR

NHERAREMEE KRS E
B IER B R R ERETE
FER (RMRE) »

AR5 TR

RZBE_=F+=-_A=+—H" ' K
ARz D RFEEEEAARKE
639,723,000 L(ZZE=——F : AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

29 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

()

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholders returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total debt (which includes
interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and lease
liabilities) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash
and cash equivalents and pledged deposits. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity, other than
amounts recognised in equity relating to cash flow
hedges, less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2023, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2022, was to maintain the adjusted net debt-to-
capital ratio at a level considered reasonable by the
Group’s management from time to time with reference
to the prevailing market conditions. In order to maintain
or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, raise
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

29 BA - RERKRE (#)

(f)

BEXER

AEENTEEAER ABERRE
AEEFBEZEENEN  RIGER
BIKFRERMREERE - XLAE
BRARGRE  NEERRKREIR
RO M AR ERERER -

AEBBEGRES RS REEEER
Rig DEAFBRREEKFARE
TREERREOFERBHRME S
RSB SR 4R 28 S AR R 2 O S
B UHREERBNEEHEAR
BETHE -

AEBEREHARFRBEEAN L RE
HEEARE - MM E - AKES
HABFABREREREGAR(E
EARERKEER - UNEEEE)
MAFREZRERAS R AEF
EYWARCERER - KAEER
BREES AN (BRRSRE
B R TR 2 SRR IN)
WARFHRERER S -

R-ZB_=%F > AEEZRAEE—
T _FRETENSKRHBFE
BEARLXERNAEEEEEL
S2EERMARTHRRAEZK
Fo REFHABLE  AEEA
REREMBRRMRE - BITHR
- EKFECHEILEEEN
AET ©
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RE B IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

29 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)
(f) Capital management (Continued)

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31
December 2023 and 2022 was as follows:

Current liabilities: mBEE

Loans and borrowings ERREE

Lease liabilities HEaE

Non-current liabilities: ERBEE

Loans and borrowings BERREE

Lease liabilities HEaE

Total debt BEI5185E

Add: Proposed dividends m: EZREE

Less: Cash and cash equivalents W IHReRREEEY
Pledged deposits B FER

Adjusted net debt KRR ERS FEE

Total equity B

Less: Proposed dividends W RS

Adjusted capital TR SN

Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio  #RFHESH G (FE AN L K

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements, except
that banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries are
subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to the
subsidiaries’ balance sheet ratios (Note 24). The Group
will actively and regularly monitor its compliance to such
covenants.

292 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED #2458 %1ZRAR A 7]

29 BAX - RERKRE @)

) BEXREE#E)

AEBR_ZE_=FR-_ZT—_—
T AT —HAZERARFEELE
ALELENT

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—=E_-= B F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR AREFT

24 499,590 550,452
25 2,518 2,427
502,108 552,879

24 2,647,902 1,948,554
25 3,537 5,624
3,153,547 2,507,057

29(b) 243,968 139,029
21 (2,840,415) (1,849,773)
20 (124,250) (224,736)
432,850 571,577

5,325,831 4,655,464

29(b) (243,968) (139,029)
5,081,863 4,516,435

9% 13%
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

30 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency risks and
commodity price risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade receivables. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, bills receivable and derivative financial assets
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions, which the Group considers to
represent low credit risk. The Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from refundable rental deposits is considered
to be low, taking into account (i) the landlords’ credit
rating and (ii) the remaining lease term and the period
covered by the rental deposits.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk management
policy under which individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 to 180 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 1
month past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

30 $RAREEREMIAZA
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mEBPAAZZBRNAKE AT
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AREBRAT 2 ZERB N AL BRI
EEZERRZeHMAREERERTE
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() FERR

FEERRERFIHFRABITESYD
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Eb - AEBREERKREERE
RBEWEE - HRRZHF AR
SERAEERBRENET R R
Mg Rt ARERAERERS N
REZEY  BREERITESH
BEZEERRER - KZEHE
HERSER L) RISESERE
SR PMREHRE « NEBEEER
AR RERSZES ZEERRES
B -
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AEEERR 2R -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAERIN  BEUARBIIR)

30 Financial risk management and fair values

294

of financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
in industries or countries in which the customers operate.
Significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, less than
2% (2022: 1%), less than 1% (2022: 1%) and 6%
(2022: 6%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer, the second largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively
within industrial aluminium and construction aluminium.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

For the credit-impaired trade receivables, the loss
allowances are assessed individually based on the
estimated future cash flows derived from the
collateralised assets. As at 31 December 2023, the gross
carrying amount of credit-impaired trade receivables was
RMB796,661,000 (2022: RMB837,292,000), against
which a loss allowance of RMB796,661,000 was
recognised (2022: RMB552,795,000).

For the remaining trade receivables, the loss allowances
are calculated using a provision matrix. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the Group's different
customer bases.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 2 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
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30 2REREEREMIAZA

30 Financial risk management and fair values

of financial instruments (Continued) S‘F{E(,.%)
(@) Credit risk (Continued) () EERE)
Trade receivables (Continued) X5 EWHE (&)
As at 31 December 2023, the trade receivables for which A—EBE-_=F+=—HA=+—H ' £

R EREEET ENEBEEREED
RBEWFIRT ¢

the loss allowances was assessed collectively using the
provision matrix is as follows:

2023

—E-=
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
e = IREA EIRERE
% RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARKFT
Current (not past due) BNHR (K% ER) 1.00% 1,175,995 11,760
1-180 days past due #HEF1 = 180K 5.00% 994,387 49,719
181-360 days past due 781181 360K 15.00% 57,407 8,611
361-720 days past due #HI361 =720 K 60.00% 87,245 52,347
More than 720 days past due i BRR 8 720 K 100.00% 114,353 114,353
2,429,387 236,790

Credit — impaired assessed ERIFHEEERE

individually 100.00% 796,661 796,661
3,226,048 1,033,451

2022

2 F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEE 1A L & IRE B ity
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFIT ARSTFIT
Current (not past due) BNER (K8 ER) 1.00% 1,782,731 17,827
1-180 days past due #HE 1 = 180K 5.00% 629,127 31,456
181-360 days past due #HJ181 360K 15.00% 77,021 11,553
361-720 days past due #3612 720K 60.00% 71,105 42,662
More than 720 days past due BmHAFER 720K 100.00% 120,268 120,268
2,680,252 223,766
Credit — impaired assessed ERIFHEE ERE

individually 66.02% 837,292 552,795
3,517,544 776,561
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

30 Financial risk management and fair values 30 2REREEREMIAEZA

of financial instruments (Continued) SAENE-))

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERE)
Trade receivables (Continued) XEEWE (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of EFRN X FGEKFIBR EIE R EE
trade receivables during the year is as follows: BEIIT

2023 2022
—==— = _==__£E

— — T e—

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR AREFT

Balance at 1 January W—B—HB2Z24&% 776,561 223,611
Impairment losses recognised O HERREEE 293,138 552,950
Write-off B (36,248) =
Balance at 31 December R+_RA=+—B2#&% 1,033,451 776,561
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FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

30 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the parent company’s board when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

30 SREMREERSMIAEZRD

EE#
(b) FBHELER

AEBEUAANENKEERERHE
EENREEE(BRRSBHY
MR ENRBREFRARMBELS
ReFR)  EREEBBETEE
BEREALHBAREETSHE -
AEENBRRDENERERBE
EREAREBTEREZENER
VARE LR 4 5 78 R 3R 2 7 08 L BB R A]
HENEEEFANTIEZCREE
AR RN ESREE - AR
HEHERYRDESHE -

TRIFNBERRAEE 20T
EFERABINBRANIHRE
TEANABRATRE (BRI
BRIM R (AEE) N E R
ZBITRRFREZMEKE) RA
SEAX N2 &P BHE

2023
—EZ=
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
RRRERR SR
More than ~ More than Carrying
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but amount
1 year or less than lessthan  More than at 31
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total  December
Rt+=A
—£Rg -5 mE# =+-H
EZX BRER BRER nER by ZEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Loans and borrowings EEV 507,650 1,312,408 1,324,374 211,356 3355788 3,147,492
Lease liabilties HERE 2532 2,744 1,103 - 6,379 6,055
Bills payables, creditorsand BT EE « R B
accrued charges* R ER* 3,809,910 - - - 3809910 3,809,910
4,320,092 1,315,152 1,325,477 211,356 1172,077 6,963,457
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(BRmHEEB

30 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

BERAARKEDIR)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

30 TRIEREEREMIAZR

B #)

(b) RBEZRME)

2022

&

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ANARRA R
More than More than Carrying
Within Tyearbut 2 years but amount
1 year or less than less than More than at31
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total December
—FR —Ff Mk ®12A31H
EEX BRER BERER Fikid 3 @5t ZREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT ARETT AREFrT ARETT ARETT
Loans and borrowings BARiEE 554,779 441,484 1,627,224 62,612 2,686,099 2,499,006
Lease labilities HEAR 2,49 2,78 3,130 - 8367 8,051
Bills payables, creditorsand  FERZiE « BRI

accrued charges* i HE- Lk 4,408,756 - - - 4408756 4,408,756
4,966,030 444,276 1,630,354 62,612 7,103,222 6,915,813

b The balance included trade payables, bills payable, accrued payroll * EHRBER SENIE - EANEHE

and benefits, other payables and accruals and interest payable,
which were financial liabilities in nature.

As shown in the above analysis, bank loans and related
interest expense of the Group amounting to
RMB519,642,000 were due to be repaid during 2024
(2023: RMB569,396,000). The short-term liquidity risk
inherent in this contractual maturity date was not
significantly changed after the reporting period.
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30 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued) F

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Fincmcial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Interest rate risk (c)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest
rate risk arises primarily from long-term borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and fixed rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. The Group's interest rate
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i)
below.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table, as reported to the management
of the Group, details the interest rate profile of the
Group's interest-bearing borrowings at the end of
the reporting period.

2023
—m——

—_——=

Effective

interest

rates

BERAE

Fixed rate borrowings: EEEE :
Lease liabilities HEAE 3.4%-4.9%
Bank loans FITEH 2.3%-3.3%
Variable rate borrowings: FEREE:
Bank loans FITEK 2.7%-3.85%
Fixed rate borrowings as a EEEREEE

percentage of total borrowings XA DL

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

30 2REREERSEMIAZA
B ®)

R =@ B

FMERERERSFTE A FESK
Xfﬁi/miﬂﬂ‘.ﬂgmiﬁ*ljzbzibﬁﬁ
RE 2 B - REEZFIEERE
ERERBEE - REHANERE
EMEBHZEED )”J'J/\$El/,\
AR REBNEER KR A FER
% [ fx o ﬁﬁlﬂﬂaﬁ}ﬁ s 2
TR EF T () °

(i) FIEHR

AAKEEEEMEHR I TR
FHINAKERBEH AR BE

B2 R =R o
2022
—E-CF
Effective
interest
rates Amount
ERRH % G
‘000
Fr
6,055 3.4%-4.9% 8,051
1,146,590  1.6%-4.9% 550,452
1,152,645 558,503

2,000,902 2.75%-4.9% 1,948,554

37% 22%
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(BRAERIN  BEUARBIIR)

30

300

Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variable held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group's profit after tax
and retained profits by approximately RMB8,504,000
(2022: RMB8,281,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group'’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained profits) is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2022.

(d) Currency risk

Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency and the
remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the
exchange restriction imposed by the PRC government.
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables, cash balances and loans and borrowings that
are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily HKD and
UsD.
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FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

30 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in Renminbi, translated using the spot
rate at the year end date. Difference resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group’s presentation
currency is excluded.

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

30 eRiEREERERMIAZD

EE @)
(d) E¥ERE)

(i) SHERBEEE

TRFAJAREEN RS HRE
URBEBNEEEIAIIN B
EMTECCHRAEEXR
BAEL 2 BERBRASE - 51
EHEMME @ BREAEZE
BUARBIIR  XIAFER
ZRERME - BEIFINETS
MBmREAKBE2EE T
EEZERITBREENA -

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)
SRR AR (AARRSIR)

2022
—T-F
HKD usb
BT v
‘000 ‘000
Fir Fr
Trade and other receivables R 5 REAMEMN A 15,205 100,369 15,887 60,834
Cash and cash equivalents BeRELEEY 133,807 68,943 37,671 28,499
Trade and other payables R 5 R E IR (41,249) (15,910) (30,359) (13,666)
Loans and borrowings EXREE - - = (49,842)
Gross and net exposure arising R EAEREE
from recognised assets and EEZERBER
liabilities FE 107,763 153,402 23,199 25,825
Notional amounts of forward ~ EEINEA HMEE
exchange contracts £ 5 - - - 50,191
Net exposure arising from ERREERAE
recognised assets and liabilities 74 H))5 @ [ 107,763 153,402 23,199 76,016
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(= EEBI - BEUAREDIR)

30 Financial risk management and fair values

of financial instruments (Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

30 eRiEREERERMIAZAD
YE@®

(d) E¥mbE)

(i) HBEDH

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group'’s profit after tax and retained
profits that would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables remained

TRETMAEER RSB
B E AR BN
BFEE - LB,
R RERHTE  ARE B
Bt s P RAR B 2 FIAT 1R
2 BDRS 8E) -

constant.
2023 2022

—EB-=F e
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit after (decrease)  profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rate profit rate profit
HERBIR B
Exts/ BARRE RSk v )33
(FKE) BRz2E (&) BNz &E
‘000 ‘000
F7 FIT
Hong Kong Dollars BT 10% 9,069 10% 1,971
United States Dollars ET 10% 13,051 10% 6,469

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax
and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Renminbi at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

30 2REREEREMIAZA
YE@®

30 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥REE)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group's
presentation currency. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2022.

(e) Commodity price risk

The Group did not enter into commodity future contracts
in 2023.

In 2022, the Group used commodity futures contracts in
the Shanghai Futures Exchange to manage the commodity
price risk exposure in respect of the highly probable
forecast purchase of aluminium products. The Group
designates those commodity future contracts as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges and does not separate
the forward and spot element of the commodity future
contracts but instead designates the commodity future
contract in its entirety in a hedging relationship.

The Group applies a hedge ratio of 1:1 and determines
the existence of an economic relationship between the
commodity future contracts and the highly probable
forecast purchase transactions based on: the underlying
for hedging instruments and the hedged items are
economically related. The basic variables of the hedging
instruments and the hedged items are standard
aluminium prices. The effect of credit risk does not
dominate the value changes.

(e)

(i) SBEZH (&)

BRESMBREREDH LD
FERNEFTEZSNHRED
KBAEBEAZINER KR Z
AEBEMESHMIA - BN
BERASKE KA BE S LS
BT E EBA R BRSNS
FIBREWTRIE - ST TE
BREGINEBFIERRER
EEEHNEEHMEL R -
AFBIRE-T - —FRRZ
BT o

7 B A% AL B

AEBR T _=FUWEITIVE®
HEa4 -

R-ZFE-_—F AKRERLEHE
RHMERBMBEENEEEH
8 EE an MY AR B AT RETRORI AR B M0 79
ERER - AEEEZEERHE
BHEERBREREL MNE H T
ARV ESFAERPESNHER
RIBERAD » MARELPREERE

BiETAmPEAD -

NEERB 1L RT R
B SR TEMERRYHIEAE &
4 MR B RE L 7 AR HR B A A B B
RENEREERS 2HTFEMNKE
ERR o T AN ¥hIE B A&
L EEBZERE - FERKRHNF
ETeFBEENEE -
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30

304

BERAARKEDIR)

Financial risk management and fair values 30 €BEMEERSRMIA 2D
of financial instruments (Continued) S {E (&)
(e) Commodity price risk (Continued) (e) BMEREREE)
The main source of hedge ineffectiveness in the hedging REREERF  HHPERNE B R
relationships is the changes in the price differential TR T EER S HhIER ZFEA
between the hedging instruments and the hedged items. ZREY -
The following table provides a reconciliation of the TREV ERERER ST FEE
hedging reserve in respect of commodity price risk and HEE W REEZZ_—_F+=
shows the effectiveness of the hedging relationships for A=+—HIEFEHHEERENER
the year ended 31 December 2022: 1
2022
RMB’'000
ARBTT
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz&s 7,727
Effective portion of the cash flow hedge REMEERERR RS RELT 2
recognised in other comprehensive income BRER D (72,211)
Amounts transferred to the initial carrying BAEHIEE YRR EENSE
amount of the hedged items (Note(i) (K@) 63,119
Related tax GElE D 1,365
Balance at 31 December (Note (i) R+ R=+—B2&& (B d) -
Change in fair value of the commodity future FERNEGREES N2 AT EEE
contracts during the year (78,791)
Hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profitand BT > YimEk 4t (H4)
loss (Note 4) 6,580
Effective portion of the cash flow hedge REMEPEWRERERAZIRESRELH T2
recognised in other comprehensive income BB (K15 9(b))
(Note 9(b)) (72,211)
(i) Amounts transferred from the hedging reserve are recognised in (i) B¥ P REEEENSERTFENYS
the initial carrying amount of inventory. BRTH {5 B3R ©
(i) The entire balance in the hedging reserve relates to continuing (ii) HREEAZ A SSREREENE

hedges.
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FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

30 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(f) Fair values measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

3 Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not
available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a team headed by the finance
manager performing valuations for the financial
instruments which are categorised into Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy. The team reports directly to
the chief financial officer and the audit committee.
A valuation report with analysis of changes in fair
value measurement is prepared by the team at each
interim and annual reporting date, and is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer.

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

30 2REREERSEMIAZA
S{E &)

() 2¥E

(i)
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e SRR RE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(= EEBI - BEUAREDIR)

30 Financial risk management and fairvalues 30 2RIEAKEERSBIAZA

of financial instruments (Continued) EE@#®)
(f) Fair values measurement (Continued) f) AFEFEE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at () BAFHEHIEZEZHEE
fair value (Continued) REE#E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RNFEER (&)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2023 categorised into
Fair value at R-B-=#+-A=1+-RH2
31 December AVEFENES
2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

ZRVE £-8 E=R F=R
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTE ARETT ARETZ

Recurring fair value measurements ~ EEMAFETE

Assets: BE:
Equity securities designated at FVOCI ~ EF ARATE AL,
2EUENBRAES
— Unlisted equity securities — JEETRAE SR 36,508 - - 36,508
Derivative finandial instruments; fTEERMTA :
— Other derivative — HfppTeE 4,315 - - 4,315
40,823 - - 40,823
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30 Financial risk management and fair values
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FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

30 TRIEREEREMIAZR

of financial instruments (Continued) YE @)
(f) Fair values measurement (Continued) () AFEFEE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at () BAFHEABZLHEE
fair value (Continued) REHE#E)
RFEER (&)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements
Assets:
Equity securities designated at FVOCI

— Unlisted equity securities
Derivative financial instruments:

— Foreign exchange forward contract

— Other derivative

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2022 categorised into

Fair value at W-B-—#+-A=+—-H2
31 December ATEHENEA
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZE-—&
+=A=t-H
ZATHE EF— F-8 E=H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ANREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
KEMATETE
BE
EBEARATET AL
2EANENRAES
— F EmRAES 32,847 - = 32,847
TEERMTA:
— JMERBAH 3,402 = 3,402 -
— Hfr4 8,556 = = 8,556
44 805 - 3,402 41,403

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

REE—B-_=FK-_F_—
F+_A=1+—HBIEFE " F
— AR ERZE — A 2 RN e
TMERERAE =N EFE =R
B o ANEE 2 BURARE
BEZREHRERSATE
[ 4 2 )z B4 o
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nv'.R

B IR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=HERIN

30

BEEAARKEDIR)

of financial instruments (Continued)

()
(i)

308

Fair values measurement (Continued)

Financial risk management and fair values

Financial assets and liabilities measured at

fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair

value measurements.

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts
included in Level 2 are determined based on quotes
from market makers or alternative market
participants supported by observable inputs including

spot and forward exchange rates.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Equity securities designated at FVOCI

EERRATESAHM2EKENRAES
— Unlisted equity security 1 (i)

— FEMBRAZES ()

— Unlisted equity security 2 (i)

— ELEMRAES2 ()

Derivative financial instruments:

fTES¢RIE !
— Other derivative
— HfTHE

Valuation
techniques

fEER

Market
comparable
companies price/
book ratios
TG A B
AR TRE

Market
comparable
companies price/
earning ratios
5 B
ARTIRE

Black-Scholes
model
Black-Scholes 22!

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED #2458 %1ZRAR A 7]

30 TRIEREEREMIAZR

FE @)
(f) AV EFEGE)
() BAFEABZEZHEE
REE#E)
NFEBER(E)
F_ZRNTEFEMAZGE
TERBARIE
ZARPEINERA N
FEETDREMTSEEESK
Hih 52 EENREET -
ZEREARERAERSE
AHRER X -
EHE=RAFEHENEN
Significant
unobservable Weighted
input Range average
EXFUEE
BA g€ IEF I
Discount for lack 11.40% - 15.70%
of marketability 22.10%
R 5
TR
Discount for lack 11.40% - 15.70%
of marketability 22.10%
R M5
AT
Expected 29.08% - 39.77%
volatility 46.13%
L



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

30 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(f) Fair values measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

(i

The fair value of unlisted equity security 1 and
2 are determined using the price/book ratios
and price/earning ratios, respectively, of
comparable listed companies adjusted for
lack of marketability discount. The fair value
measurement is negatively correlated to the
discount for lack of marketability. As at 31
December 2023, it is estimated that with all
other variables held constant, a decrease/
increase in discount for lack of marketability
by 1% would have increased/decreased the
Group’s other comprehensive income by
RMB368,000 (2022: RMB165,000).

The movements during the period in the balance of
these Level 3 fair value measurements are as
follows:

(BR=EEHI -

EAARETIR)

30 cRiIEREERERMIAZD
S{E &)

(f) AFEFEE)

() BEAFESBZEMEE

HAZEFE=
g :

“=4

Unlisted equity securities: JE TR AT S
At 1 January Rn—HA—H
Purchased during the year FABEEE

Net unrealised gains recognised in

HAEERNE 2 E R

other comprehensive income KRB FWES (M aE9)
during the period (Note 9)
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—~8”

RERE#E)

BRAE=RA
(&)

FiHsEOEN

JEEMBAES1 K2 AT
B RRBRAIELR ETA
RMIRR L TAREE - It
ﬁ;&iﬁ%fﬁﬂlﬁ?ﬁ%&%%&ﬁﬂa

o NEEFTEHEBRZT
ﬁl&ﬁﬁ;%}irﬁﬁfﬁ
—=F+-A=+—8 " T
BEEMEEHERFTE - AlHE
= ﬁ/»lL@ETﬁﬁ%ﬁk?/ﬁ
M1% @ JEFAEEHEME
EU SN R AREE
368,000 (== —F : A
R# 165,000 7T) °

5
R-=

N EREERE

2023 2022

—Z=-= =Sl =
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR#TF T ARETFIT
32,847 11,183

- 18,960

3,661 2,704

36,508 32,847
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(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

30 Financial risk management and fair values

310

of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair values measurement (Continued)

30 cREREERERMIAZAD
FE@®)

DNPEFEE)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at () BAFHEHIEZEZHEE
fair value (Continued) REMR#E)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BHE=RRTEBHEAR
; (%)
(Continued)
2023 2022
—E-= = ——
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TF T ARETFT
Other derivative: HALPTAE -
At 1 January n—H—H 8,556 -
Purchased during the year FRNEEE - 8,556
Net unrealised gains or losses HIRNE RN ER 2 R
recognised in profit or loss during U B e 1B
the period (4,241) =
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 4,315 8,556
Any gain or loss arising from the remeasurement of AEHTEANE B LEEE B A
the Group’s unlisted equity securities held for B B IE T IR AN 75 25 BT EE AR HY AR {R]
strategic purposes are recognised in the fair value B BEEMGS W RIEBEY
reserve (non-recycling) in other comprehensive N ERFEECRAED ) FRER - H
income and profit or loss. Upon disposal of the ERARFHE B2t AEMER
equity securities, the amount accumulated in other ABWENSHEEEE ARG AT -
comprehensive income is transferred directly to
retain earnings.
(ii) Fair value of other financial assets and (i) HHEBELIXFEAKRZEM

liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair value as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.
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FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

31 Commitments 31

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2023 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

iR

RZB_=F+-A=+—H KU B®
RIEBBORBITEARAENT

2023 2022
—Eg-= —

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE TR ARETT

Contracted for BEaT4

— Purchase of property, plant and — RE#EH M EEEMES

equipment for the production base I i

in Chengdu City 8,730 48,438
— Purchase of property, plant and — REENMZEEEMEE

equipment for the production base ME - BRE NEE

in Yichun City 6,996 17,015
— Purchase of property, plant and — AL =KE Z EEE

equipment for the production base BEWE  BEMKR

in Sanshui, Foshan City 151,445 167,833
— Purchase of property, plant and — R EEEMEE

equipment for the production base e S

in Qinyang City 9,342 15,259
— Purchase of property, plant and — AR 2 EEREMES

equipment for the production base YIZE -~ S K&

in Huzhou City 318,995 260,643
— Purchase of property, plant and — RBRAN Dz EEEMEE

equipment for the production base BEME - BEKREE

in Australia 10,550 19,600

506,058 528,788

In addition, the Group was committed at 31 December 2023 to
enter into a new lease of 3 years that is not yet commenced, the
lease payments under which amounted to AUD1,127,972
(equivalent to RMB5,468,859) per annum (2022: AUD1,127,644
(equivalent to RMB5,315,488) per annum).

PEoN - REER -_ZE-_=F+_A=+—
BAGERI M mARIGZ ZFHAE - H1A
TZHRENZEEF1,127,972;8 T (18
BN ARES468,8597T) (2=
F1,1276448R T(HHE R AR K
5,315,488 7T)) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAERIN  BEUARBIIR)

32 Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).

33 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the directors are of
the view that related parties of the Group include the following
companies:

Name of related parties

MEL &8

Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall, Door & Window Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Curtain Wall”) (BRHEZ/EFIEHR A A]) ()

BEREZERRZIFIEER AT
(MEEEHE D ()

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
("China Lesso Group”)
(P EIE B E R A R A R R EF 2 F)))
R B R EERER AR REFAF
(T ER 22 E 1) ()

Guangdong Guangxin Holdings Group Co., Ltd. and
its subsidiaries (“Guangxin Holding”)
(BERABHERERERATLRETRAR) ()
BREEFIEREEBR AR REFAR (BRI ()

Guangdong Xingfa Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.
(BREFERERRBRAF) ()
BERBEZIRGERAR QA
(M3 ERIT ) ()

(i) The English translation of the Company names is for reference only. The
official names of these companies are in Chinese.

312 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED #2458 %1ZRAR A 7]

32

33

FAREE

R-F-_=F+-A=+—8 AKEL
BEXIRAR(ZT-__F:8)-

EXBELXRS

BRERBHREAEMEBOAEENRS
KGRI REBETUATERREESR

S

REE-FT-_=F+-_A=1+—HLF
B ARREFRRUATAL/ REARE
SEMEED

Et

g
hs

Relationship with the Group

BEAEEBR

Owned as to 21% by Mr. Liao Yuging.
Mr. Liao Yuging is an executive director
of the Company

HEEELEHEE21% Exm - BEELE
RAEARFATES -

Substantial shareholder of the Company

Substantial shareholder of the Company

ARREZRR

An associate of the Company

0} AEBZHERNRZEARMNEFRER
2F o ZER TEI’J*BK FREMRSE -
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FE M IE SRR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

33 Material related party transactions (Continued)

(a) Transactions

Sales and purchase

Sales of goods to
— China Lesso Group
— Xingfa Curtain Wall
— Guangxin Holding

Purchase of goods from
— China Lesso Group

Properties leased out
— China Lesso Group
— Xingfa Environmental

Purchase of services
— Xingfa Environmental
— Xingfa Curtain Wall

Purchase of unlisted equity interest and
derivatives in an unlisted entity from
— Guangxin Holding

1]

— P EE
— MR
— BRI

[AA T & RIEE an
— PR R E

WA T
— RS
— WA

SRIBARTS
— BIIRH
— BERE

(a)

(BR=EEHI -

33 ERBEIRS (#)

EAARETIR)

BEUTELMERMNIELT

RAER RITET A

— B

3
EBEE

2023 2022

—E-= —_=__

RMB'000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETFT

176,479 82,194

63,748 90,410

8,726 -

248,953 172,604

26,183 =

7,468 7,256

3,955 4,221

11,423 11,477

3,092 -

2,457 6,278

5,549 6,278

- 27,516
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

33 Material related party transactions (Continued)

(b) Balances with related parties

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had the

following balances with related parties:

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade related B 5ER
— China Lesso Group — YR B
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — IR
— Guangxin Holding — BERER
Non-trade related HIRGEE
— Xingfa Environmental* — PEIRIG *
* The balances included loans to the associate which are
disclosed in Note 33(d).
(iij) Trade and other payables
Trade related BEHXZEE
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — IR
— China Lesso Group — R EE
Non-trade related HIRSEE

Acquisition of unlisted equity
securities and derivative from
Guangxin Holding

33 ERBEIRS (#)

(b) EERAET AR
R|EHR - NEEERES A

BREAT

() XZRAMERSE

2023 2022
=== B F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥Fir ARBF T
31,184 23,659
23,505 20,724

42 -

54,731 44,383
20,343 16,017
75,074 60,400

AR B IR RE 33(d) R EE A M)
DR E K

(i) XZREAMENKE

Y ig BRI 2 IF BT RR

EHEITETR

The trade-related amounts due from related parties are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

314

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED #2458 %1ZRAR A 7]

2023 2022
—E_-= B F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥Fir ARBF T
764 2,310

553 55

1,317 2,365

- 27,516

1,317 29,881

& RBAE 7T R 5 6 B SRR 5 IR
# RS ABETEERY -
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B IRk EE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

33 Material related party transactions (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including the amounts paid to the Group’s directors as
disclosed in Note 7 and the senior management as disclosed
in Note 8, is as follows:

Short-term employee benefits REES R

Contribution to retirement benefit plan

Equity settled share-based payment
expenses

BEGE3

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (Note
5(b)).

Financing arrangements

— Amounts owed to the Group — RANEE I

— RN B

— Related interest expense

The loans to the associate bear interest at 4.35% per
annum and will mature within one year. The loans are
unguaranteed and unsecured. The loans are included in
“trade and other receivables” (Note 19(a)).

No loss allowances have been made in respect of these
loans.

R ET SR
VAR #e 48 E A R A7) R BT O

(BREEEA - BEUAAREIIR)

33 ERBEIRS (#)

(c)

(d)

FTEEEAEME

AEBTIEERABZHE (B
B SE 7 M B RE8 P 0 Il #8 BR 2 X A
TAREEELSRERABNS

BT

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-_4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fir ARBF T
18,054 23,053
301 268
- (448)
18,355 22,873

Memmat ATEIA] (FifaE

5(b)) -

BE =5

2023
—g—=

RMB’000
ARMTFT

16,000
341

2022

RMB’000
ARETT

16,000

[m) B & 2 &) 42
435% ' WK —

ERREERNEEM -

BstAIRGME
i 19@)) °

WERZEE
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(BR5ERBAS - BERIAAREIITR)

33 Material related party transactions (Continued)

(e) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions of sales and/or purchase
above constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” of the Report of the Directors of this
annual report.

316 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED %% 42 %4t 5 R A 7
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34 Company-level statement of financial

35

position

Non-current asset
Investment in subsidiary

Current assets
Amounts due from a subsidiary
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other payables

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
RBRARZRE

RBEE

J& 1 — FEIFH B 2 B RIA
RBe LR EEY

RBAE
FETH B8 2 B 300R
H At FEA R

REBEE (BE) FE
REERNBAE
EEFE

BRAS K 1k 4

LN

Edi

REEAE

Non-adjusting events after the reporting

period

After the end of the reporting period the directors have
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in Note

29(b).

(BR=EEHI -

EAARETIR)

34 REIEEMBARREK

2023 2022

—E_= —E-4F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(k3 ARYTFiT AREFIT
14 629,036 620,068
21,969 135

9,515 9,771

31,484 9,906

- 33,642

6,422 6,974

6,422 40,616
25,062 (30,710)

654,098 589,358

654,098 589,358

29

3,753 3,753

650,345 585,605

654,098 589,358

35 WEWRFARSEE

RBEPRREFTEER

KBRS -

#E— BB ERHIEE29(b)

Annual Report 2023 F % 317



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nv'.R

B IR EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAERIN  BEUARBIIR)

36

318

Possible impact of amendments, new 36 RBE-_ZE-_=%+=-A8
standards and interpretations issued but =+—HILFEEEMAERE
not yet effective for the year ended 31 MHIEE - ERBZREBHNE
December 2023 EXE
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB @%Eﬁ%ﬁﬁkiﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁlj%‘ﬁa B - B ,T‘\/ETE
has issued a number of new or amended standards, which are EBEZESEREMG TN ISEREE
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023 and —=F+=—RB=+—H JJ:EE#TJ?EE,&
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. R EFTRISEET2ER - Mz & 1SR I 2
These developments include the following which may be N2 ZE18E] - 2SR BIE S| AR
relevant to the Group. NEBBBEHEET o
Effective for
accounting years
beginning on or after
RTI B 2%
HHRNETEEENR
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of liabilities as 1 January 2024
current or non-current (“2020 amendments”)
IR st RS 1 RIEEIAN - HBHERES : BESHE BRI TE —E-mFE—H—H

([ZF=FFEFTE])

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:
Non-current liabilities with covenants (“2022 amendments”)
I %A* ERFENSRERT A - HIBHEKZS -
dLHRBERE ([ ZE=ZFE572])

Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback

BERM RS ENF165RERIA HE  ELMETHHERE

1 January 2024

—ZE_M¥E—-A—H

1 January 2024
—ZE-WF—A—H

Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows and IFRS 7, Financial Instruments:

Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements

1 January 2024

R ERE TRIEETA - B m SR KB & ERIE 7 HIEFTA - —E-E—-H—H
TRTA: KE HEBFRELH

Amendments to IAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates: Lack of 1 January 2025
exchangeability

B EERE 21 RIEFT A - EXEEMTE - S AR —ZE_h¥—HA—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable
to equity shareholders
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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Five Years Summary

HF#E

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREFIR)
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=1+—HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—g_= —EooF ZFE - —TTFE _T-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Nk Sl ARST T AREFT AREFT ARETT
4,239,211 3,640,771 3,126,054 2,743,711 2,668,419
8,627,015 8,455,200 8,216,134 5,692,350 5,092,971
(4,794,935) (5,423,050) (5,543,085) (4,387,097) (4,262,373)
(2,745,460) (2,017,457) (1,319,703) (351,031) (460,137)
5325831  4,655464 4,479,400 3,697,933 3,038,880
3,753 3,753 3,744 3,732 3,731
5,314,555 4,648,118 4,475,598 3,693,460 3,034,604
5,318,308 4,651,871 4,479,342 3,697,192 3,038,335
7,523 3,593 58 741 545
5,325,831 4,655,464 4,479,400 3,697,933 3,038,880
Annual Report 2023 F % 319



Five Years Summary

REHME

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

Results
Revenue

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic (RMB yuan)

Diluted (RMB yuan)

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

= = T —fF —T-—F ZT-TF ZTNF
IS RMB'000 RMIB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
NS ARETT ARETFT AREFT ARETT
17,352,551 16,933,064 15,432,900 11,886,862 11,280,848
916,323 511,884 1,055,201 873,412 723,470
(108,222) (50,575)  (168,084)  (111,953)  (120,864)
808,101 461,309 887,117 761,459 602,606
804,171 457,774 887,800 765,385 606,109
3,930 3,535 (683) (3,926) (3,503)
808,101 461,309 887,117 761,459 602,606
1.91 1.09 2.12 1.83 1.45

1.91 1.09 2.1 1.83 1.45
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Unit No. 5, 6th Floor, Wing On Plaza, No. 62 Mody Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
s JUREIE Hh2E 62 9Kk Z Yy 6 48 605 %
Tel &% : 852-2175 5388 Fox f#2. : 852-2175 5383

No. 5, Zone D, Central Science and Technology Industrial Park, Foshan District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province, China (Postcode: 528137)
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Website #84L : www.xingfa.com

®
MIX
Paper | Supporting responsible forestry

3R | i AEFHME
Ew%c% FSC® C009014




	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Directors and Senior Management
	Report of the Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five Years Summary
	Back Cover



